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Our operations and financial results are subject to certain risks and uncertainties, including those described below, which could
adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations, cash flows, and the trading price of our common stock.
Risks Relating to Economic and Market Conditions Global economic conditions, particularly in the U. S., significantly affect
our industry and business, and economic decline can materially impact our financial results. In times of economic uncertainty or
recession, consumers tend to have less discretionary income and to defer significant spending on non- essential items, which
may adversely affect our financial performance. The economic uncertainty caused by (i) general economic conditions, (ii) the
impact of inflation and ristrg-elevated interest rates, (iii) labor shortages, (iv) supply chain disruptions, (v) pelitical
uncertainty, including the upcoming 2024 elections, and regional or global conflicts , including the conflict in the Gaza
strip and other recent unrest in the Middle East , (vi) public health crises, pandemics, or national emergencies and (vii)
actions and stimulus measures adopted by local, state and federal governments may lead to unfavorable business outcomes. We
continue to develop our portfolio of brands, but our business remains cyclical and sensitive to consumer spending on new boats.
Deterioration in general economic conditions that in turn diminishes consumer confidence or discretionary income may reduce
our sales, or we may decide to lower pricing for our products, which could adversely affect our financial results, including
increasing the potential for future impairment charges. Further, our products are recreational, and consumers’ limited
discretionary income in times of economic hardship may be diverted to other activities that occupy their time, such as other
forms of recreational, religious, cultural, or community activities. In addition, economic uncertainty may also increase certain
costs of operation, such as financing costs, energy costs and insurance premiums, which in turn may impact our results of
operations. We cannot predict the strength of global economies or the timing of economic recovery, either globally or in the
specific markets in which we compete. Inflation and rising-elevated interest rates for prolonged periods could adversely affect
our financial results. The market prices of certain materials and components used in manufacturing our products, especially
resms that are made w1th hydrocarbon feedstocks ﬁberglass alumlnum lumber, and steel, can be volatile. While;historteatty;

0 P ant-Significant increases in inflation, particularly
those related to wages and increases in the cost of raw materials, feeeﬁt-ly—have and may continue to have, an adverse impact on
our business, financial condition, and results of operations. In addition, new boat buyers often finance their purchases. Inflation,
along with rising-elevated interest rates, could translate into an increased cost of boat ownership. Should inflation continue to
occur and inereased-interest rates remain elevated eentinae-te-eeenr—, prospective consumers may choose to forego or delay
their purchases or buy a less expensive boat in the event credit is not available to finance their boat purchases. In addition, as
discussed in more detail below, tising-elevated interest rates for prolonged periods could also incentivize dealers to reduce
their inventory levels in order to reduce their interest exposure. Rising-In an effort to offset the increased interest exposure,
we have and expect to continue offering dealer incentives to pass through the additional dealer costs to us, which in turn
negatively impacts our margins. Elevated interest rates for prolonged periods may also increase the borrowing costs on our
variable rate debt, as discussed below, as well as on new debt, which could affect the fair value of our investments. Fiscal
concerns and policy changes may negatively impact worldwide economic and credit conditions and adversely affect our
industry, business, and financial condition. Fiscal policy could have a material adverse impact on worldwide economic
conditions, the financial markets, and availability of credit and, consequently, may negatively affect our industry, business, and
overall financial condition. Consumers often finance purchases of our products, and as interest rates rise, the cost of financing
the purchase also increases. While credit availability is adequate to support demand, interest rates began to rise significantly in
the second half of fiscal 2022, and-continued to rise throughout fiscal 2023 , and remained elevated throughout fiscal 2024 .
If credit conditions worsen and adversely affect the ability of consumers to finance potential purchases at acceptable terms and
interest rates, it could result in a decrease in sales or delay improvement in sales. Our variable rate indebtedness subjects us to
interest rate risk, which could cause our debt service obligations to increase significantly. Borrowings under our revolving credit
facility and term loans are at variable rates of interest and expose us to interest rate risk. Reference rates used to determine the
applicable interest rates for our debt began to rise significantly in the second half of fiscal 2022, and-continued to rise throughout
fiscal 2023 , and remained elevated throughout fiscal 2024 . If interest rates continue to increase or remain elevated , the
debt service obligations on our indebtedness will continue to increase or remain elevated even if the amount borrowed remains
the same, and our net income and cash flows, including cash available for servicing our indebtedness, will correspondingly
decrease. Please see Part 11, Item 7A, ““ Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk ” for discussion of our
market risk related to interest rates. An increase in energy costs may materially adversely affect our business, financial
condition, and results of operations. Our results of operations can be directly affected, positively and negatively, by volatility in
the cost and availability of energy, which is subject to global supply and demand and other factors beyond our control. Prices
for crude oil, natural gas and other energy supplies have been increasing and have been subject to high volatility, including as a
result of geopolitical factors or otherwise. Further, the global clean energy movement may also reduce the availability of fossil
fuels, which may in turn cause increases to energy costs. Higher energy costs result in increases in operating expenses at our
manufacturing facilities, in the expense of shipping raw materials to our facilities, and in the expense of shipping products to our
dealers. In addition, increases in energy costs may adversely affect the pricing and availability of petroleum- based raw
materials, such as resins and foams that are used in our products. Higher fuel prices may also have an adverse effect on demand
for our boats, as they increase cost of boat ownership and possibly affect product use. Higher fuel prices may also have an effect




on consumer preferences causing a shift from traditional fuel- powered boats to electric boats. Fluctuations in foreign currency
exchange rates could adversely affect our results. We sell products manufactured in the U. S. into certain international markets
in U. S. dollars. The changing relationship of the U. S. dollar to foreign currencies has, from time to time, had a negative impact
on our results of operations. Fluctuations in the value of the U. S. dollar relative to these foreign currencies can adversely affect
the price of our products in foreign markets and the costs we incur to import certain components for our products. We will often
attempt to offset these higher prices with increased discounts, which can lead to reduced net sales per unit. Risks Relating to Our
Business .We depend on our network of independent dealers which creates additional risks .Substantially all of our sales
are derived from our network of independent dealers.Maintaining a reliable network of dealers is essential to our success.Our
agreements with dealers in our networks typically provide for one- year terms,although some agreements have longer terms.The
loss of one or more of these dealers could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.The
number of dealers supporting our products and the quality of their marketing and servicing efforts are essential to our ability to
generate sales.We face competition from other manufacturers in attracting and retaining independent boat dealers.Although our
management believes that the quality of our products in the premium performance sport,outboard boat,and sterndrive boat
industries should permit us to maintain our relationships with our dealers and our market share position,there can be no
assurance that we will be able to maintain or improve our relationships with our dealers or our market share position.In
addition,independent dealers in the powerboat industry have experienced significant consolidation in recent years,which could
result in the loss of one or more of our dealers in the future if the surviving entity in any such consolidation purchases similar
products from a competitor.A significant deterioration in the number or effectiveness of our dealers could have a material
adverse effect on our business,financial condition,results of operations,and cash flows. Although at present we believe dealer
health to be generally favorable, Weakening-weakening demand for marine products could hurt our dealers’ financial
performance.In particular,reduced cash flow from decreases in sales and tightening credit markets could impair dealers = ability
to fund operations.Inability to fund operations can force dealers to cease business,and we may be unable to obtain alternate
distribution in the vacated market.An inability to obtain alternate distribution could unfavorably affect our net sales through
reduced market presence.If economic conditions deteriorate,we anticipate that dealer failures or voluntary market exits would

increase especmlly 1f overall retail demand materlally declines -Additionaly;the-detertoration-in-the-health-ofeompetitors>

dealers require adequate hquldlty to ﬁnance thelr operatlon% 1nelud1ng purchaqlng our produet% Dealer% are subject to numerous
risks and uncertainties that could unfavorably affect their liquidity positions,including,among other things,continued access to
adequate financing sources on a timely basis on reasonable terms.These financing sources are vital to our ability to sell products
through our network of dealers.Many of our dealers have floor plan financing arrangements with third- party finance
companies.Many factors,including creditworthiness of our dealers and overall aging and level of pipeline inventories,continue to
influence the availability and terms of financing that our dealers are able to secure,which could cause dealers to shift the timing
of purchases or reduce the total amount purchased in a given period of time,adversely affecting sales of our products.In addition,
elevated-rising interest rates could also incentivize dealers to reduce their inventory levels in order to reduce their interest
exposure,which may further adversely impact the sales of our products and our results of operations Our ability to adjust
for demand in a rapidly changing environment may adversely affect our results of operations. The seasonality of retail demand
for our products, together with our goal of balancing production throughout the year, requires us to manage our manufacturing
and allocate our products to our dealer network to address anticipated retail demand and manage demand fluctuations caused by
macroeconomic conditions and other factors. In addition, our dealers must manage seasonal changes in consumer demand and
inventory. Our business may experience difficulty in adapting to rapidly changing production and sales volumes. ¥e-For fiscal
2024, we made the strategic decision to change production levels in order to rebalance inventory held by our dealers in
light of the expected industry headwinds and weakness in retail demand. Our profitability depends, in part, on our
ability to spread fixed costs over a sufficiently large number of products sold and shipped. When retail demand
decreases, we experience lower rates of absorption of fixed costs in our manufacturing, which negatively impacts our
gross and net margins. Further reduction in inventories could continue to negatively impact our margins. As a result, we
must balance the economies of level production with seasonal retail sales patterns experienced by our dealers and other
macroeconomic conditions. Failure to adjust manufacturing levels adequately, decreased demand or the need to reduce
production may have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations. Conversely, to the
extent dealer supply were to fall below retail demand, we would need to increase production. If production demand
increases, we may not be able to recruit or maintain sufficient skilled labor or our suppliers may not be able to deliver sufficient
quantities of parts and components for us to match production with rapid changes in forecasted demand. In addition, consumers
may pursue other recreational activities if dealer pipeline inventories fall too low and it is not convenient to purchase our
products, consumers may purchase from competitors, or our fixed costs may grow in response to increased demand. A failure to
adjust dealer plpehne 1nventory levels to meet demand Could adver%ely 1mpact our results of operatlonq {-ﬁ-&dd'l-ﬁeﬂ—l-f—ﬁttf




which could cause the profitability of our products to suffer. Our manufacturing strategy is de%lgned to improve product quahty
and increase productivity, while reducing costs and increasing flexibility to respond to ongoing changes in the marketplace. To
implement this strategy, we must be successful in our continuous improvement efforts, which depend on the involvement of
management, production employees, and suppliers. Any inability to achieve these objectives could adversely impact the
profitability of our products and our ability to deliver desirable products to our consumers. In addition, we have made strategic
capital investments in capacity expansion activities to successfully capture growth opportunities and enhance product offerings,
including brand relocation and plant expansions. Moving production to a different plant and expanding capacity at an existing
facility involves risks, including difficulties initiating production within the cost and timeframe estimated, supplying product to
customers when expected, integrating new products, and attracting sufficient skilled labor to handle additional production
demands. If we fail to meet these objectives, it could adversely affect our ability to meet customer demand for products and
increase the cost of production versus projections, both of which could result in a significant adverse impact on operating and
financial results. Additionally, plant expansion can result in manufacturing inefficiencies, additional expenses, including higher
wages or severance costs, and cost inefficiencies, which could negatively impact financial results. Adverse weather conditions
and climate change events can have a negative effect on revenues. Changes in seasonal weather conditions can have a significant
effect on our operating and financial results. Sales of our boats are typically stronger just before and during spring and summer,
and favorable weather during these months generally has had a positive effect on consumer demand. Conversely, unseasonably
cool weather, excessive rainfall, or drought conditions during these periods can reduce or change the timing of demand. Climate
change could have an impact on longer- term natural weather trends, resulting in environmental changes including, but not
limited to, increases in severe weather, changing sea levels, changes in sea, land and air temperatures, poor water conditions, or
reduced access to water, could disrupt or negatively affect our business. Catastrophic events, including natural and
environmental disasters, acts of terrorism, or civil unrest, could have a negative effect on our operatlonq and ﬁnanc1al results.
We rely on the continuous operation of our manufacturing facilities ¥ 3 2,8 W
Miehigan-for the production of our products. Any natural disaster or other serious dlqruptlon to our fac111tle§ due to fire, snow,
flood, earthquake, pandemics, civil insurrection or social unrest or any other unforeseen circumstance could adversely affect our
business, financial condition, and results of operations. Hurricanes, floods, earthquakes, storms, and catastrophic natural or
environmental disasters, as well as acts of terrorism or civil unrest, could disrupt our distribution channel, operations, or supply
chain and decrease consumer demand. If a catastrophic event takes place in one of our major sales markets, our sales could be
diminished. Additionally, if such an event occurs near our business locations, manufacturing facilities or key supplier facilities,
business operations, and / or operating systems could be interrupted. We could be uniquely affected by weather- related
catastrophic events, as we have dealers and third- party suppliers located in regions of the United States that have been and may
be exposed to damaging storms, such as hurricanes and tornados, floods and environmental disasters. Although preventative
measures may help to mitigate damage, the damage and disruption resulting from natural and environmental disasters may be
significant. Such disasters can disrupt our consumers, dealers, or suppliers, which can interrupt our operational processes and our
sales and profits. Our ability to remain competitive depends on successfully introducing new products and services that meet
consumer expectations. We believe that our consumers look for and expect quality, innovation, and advanced features when
evaluating and making purchasing decisions about products and services in the marketplace. Our ability to remain competitive
and meet our growth objectives may be adversely affected by difficulties or delays in product development, such as an inability
to develop viable new products, gain market acceptance of new products, generate sufficient capital to fund new product
development, or obtain adequate intellectual property protection for new products. To meet ever- changing consumer demands,
both timing of market entry and pricing of new products are critical. For example As-a+esult-, we launched our Balise brand,
an all- new, independent pontoon brand in April 2024. The introduction of this new brand or other new products may
not be-abte-meet consumer demands to the extent introduee-new-produetsthatare-nccessary to remainr-keep us competitive in
all markets that we serve. Furthermore, we must continue to meet or exceed consumers = expectations regarding product quality
and after- sales service or our operating results could suffer . Divestitures and other strategic transactions, such as the
Aviara Transaction, may materially and adversely affect our business or results of operations. We continually evaluate
the performance, capital needs and strategic fit of all of our segments and, as a result of such evaluation, may sell some
or all of the assets and equity interests in a particular segment or components of a segment. In August 2024, we entered
into the Aviara Asset Exchange Agreement pursuant to which we will transfer the rights to the Aviara brand and certain
related assets to a third party. The Aviara Transaction and any future divestitures involve risks, including difficulties in
the separation of operations, services, products and personnel. We cannot assure you that we will be successful in
managing these or any other significant risks that we may encounter related to the Aviara Transaction or any other
divestiture of a segment or component of a segment. In addition, while we expect the Aviara Transaction to close in the
first quarter of fiscal 2025, there can be no assurance that the transaction will close on the expected timeline, or at all. In
connection with the Aviara Transaction, we announced that, following closing, we plan to close our Aviara production
facility in Merritt Island, Florida and offer the facility for sale on the open market. There can be no assurance that our
selling efforts will be successful. Any divestiture and related actions we undertake could materially and adversely affect
our business, reputation, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows, and may also result in a diversion of
management’ s attention, operational difficulties and losses . Our financial results may be adversely affected by our third-
party suppliers & increased costs or inability to adjust for our required production levels due to changes in demand or global
supply chain disruptions. We rely on a complex global supply chain of third parties to supply raw materials used in the
manufacturing process, including resins, fiberglass, aluminum, lumber and steel, as well as product parts and components. The




prices for these raw materials, parts, and components fluctuate depending on market conditions and, in some instances,
commodity prices or trade policies, including tariffs. Substantial increases in the prices of raw materials, parts, and components
would increase our operating costs, and could reduce our profitability if we are unable to recoup the increased costs through
higher product prices or improved operating efficiencies. Similarly, if a critical supplier were to close its operations, cease
manufacturing, or otherwise fail to deliver an essential component necessary to our manufacturing operations, that could
detrimentally affect our ability to manufacture and sell our products, resulting in an interruption in business operations and / or a
loss of sales. In addition, engines used in the manufacturing processes of certain segments are available from a sole- source
supplier. Other components used in our manufacturing process, such as boat windshields, towers, and surf tabs may only be
available from a limited number of suppliers. Operational and financial difficulties that these or other suppliers may face in the
future could adversely affect their ability to supply us with the parts and components we need, which could significantly disrupt
our operations. It may be difficult to find a replacement supplier for a limited or sole source raw material, part, or component
without significant delay or on commercially reasonable terms. In addition, an uncorrected defect or supplier -’ s variation in a
raw material, part, or component, either unknown to us or incompatible with our manufacturing process, could jeopardize our
ability to manufacture products. Some additional supply chain disruptions that could impact our operations, impair our ability to
deliver products to customers, and negatively affect our financial results include: * an outbreak of disease or facility closures due
to public health threats; * a deterioration of our relationships with suppliers; * events such as natural disasters, power outages, or
labor strikes; ¢ financial or political instability in any of the countries in which our suppliers operate; * financial pressures on our
suppliers due to a weakening economy or unfavorable conditions in other end markets; * supplier manufacturing constraints and
investment requirements; or ¢ termination or interruption of supply arrangements. These risks are exacerbated in the case of
single- source suppliers, and the exclusive supplier of a key component could potentially exert significant bargaining power over
price, quality, warranty claims, or other terms. We continue to evaluate and shift production; consequently, our need for raw
materials and supplies continues to fluctuate. Our suppliers must be prepared to shift operations and, in some cases, hire
additional workers and / or expand capacity in order to fulfill our orders and those of other customers. Cost increases, defects, or
sustained interruptions in the supply of raw materials, parts, or components due to delayed start- up periods, or sudden changes
in requirements, our suppliers experience as they shift production efforts create risks to our operations and financial results. The
Company has experienced periodic supply shortages and increases in costs to certain materials. We continue to address these
issues by identifying alternative suppliers for key materials and components, working to secure adequate inventories of critical
supplies, and continually monitoring the capabilities of our supplier base. In the future, however, we may experience shortages,
delayed delivery, and / or increased prices for key materials, parts, and supplies that are essential to our manufacturing
operations. Our business and operations are dependent on the expertise of our key contributors, our successful implementation
of succession plans, and our ability to attract and retain management employees and skilled labor. The talents and efforts of our
employees, particularly key managers, are vital to our success. We have observed an overall tightening and increasingly
competitive labor market in recent years, which could inhibit our ability to recruit, train and retain employees we require at
efficient costs and could lead to increased costs, such as increased overtime to meet demand and increased wage rates to attract
and retain employees. Our management team has significant industry experience and would be difficult to replace. We may be
unable to retain them or to attract other highly qualified employees. Failure to hire, develop, and retain highly qualified and
diverse employee talent and to develop and implement an adequate succession plan for the management team could disrupt our
operations and adversely affect our business and our future success. We perform an annual review of management succession
plans with our board of directors (the “ Board ), including reviewing executive officer and other important positions to
substantially mitigate the risk associated with key contributor transitions , such as our Chief Executive Officer leadership
transition in fiscal 2024 , but we cannot ensure that all transitions will be implemented successfully. Our ability to continue to
execute our growth strategy could potentially be adversely affected by the effectiveness of organizational changes. Any
disruption or uncertainty resulting from such changes could have a material adverse impact on our business, results of
operations, and financial condition. Much of our future success depends on, among other factors, our ability to attract and retain
skilled labor, which is critical to our operations. We may experience difficulty maintaining desired staffing levels due to
increased competition for employees, higher employee turnover rates and low unemployment rates in many of the geographic
areas in which we manufacture or distribute goods. We continually invest in automation and improve our efficiency, but
availability and retention of skilled hourly workers remains critical to our operations. In order to manage this risk, we regularly
monitor and make improvements to wages and benefit programs, as well as develop and improve recruiting, training, and safety
programs to attract and retain an experienced and skilled workforce . We depend on our network of...... our products and our
results of operations . We may be required to repurchase inventory of certain dealers. Floor plan financing arrangements with
third- party finance companies enable dealers to purchase our products. In connection with these agreements, we may have an
obligation to repurchase our products from a finance company under certain circumstances. This obligation is triggered if a
dealer defaults on its debt obligations to a finance company. In addition, applicable laws regulating dealer relations may also
require us to repurchase our products from our dealers under certain circumstances. In such circumstances, we may not have any
control over the timing or amount of any repurchase obligation nor have access to capital on terms acceptable to us to satisfy any
repurchase obligation. If we were obligated to repurchase a significant number of units under any repurchase agreement or under
applicable dealer laws, our business, operating results, financial condition and cash flows could be adversely affected. Future
declines in marine industry demand could cause an increase in repurchase activity or could require us to incur losses in excess of
established reserves. In addition, our cash flow and loss experience could be adversely affected if repurchased inventory is not
successfully distributed to other dealers in a timely manner, or if the recovery rate on the resale of the product declines. The
finance companies could require changes in repurchase terms that would result in an increase in our contractual obligations. Our
industry is characterized by intense competition, which affects our sales and profits. The premium performance sport boat,



outboard, and sterndrive boat categories and the powerboat industry as a whole are highly competitive for consumers and
dealers. We also compete against consumer demand for used boats. Competition affects our ability to succeed in both the
markets we currently serve and new markets that we may enter in the future. Competition is based primarily on brand name,
price, product selection, and product performance. We compete with several large manufacturers that may have greater
financial, marketing, and other resources than we do and who are represented by dealers in the markets in which we now
operate and into which we plan to expand. We also compete with a variety of small, independent manufacturers. We cannot
provide assurance that we will not face greater competition from existing large or small manufacturers or that we will be able to
compete successfully with new competitors. Our failure to compete effectively with our current and future competitors would

adversely affect our bus1ness financial condition, and results of operatlons —We-compete-with-a-variety-of other-aetivities-for
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supply of new boats by competitors in excess of demand. During an economic downturn, we could experience a shift in
consumer demand toward purchasing more used boats, primarily because prices for used boats are typically lower than retail
prices for new boats. If this were to occur, it could have the effect of reducing demand among retail purchasers for our new
boats. Also, while we have taken steps designed to balance production volumes for our boats with demand, our competitors
could choose to reduce the price of their products, which could have the effect of reducing demand for our new boats. In
addition, as previously mentioned, a shift from traditional fuel- powered boats to electric boats, alternative fuel- powered boats,
or other technologies could reduce demand for our boats. Reduced demand for new boats could lead to reduced sales by us,
which could adversely affect our business, results of operations, and financial condition. Significant product repair and / or
replacement due to product warranty claims or product recalls could have a material adverse impact on our results of operations.
We provide a limited warranty for our products. We may provide additional warranties related to certain promotional programs,
as well as warranties in certain geographical markets as determined by local regulations and market conditions. Although we
employ quality control procedures, sometimes a product is distributed that needs repair or replacement. Our standard warranties
require us or our dealers to repair or replace defective products during such warranty periods at no cost to the consumer.
Historically, product recalls have been administered through our dealers and distributors. The repair and replacement costs we
could incur in connection with a recall could adversely affect our business. In addition, product recalls could harm our reputation
and cause us to lose consumers, particularly if recalls cause consumers to question the safety or reliability of our products. An
inability to identify and complete targeted acquisitions , as well as an inability to timely and successfully integrate completed
acquisitions, could negatively impact financial results. We may in the future explore acquisitions and strategic alliances that
will enable us to acquire complementary skills and capabilities, offer new products, expand our consumer base, enter new
product categories or geographic markets, and obtain other competitive advantages. We cannot provide assurance, however, that
we will identify acquisition candidates or strategic partners that are suitable to our business, obtain financing on satisfactory
terms, or complete acquisitions or strategic alliances. In managing our acquisition strategy, we conduct rigorous due diligence,
involve various functions, and continually review target acquisitions, all of which we believe mitigates some of our acquisition
risks. However, we cannot assure that suitable acquisitions will be identified or consummated or that, if consummated, they will
be successful. Acquisitions include a number of risks, including our ability to project and evaluate market demand, realize
potential synergies and cost savings, and make accurate accounting estimates, as well as diversion of management attention.
Uncertainties exist in assessing the value, risks, profitability, and liabilities associated with certain companies or assets,
negotiating acceptable terms, obtaining financing on acceptable terms, and receiving any necessary regulatory approvals. As we
continue to grow, in part, through acquisitions, our success depends on our ability to anticipate and effectively manage these
risks. Our failure to successfully do so could have a rnaterral adverse effect on our ﬁnancral condrtron and results of operations.
Additionally, The-ins y srate-a : ;
acquisitions once complete pose lntegratlon rrsks such as our ab111ty to prOJect and evaluate market demand maximize
potential synergies and cost savings; make accurate accounting estimates; and achieve anticipated business objectives.
Acquisitions we may complete in the future, present these and other integration risks, including: ¢ the possibility that the
expected synergies and value creation will not be realized or will not be realized within the expected time period; ¢ the risk that
unexpected costs and liabilities will be incurred; * diversion of management attention; and ¢ difficulties retaining employees. If
we fail to timely and successfully integrate new businesses into existing operations, we may see higher costs, lost sales, or
otherwise diminished earnings and financial results. Negative public perception of our products, our environmental, social and
governance (ESQG) practices or restrictions on the access or the use of our products in certain locations could materially
adversely affect our business or results of operations. Demand for our products depends in part on their acceptance by the public.
Public concerns about the environmental impact of our products or their perceived safety, or our ESG practices generally, could
result in diminished public perception of the products we sell. Government, media, or activist pressure to limit emissions could
also negatively impact consumers’ perceptions of our products. Any decline in the public acceptance of our products could
negatively impact their sales or lead to changes in laws, rules and regulations that prevent access to certain locations or restrict
use or manner of use in certain areas or during certain times, which could also negatively impact sales. Any material decline in
the public acceptance of our products could impact our ability to retain existing consumers or attract new ones which, in turn,
could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations or financial condition. Our business operations could
be negatively impacted by an outage or breach of our information technology systems, network disruptions, or a cybersecurity
event. We manage our business operations through a variety of information technology systems and their underlying
infrastructure, which we continually enhance to increase efficiency and security. In addition to the disruptions in our information




technology systems, cybersecurity threats and sophisticated and targeted cyberattacks pose a risk to our information technology
systems. We have established security policies, processes, and defenses, including employee awareness training regarding
phishing, malware, and other cyber risks, designed to help identify and protect against intentional and unintentional
misappropriation or corruption of our information technology systems and information and disruption of our operations.
Additionally, we maintain quarterly discussions with our beard-Board ef-direetors-to address cyber risks and system and process
enhancements. Despite these efforts, our information technology systems may be damaged, disrupted, or shut down due to
attacks by unauthorized access, malicious software, computer viruses, undetected intrusion, hardware failures, or other events,
and in these circumstances our disaster recovery plans may be ineffective or inadequate. The techniques and sophistication
used to conduct cyberattacks and breaches of information technology systems change frequently, including as a result of
the deployment of evolving artificial intelligence and machine learning tools used to identify vulnerabilities and create
more effective phishing attempts, and have the potential to not be recognized until such attacks are launched or have
been in place for a period of time. These breaches or intrusions could lead to business interruption, exposure of proprietary or
confidential information, data corruption, damage to our reputation, exposure to legal and regulatory proceedings, and other
costs . Further, while we perform due diligence prior to acquisitions and take actions to safeguard the businesses that we
acquire, these businesses may not have invested as significantly as we do in security and technology and may be more
susceptible to cybersecurity incidents, which may make us more vulnerable to cybersecurity incidents as well . A security
breach might also lead to violations of privacy laws, regulations, trade guidelines or practices related to our customers and
associates and could result in potential claims from customers, associates, shareholders, or regulatory agencies. Any failure to
maintain compliance with such laws, regulations, trade guidelines or practices may cause us to incur significant penalties and
generate negative publicity, and may require us to change our business practices, increase our costs or otherwise adversely affect
our business. Such events could adversely impact our reputation, business, financial position, results of operations, and cash
flows. In addition, we could be adversely affected if any of our significant customers or suppliers experiences any similar events
that disrupt their business operations or damage their reputation. While we maintain monitoring practices and protections of our
information technology to reduce these risks and test our systems on an ongoing basis for potential threats, there can be no
assurance that these efforts will prevent a cyber- attack or other security breach. We carry cybersecurity insurance to help
mitigate the financial exposure and related notification procedures in the event of intentional intrusion; however, there can be no
assurance that our insurance will adequately protect against potential losses that could adversely affect our business. We rely on
third parties for computing, storage, processing, and similar services. Any disruption of or interference with our use of these
third- party services could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and operating results. Many of our
business systems reside on third- party outsourced cloud infrastructure providers. We are therefore vulnerable to service
interruptions experienced by these providers and could experience interruptions, delays, or outages in service availability in the
future due to a variety of factors, including infrastructure changes, human, hardware or software errors, hosting disruptions, and
capacity constraints. While we have mitigation and service redundancy plans in place, outages and / or capacity constraints
could still arise from a number of causes such as technical failures, natural disasters, fraud, or internal or third- party security
attacks, which could negatively impact our ability to manufacture and / or operate our business. Our credit facilities contain
covenants which may limit our operating flexibility; failure to comply with covenants may result in our lenders restricting or
terminating our ability to borrow under such credit facilities. In the past, we have relied on our existing credit facilities to
provide us with adequate liquidity to operate our business. The availability of borrowing amounts under our credit facilities is
dependent on compliance with the debt covenants set forth in our credit agreement , which at times we may seek to
proactively amend based on our future outlook . Violatienrefthese-If we are unable to update our covenants or otherwise
violate existing covenants, whether as a result of operating losses or otherwise, eetteresatttmour lenders may restrieting—--
restrict or terminating-terminate our borrowing ability under our credit facilities. If our lenders reduce or terminate our access
to amounts under our credit facilities, we may not have sufficient capital to fund our working capital and other needs, and we
may need to secure additional capital or financing to fund our operations or to repay outstanding debt under our credit facilities.
We cannot provide assurance that we will be successful in ensuring the availability of amounts under our credit facilities or in
raising additional capital, or that any amount, if raised, will be sufficient to meet our cash needs or will be on terms as favorable
as those which have been available to us historically. If we are not able to maintain our ability to borrow under our credit
facilities, or to raise additional capital when needed, our business and operations will be materially adversely affected. Actual or
potential public health emergencies, epidemics, or pandemics ;steh-as-the-COVID-—9-pandemiescould have a material adverse
effect on our business, results of operations, or financial condition. The impact of actual or potential public health emergencies,
epidemics, or pandemics on us the-Cempany-, our suppliers, dealers, and consumers, and the general economy could be wide-
ranging and significant, depending on the nature of the issue, governmental actions taken in response, and the public reaction.
The impact of such events could include employee illness, quarantines, cancellation of events and travel, business and school
shutdowns, reduction in economic activity, widespread unemployment, and supply chain interruptions, which collectively could
cause significant disruptions to global economies and financial markets. In addition, these events could result in future
significant volatility in demand, positively or negatively, for our products. Demand volatility may be caused by, among other
things: the temporary inability of consumers to purchase our products due to illness, quarantine, or other travel restrictions;
dealership closures due to illness or government restrictions; a reduction in boating activity as a result of governmental actions or
self- quarantine measures; shifts in demand away from discretionary products; and reduced options for marketing and promotion
of products. If such events occur over a prolonged period, they could increase our costs and difficulty of operating our business,
including accurately planning and forecasting for our operations and inventory levels, which may adversely impact our results.
Fhe-cOVID-—19-Potential public health emergencies, epidemics, or pandemie-pandemics could resulted—- result in
disruption, uncertainty, and volatility in the global financial and credit markets ;-and-simiarfatare-events-eould-to-thesame-.



Such volatility could impact our access to capital resources and liquidity in the future, including making credit difficult to obtain
or only available on less favorable terms. The impact on our operations could also be material. For example, we could
experience absenteeism caused by illness or quarantine measures. Additionally, we rely on original equipment manufacturers,
dealers, and distributors to market and sell most of our products, and effects on their businesses or financial condition as a result
of future pandemics could result in various adverse operational impacts including, but not limited to, lower sales, delayed cash
payments, interrupted customer warranty service, and increased credit risk. Risks Relating to Intellectual Property Our success
depends on the continued strength of our brands and the value of our brands, and sales of our products could be diminished if
we, the athletes who use our products, or the sports and activities in which our products are used are associated with negative
publicity. We believe that our brands are a significant contributor to the success of our business and that maintaining and
enhancing our brands is important to expanding our consumer and dealer base. Failure to continue to protect our brands ,
including our Balise brand for which intellectual property protection is still pending, may adversely affect our business,
financial condition, and results of operations. Negative publicity, including that resulting from severe injuries or death occurring
in the sports and activities in which our products are used, could negatively affect our reputation and result in restrictions,
recalls, or bans on the use of our products. Further, actions taken by athletes associated with our products that harm the
reputations of those athletes could also harm our brand image and adversely affect our financial condition. If the popularity of
the sports and activities for which we design, manufacture, and sell products were to decrease as a result of these risks or any
negative publicity, sales of our products could decrease, which could have an adverse effect on our net sales, profitability, and
operating results. In addition, if we become exposed to additional claims and litigation relating to the use of our products, our
reputation may be adversely affected by such claims, whether or not successful, including by generating potential negative
publicity about our products, which could adversely impact our business and financial condition. Our intellectual property rights
may be inadequate to protect our business. We rely on a combination of patents, trademarks, copyrights, protected design, and
trade secret laws; employee and third- party non- disclosure agreements; and other contracts to establish and protect our
technology and other intellectual property rights. However, we remain subject to risks, including: * the steps we take to protect
our proprietary technology may be inadequate to prevent misappropriation of our technology; ¢ third parties may independently
develop similar technology; * agreements containing protections may be breached or terminated; « we may not have adequate
remedies for breaches; * pending patent, trademark, and copyright applications may not be approved; ¢ existing patent,
trademark, copyright, and trade secret laws may afford limited protection; * a third party could copy or otherwise obtain and use
our products or technology without authorization; or « we may be required to litigate to enforce our intellectual property rights,
and we may not be successful. Policing unauthorized use of our intellectual property is difficult and litigating intellectual
property claims may result in substantial cost and divert management’ s attention. In addition, we may be required to defend our
products against patent or other intellectual property infringement claims or litigation. Besides defense expenses and costs, we
may not prevail in such cases, forcing us to seek licenses or royalty arrangements from third parties, which we may not be able
to obtain on reasonable terms, or subjecting us to an order or requirement to stop manufacturing, using, selling, or distributing
products that included challenged intellectual property, which could harm our business and financial results. If third parties
claim that we infringe on their intellectual property rights, our financial condition could be adversely affected. We face the risk
of claims that we have infringed third parties’ intellectual property rights. Any claims of patent or other intellectual property
infringement, even those without merit, could be expensive and time consuming to defend, cause us to cease making, licensing,
or using products that incorporate the challenged intellectual property, require us to redesign, re- engineer, or re- brand our
products, if feasible, divert management’ s attention and resources, or require us to enter into royalty or licensing agreements in
order to obtain the right to use a third party”’ s intellectual property. Any royalty or licensing agreements, if required, may not be
available to us on acceptable terms or at all. A successful claim of infringement against us could result in our being required to
pay significant damages, enter into costly license or royalty agreements, or stop the sale of certain products, any of which could
have a negative impact on our business, financial condition, and results of operations. While we are not currently involved in
any outstanding intellectual property litigation that we believe, individually or in the aggregate, will have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition, or results of operations, we cannot predict the outcome of any pending litigation and
an unfavorable outcome could have an adverse impact on our business, financial condition, or results of operations. Risks
Relating to Our Regulatory, Accounting, Legal, and Tax Environment International tariffs could materially and adversely affect
our business and results of operations. Changes in laws and policies governing foreign trade could adversely affect our business.
The institution of global trade tariffs, trade sanctions, new or onerous trade restrictions, embargoes and other stringent
government controls carries the risk of negatively affecting global economic conditions, which could have a negative impact on
our business and results of operations. Also, certain foreign governments have imposed tariffs on certain U. S. goods and may
take additional retaliatory trade actions stemming from the tariffs, which could increase the pricing of our products and result in
decreased consumer demand for our products outside of the United States, which could materially and adversely affect our
business and results of operations. In addition, U. S. initiated tariffs on certain foreign goods, including raw materials,
commodities, and products manufactured outside the United States that are used in our manufacturing processes may cause our
manufacturing cost to rise, which would have a negative impact on our business and results of operations. An impairment in the
carrying value of goodwill, trade names, and other long- lived assets could negatively affect our consolidated results of
operations and net worth. Goodwill and indefinite- lived intangible assets, such as our trade names, are recorded at fair value at
the time of acquisition and are not amortized, but are reviewed for impairment at least annually or more frequently if
impairment indicators arise. In evaluating the potential for impairment of goodwill and trade names, we make assumptions
regarding future operating performance, business trends, and market and economic conditions. Such analyses further require us
to make certain assumptions about sales, operating margins, growth rates, and discount rates. Uncertainties are inherent in
evaluating and applying these factors to the assessment of goodwill and trade name recoverability. We could be required to



evaluate the recoverability of goodwill or trade names prior to the annual assessment if we experience business disruptions,
unexpected significant declines in operating results, a divestiture of a significant component of our business, or declines in
market capitalization. We also continually evaluate whether events or circumstances have occurred that indicate the remaining
estimated useful lives of our definite- lived intangible assets and other long- lived assets may warrant revision or whether the
remaining balance of such assets may not be recoverable. We use an estimate of the related undiscounted cash flow over the
remaining life of the asset in measuring whether the asset is recoverable. During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2024, we
identified an indication of impairment related to the Aviara segment’ s property, plant, equipment and inventory. As a
result, we recognized an impairment charge of $ 9. 8 million, which adjusted the related assets to their estimated fair
value. See Notes S and 6 for further information related to the impairment analysis. As of June 30, 2623-2024 , the balance
of total goodwill and indefinite lived intangible assets was $ 54. 5 million, which represents approximately +5-17 percent of total
assets. If the future operating performance of either the Company or individual operating segments is not sufficient, we could be
required to record non- cash impairment charges. Impairment charges could substantially affect our reported earnings in the
periods such charges are recorded. In addition, impairment charges could indicate a reduction in business value which could
limit our ability to obtain adequate financing in the future. Compliance with environmental, health, safety, and other regulatory
requirements may increase costs and reduce demand for our products. We are subject to federal, state, local, and foreign laws
and regulations, including those concerning product safety, environmental protection, and occupational health and safety. Some
of these laws and regulations require us to obtain permits and limit our ability to discharge hazardous materials into the
environment. Failure to comply with these requirements could result in the assessment of fines and penalties, obligations to
conduct remedial or corrective actions, or, in extreme circumstances, revocation of our permits or injunctions preventing some or
all of our operations. In addition, the components of our boats must meet certain regulatory standards, including stringent air
emission standards for boat engines. Failure to meet these standards could result in an inability to sell our boats in key markets,
which would adversely affect our business. Moreover, compliance with these regulatory requirements could increase the cost of
our products, which in turn, may reduce consumer demand. While we believe that we are in compliance with applicable federal,
state, local, and foreign regulatory requirements, and hold all licenses and permits required thereunder, we cannot provide
assurance that we will, at all times, be able to continue to comply with applicable regulatory requirements. Compliance with
increasingly stringent regulatory and permit requirements may, in the future, cause us to incur substantial capital costs and
increase our cost of operations, or may limit our operations, all of which could have a material adverse effect on our business or
financial condition. Our manufacturing processes involve the use, handling, storage, and contracting for recycling or disposal of
hazardous substances and wastes. The failure to manage or dispose of such hazardous substances and wastes properly could
expose us to material liability or fines, including liability for personal injury or property damage due to exposure to hazardous
substances, damages to natural resources, or for the investigation and remediation of environmental conditions. Under
environmental laws, we may be liable for remediation of contamination at sites where our hazardous wastes have been disposed
or at our current or former facilities, regardless of whether such facilities are owned or leased or regardless of whether we were
at fault. While we do not believe that we are presently subject to any such liabilities, we cannot assure you that environmental
conditions relating to our prior, existing, or future sites or operations or those of predecessor companies will not have a material
adverse effect on our business or financial condition. Additionally, we are subject to laws governing our relationships with
employees, including, but not limited to, employment obligations and employee wage, hour, and benefits issues, such as health
care benefits. Compliance with these rules and regulations, and compliance with any changes to current regulations, could
increase the cost of our operations. We manufacture and sell products that create exposure to potential claims and litigation. Our
manufacturing operations and the products we produce could result in product quality, warranty, personal injury, property
damage, and other issues, thereby increasing the risk of litigation and potential liability, as well as regulatory fines. We have in
the past incurred such liabilities and may in the future be exposed to liability for such claims. We maintain product and general
liability insurance of the types and in the amounts that we believe are customary for the industry. However, we may experience
material losses in the future, incur significant costs to defend claims or issue product recalls, experience claims in excess of our
insurance coverage or that are not covered by insurance, or be subjected to fines or penalties. Our reputation may be adversely
affected by such claims, whether or not successful, including potential negative publicity about our products. In addition, if any
of our products are, or are alleged to be, defective, we may be required to participate in a recall of that product if the defect or
alleged defect relates to safety. These and other claims we may face could be costly to us and require substantial management
attention. The nature of our business exposes us to workers’ compensation claims and other workplace liabilities. Certain
materials we use require our employees to handle potentially hazardous or toxic substances. While our employees who handle
these and other potentially hazardous or toxic materials receive specialized training and wear protective clothing, there is still a
risk that they, or others, may be exposed to these substances. Exposure to these substances could result in significant injury to
our employees and damage to our property or the property of others, including natural resource damage. Our personnel are also
at risk for other workplace related injuries, including slips and falls. We have in the past been, and may in the future be, subject
to fines, penalties, and other liabilities in connection with any such injury or damage. Although we currently maintain what we
believe to be suitable and adequate insurance in excess of our self- insured amounts, we may be unable to maintain such
insurance on acceptable terms or such insurance may not provide adequate protection against potential liabilities. Increases in
income tax rates or changes in income tax laws or enforcement could have a material adverse impact on our financial results.
Changes in domestic and international tax legislation could expose us to additional tax liability. Although we monitor changes
in tax laws and work to mitigate the impact of proposed changes, such changes may negatively impact our financial results. In
addition, increases in individual income tax rates would negatively affect our potential consumers’ discretionary income and
could decrease the demand for our products. Risks Relating to Ownership of our Common Stock Inefficient or ineffective
allocation of capital could adversely affect our operating results and / or steekhetder-shareholder value. We strive to allocate



capital in a manner that enhances steelholder-shareholder value, lowers our cost of capital, or demonstrates our commitment to
return excess capital to stoeldrolders-shareholders , while maintaining our ability to invest in strategic growth opportunities. In
July 2023, the board-Board ofdireetors-ofthe-Company-authorized a new share repurchase program under which the Company
may repurchase up to $ 50 million of its outstanding shares of common stock. The new authorization sw-beeome-became
effective upon the expiration of the Company +* s previously existing $ 50 million share repurchase authorization. The
Company intends to purchase shares under the repurchase authorization from time to time on the open market at the discretion of
management, subject to strategic considerations, market conditions, and other factors. Repurchases under our share repurchase
program will reduce the market liquidity for our stock, potentially affecting its trading volatility and price. Future share
repurchases will also diminish our cash reserves, which may impact our ability to pursue attractive strategic opportunities.
Therefore, if we do not properly allocate our capital or implement a successful cash management strategy, including with respect
to returning value to our steekhotders-shareholders through this share repurchase authorization, we may fail to produce optimal
financial results and experience a reduction in steekholder-shareholder value. Shareholders may be diluted by future issuances
of common stock in connection with our incentive plans, acquisitions, or otherwise; future sales of such shares in the public
market, or the expectations that such sales may occur, could lower our stock price. Our amended and restated certificate of
incorporation authorizes us to issue shares of common stock and options, rights, warrants, and appreciation rights relating to
common stock for the consideration and on the terms and conditions established by our beard-Board efdireetors-in its sole
discretion, whether in connection with acquisitions or otherwise. Any common stock that we issue, including under our 2015
Incentive Award Plan or other equity incentive plans that we may adopt in the future, would dilute the percentage ownership of
holders of our common stock. We currently do not intend to pay dividends on our common stock. While we have paid dividends
in the past, we currently have no intention to pay dividends on our common stock. Any decision to declare and pay dividends in
the future will be made at the discretion of our beard-Board efdireetors-and will depend on, among other things, our results of
operations, financial condition, cash requirements, contractual restrictions, and other factors that our beard-Board ef-direeters
may deem relevant. Furthermore, our ability to declare and pay dividends may be limited by instruments governing future
outstanding indebtedness we may incur. Certain activist shareholder actions could cause us to incur expense and hinder
execution of our strategy. We actively engage in discussions with our shareholders regarding further strengthening our Company
and creating long- term shareholder value. This ongoing dialogue can include certain divisive activist tactics, which can take
many forms. Some shareholder activism, including potential proxy contests, could result in substantial costs, such as legal fees
and expenses, and divert management’ s and our beard-Board efdireetor-’ s attention and resources from our businesses and
strategic plans. Additionally, public shareholder activism could give rise to perceived uncertainties as to our future, adversely
affect our relationships with dealers, distributors, or consumers, make it more difficult to attract and retain qualified personnel,
and cause our stock price to fluctuate based on temporary or speculative market perceptions or other factors that do not
necessarily reflect the underlying fundamentals and prospects of our business. Activists or other shareholders holding a large
portion of our outstanding shares will also have the ability to exert a substantial influence on actions requiring a
shareholder vote, potentially in a manner that you do not support, including the election of directors, the approval of
mergers, acquisitions, and other significant business transactions, shareholder proposals, and amendments to our
governing documents. As a result, we may determine that implementing certain protective measures, such as a
shareholder rights plan, is necessary in order to protect the interests of other shareholders and to preserve long- term
value. These risks could adversely affect our business and operating results. [ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS.
None. ITEM 1C. CYBERSECURITY Cybersecurity Risk Management and Strategy We have developed and
implemented a cybersecurity risk management program intended to protect the confidentiality, integrity and availability
of our critical systems and information. Our security approach is aligned with applicable security and / or technical
requirements and best practices established by multiple cybersecurity frameworks, such as the National Institute of
Standards and Technology Cybersecurity Framework (NIST CSF) and ISO 27001. This does not imply that we meet any
particular technical standards, specifications or requirements, only that our information security team uses the NIST
CSF, ISO 27001 and other frameworks as guides to help us identify, assess, and manage cybersecurity risks relevant to
our business. Our cybersecurity risk management program is integrated into our overall enterprise risk management
program, and shares common methodologies, reporting channels and governance processes that apply across our
enterprise risk management program to other legal, compliance, strategic, operational and financial risk areas. Our
cybersecurity risk management program includes: ¢ risk assessments designed to help identify material cybersecurity
risks to our critical systems, information, products, services and our broader enterprise IT environment; ¢ a security
team principally responsible for managing (i) our cybersecurity risk assessment processes, (ii) our security controls and
(iii) our response to cybersecurity incidents;  the use of external service providers, where appropriate, to assess, test or
otherwise assist with aspects of our security controls; * cybersecurity awareness training of our employees, incident
response personnel and senior management, regarding phishing, malware and other cyber risks; ¢ a cybersecurity
incident response plan that includes procedures for responding to cybersecurity incidents; and ¢ a third- party risk
management process for service providers, suppliers and vendors. We have not identified risks from known
cybersecurity threats that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect us, including our
operations, business strategy, results of operations or financial condition. See Part 1, Item 1A. “ Risk Factors- Risks
Related to Our Business — Our business operations could be negatively impacted by an outage or breach of our
information technology systems, network disruptions, or a cybersecurity event. ” Cybersecurity Governance Our Board
considers cybersecurity risk as part of its risk oversight function and has delegated to the Audit Committee (the *
Committee ) oversight of cybersecurity and other information technology risks. The Committee oversees management’
s implementation of our cybersecurity risk management program. The Committee receives quarterly reports from



management on our cybersecurity risks, and also receives, at least annually, a detailed briefing from management on our
cyber risk management program’ s status including all strategic initiatives. In addition, management updates the
Committee, as necessary, regarding potentially significant cybersecurity incidents consistent with written escalation
protocols, as well as incidents with lesser potential impact. The Committee members also receive presentations on
cybersecurity topics from our Chief Information Officer (“ CIO ”), who also serves as our Chief Information Technology
Architect & Chief Information Security Officer (“ CISO ”), internal security staff or external experts as part of the
Board’ s continuing education on topics that impact public companies. The Committee reports to the full Board
regarding its activities, including those related to cybersecurity. The full Board also receives briefings from management
on our cyber risk management program. Our cybersecurity management team, lead by our CIO, supervises efforts to
prevent, detect, mitigate, and remediate cybersecurity risks and incidents through various means, which may include
briefings from internal security personnel; threat intelligence and other information obtained from governmental, public
or private sources, including external consultants engaged by us, and reports produced by security tools deployed in the
IT environment. Our CIO reports to the Company’ s Chief Executive Officer, as well as to the Board and Audit
Committee. The CIO has served as our CISO for three years and has more than 20 years of experience in various roles
involving managing cybersecurity functions, developing strategies to protect privacy, customer safety and intellectual
property, and developing key capabilities such as product security engineering, risk management and cybersecurity
governance. The CIO holds a bachelor’ s degree in computer science and various certifications which include Certified
Ethical Hacker and Certified Chief Information Security Officer, and has 25- plus years of previous software and
hardware systems engineering experience. ITEM 2. PROPERTIES. As of June 30, 2023-2024 , all our MasterCraft boats and
trailers are manufactured and lake- tested at our 310, 000 square- foot manufacturing facility located on approximately 60 acres
of lakefront land in Vonore, Tennessee. We also lease a 3, 000 square- foot warehouse facility in West Yorkshire, England for
warehousing of parts. All our Crest and Balise boats are manufactured in our 270, 000 square- foot manufacturing facility
located on approximately 63 acres in Owosso, Michigan. All esr-Aviara boats are manufactured in our +36-160 , 000 square-
foot manufacturing facility on approximately 38 acres in Merritt Island, Florida . As previously noted, we plan to close the
Aviara production facility and offer the property for open market sale following closing of the Aviara Transaction .
ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS. For a discussion of the Company’ s legal proceedings, see Part [V — Item 15. — Note 12
Commitments and Contingencies to the Company’ s Consolidated Financial Statements. ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY
DISCLOSURES. Not applicable. PART II ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’ S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES. Market Information Our common
stock has been publicly traded on the NASDAQ Global Market under the symbol “ MCFT ” since July 17, 2015. Prior to that
time, there was no public market for our common stock. As of August 2523 , 2623-2024 , we had approximately +2-20
registered holders per our transfer agent and 9 , 666-100 beneficial holders of record of our common stock. Dividends We
presently do not anticipate declaring or paying cash dividends on our common stock. Any future determination as to the
declaration and payment of dividends, will be at the discretion of our beard-Board efdireeters-and will depend on then- existing
conditions, including our operating results, financial condition, contractual restrictions, capital requirements, business prospects,
and other factors our beard-Board ef-direetors-may deem relevant. See Item 1A “ Risk Factors — Risks Relating to Ownership
of Our Common Stock. ™ Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities On June 24, 2021, the beard-Board ef-direetors-ofthe-Company
authorized a steekeshare repurchase program that alews-allowed for the repurchase of up to $ 50. 0 million of our common
stock during the three- year period ending June 24, 2024. As of June 30, 2023, $ 1. 6 million remained available under this
program, all of which was fully utilized during the fiscal 2024 first quarter ended October 1, 2023. On July 24, 2023, the
Board authorized a new share repurchase program under which the Company may repurchase up to $ 50. 0 million of
its outstanding shares of common stock. The new authorization became effective upon the completion of the Company’ s
prior $ 50. 0 million stock repurchase authorization. As of June 30, 2024, $ 35. 4 million remained available under the
new authorization. During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 and2022-, we repurchased approximately $ 16. 3
mllllon and $22. 9 million aﬂd%%%—mﬁ-heﬂ-of our common stock, respectively —As-ofJune-30;,2023;the-remaining

A e 8 r-. During the three months ended June 30, 2623-2024 | the
Company repuwhdsed the follovx ing shares of common stock Period Total Number of Shares Purchased Average Price Paid Per
Share (a) (b) Total Number of Shares Purchased as part of Publicly Announced Program Approximate Dollar Value of Shares
that May Yet be Purchased Under the Plan (dollars in thousands) April 3-1 , 2623-2024 - April 36-28 , 2623-2024 59-22 , 396
400 $ 20. 79 22, 400 $ 39, 452 April 29 —29-55-, %96—$—6—867—Ma—y—1%92—3—2024 May 28-26 , 26232024 H2-113 , 49628448
20 . 241234 113 , 4963448 37 , 696-145 May 29-27 , 2623-2024 - June 30, 2623-2024 74-85 , 550 20. 46 85, 550 375-- 35 2%
6374, 394 3—7’5—1—634—T0tal 246221, , 398 221 %6-1—$—246— 398 261+-a) Represents weighted average price paid per share
exeludmg commlssmns pdld (b) Average price pe1 share excludes any exuse tax imposed on certain stock repurehdses as part

pfegr-a-m—Stock Performanee (Jraph This perfonnance graph shdll not be deemed SOllCltan mdtendl ” or to be flled with the
SEC for purposes of Section 18 of the Exchange Act of 1934, or otherwise subject to the liabilities under that section, and shall
not be deemed to be incorporated by reference into any filing of ours under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act. The
following stock performance graph illustrates the cumulative total shareholder return on our common stock for the period from
June 30, 26482019 to June 30, 2623-2024 , as compared to the Russell 2000 Index and the Dow Jones US Recreational Products
Index. The comparison assumes (i) a hypothetical investment of $ 100 in our common stock and the two above mentioned



indices on June 30, 26482019 and (ii) the full reinvestment of all dividends. The comparisons in the graph are not intended to
be indicative of possible future performance of our common stock. Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity
Compensation Plans For information regarding securities authorized for issuance under our equity compensation plans, see Note
11 — Share- Based Compensation in Item 8 and Item 12: Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and
Related Stockholder Matters. ITEM 6. Reserved ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT' S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS. The following discussion and analysis should be read
together with the sections entitled ““ Risk Factors ”” and the financial statements and the accompanying notes included elsewhere
in this Form 10- K. In addition, the statements in this discussion and analysis regarding the performance expectations of our
business, anticipated financial results, liquidity and the other non- historical statements are forward- looking statements. These
forward- looking statements are subject to numerous risks and uncertainties, including, but not limited to, the risks and
uncertainties described in ““ Cautionary Note Regarding Forward- Looking Statements ” and in “ Risk Factors ” above. Our
actual results may differ materially from those contained in or implied by any forward- looking statements. This section
generally discusses 2024 and 2023 items and year- to- year comparlsons between 2024 and 2023. DlSCllSSlOIlS of 2022 items
and year- to- year comparisons between 2023 and 2022 —B1s 0 e 3 W
2022-and-202+-are not included in this Annual Report on F01m 10- K and can be found in Item 7 of the C ompany’ s Annual
Report on Form 10- K for the year ended June 30, 2022-2023 , which was filed with the SEC on September9-August 30 , 2022
2023 . Key Performance Measures From time to time we use certain key performance measures in evaluating our business and
results of operations and we may refer to one or more of these key performance measures in this “ Management’ s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations. ”” These key performance measures include: ¢ Unit sales volume
— We define unit sales volume as the number of our boats sold to our dealers during a period. * Net sales per unit — We define
net sales per unit as net sales divided by unit sales volume. ¢ Gross margin — We define gross margin as gross profit divided by
net sales, expressed as a percentage. « Net income margin — We define net income margin as net income from continuing
operations divided by net sales, expressed as a percentage. * Adjusted EBITDA — We define Adjusted EBITDA as net income
from continuing operations, before interest, income taxes, depreciation, and amortization (“ EBITDA ), as further adjusted to
eliminate certain non- cash charges and unusual items that we do not consider to be indicative of our core / ongoing operations.
For a reconciliation of EBITDA to Adjusted EBITDA, see “ Non- GAAP Measures ” below. * Adjusted EBITDA margin — We
define Adjusted EBITDA margin as Adjusted EBITDA divided by net sales, expressed as a percentage. For a reconciliation of
Adjusted EBITDA margin to net income margin, see “ Non- GAAP Measures ” below. * Adjusted Net Income — We define
Adjusted Net Income as net income from continuing operations, adjusted to eliminate certain non- cash charges and other items
that we do not consider to be indicative of our core / ongoing operations and adjusted for the impact to income tax expense
related to non- GAAP adjustments. For a reconciliation of net income from continuing operations to Adjusted Net Income, see “
Non- GAAP Measures ” below. Diseontinaed-Operations-Fiscal 2024 Overview As anticipated, general market volatility
and economic headwinds created uncertainty and softness in the retail environment for fiscal 2024. As previously
disclosed, because of the anticipated softness in retail demand, the Company approached its wholesale production plan
for fiscal 2024 with a prudent level of caution and a focus on rebalancing dealer inventories consistent with the expected
retail demand. As a result, we experienced lower cost absorption and decreased sales volume, leading to lower net sales
and gross margin compared to the prior fiscal year. On September2-March 4 , 26222024 , Frederick Brightbill, Chief
Executive Officer (“ CEO ) and Chairman of the Board announced his retirement as CEO of the Company eempteted-,
effective March 18, 2024, and as Chairman effective June 30, 2024. In connection with Mr. Brightbill’ s retirement, the
Company appointed Brad Nelson as CEO, effective March 18, 2024. Mr. Nelson also joined the Board at that time. Roch
Lambert, the Company’ s former Lead Independent Director, assumed the role of Chairman of the Board, effective July
1, 2024. Mr. Brightbill will serve as a consultant to the Company through June 30, 2025. During fiscal 2024, we
recognized $ 1. 7 million of CEO transition costs in General and administrative expense within the consolidated
statements of operations. CEO transition costs include amounts paid to the former CEO under the terms of his
retirement agreements and related legal fees. Also included are recruiting and relocation costs related to the new CEO.
Aviara Impairment Activity During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2024, the Company identified an indication of
impairment related to its Aviara segment’ s property, plant, equipment and inventory. After performing a recoverability
test, the Company recognized an impairment charge of $ 9. 8 million, which adjusted the related assets to the-their
estimated fair value. See Notes 5 and 6 for further information related to the impairment analysis. Subsequent to year-
end, the Company announced that it had entered into an asset exchange agreement under which it will transfer rights to
its Aviara brand of luxury dayboats and certain related assets to a third party. The Aviara Transaction is subject to
customary closing conditions and is expected to close in the first quarter of fiscal 2025. Following consummation of the
Aviara Transaction, we intend to close the Merritt Island facility and offer the property for open market sale ofits

NautteStar-busintess-. The This-business;-whieh-wasprevioustyreported-asthe-Company intends to classify Aviara s
Naﬂ&eSfa%segmeﬁt—uﬂfﬂ—ﬁsea{%@%ﬁs—beﬁrg—fepeﬁed-ds dlscontmued operations beginning -feika-l-l—peﬂeds—pfesefﬁed—"l:he




flSCcll years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 aﬂd%@%%—from our dud1ted consohddted f1mnc1dl stdtements and related notes
included elsewhere in this Form 10- K. Our historical results are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected in
the future. Consolidated Results Change % Change (Dollar amounts in thousands) Consolidated statements of operations: NET
SALES $ 366,588 $ 662, 046 § 644-(295 , 458) (44 669-$20;4373-.2-6 % ) COST OF SALES 299, 491 492, 333 473-(192 ,
842) (39 419-18;9444-. 6-2 % ) GROSS PROFIT 67, 097 169, 713 +68-(102 , 616) (60 +961+-523-0-. 5-5 % ) OPERATING
EXPENSES: Selling and marketing 13, 430 13, 808 (-1—2—869—7—3—%-Geﬁeral—aﬁd-&dfﬂ1ﬂ1ﬁr&twe—37—378 ) (5634-36;076-2. 7 %)
General and administrative 34, 396 37, 034 (2, 638) (7. 1 %) Amortization of other intangible assets 1, 812 1, 956 +-(144) (7.

4 %) Impairments 9 , 956-827 — 9 6-0-%-Goodwillimpairment—t, 827 +00-(11+066> Total operating expenses 59, 465
52,798 5+6 ,995—1—667 12 .56 % OPERATING INCOME 7, 632 116, 915 H6-(109 ., 195-6-283) (93 . 65 % ) OTHER
INCOME (EXPENSE): Interest expense ( 3,292) (2, 679) ( 613 47) 22 (5268382 49 % Interest income 5,789 3, 351 2
—3-,35+—438 72. 8 % INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10,129 117, 587 H4-(107 , 458) (91 72428632~ 5
4 % ) INCOME TAX EXPENSE 1,407 27, 135 26-(25 , #791-728) (94 . 3-8 % ) NET INCOME FROM CONTINUING
OPERATIONS $ 8,722 $ 90, 452 $ 8781 , 730) (90 945-$2,-5672- 94 % ) Additional financial and other data: Unit sales
volume: MasterCraft 1, 755 3, 407 3;596-( 489-1, 652 ) ( 48. 5 —3-%) €rest-Pontoon 1, 241 2, 836 3,456+ 32031061 , 595)
(56. 2 %) Aviara — — 34-08-%-Consolidated unit sales volume 3, 130 6, 377 6;-:852-( 475-3, 247 ) ( 6-50 . 9 %) Net sales:
MasterCraft $ 262, 736 $ 468, 656 $ 466-(205 , 920) (43 627-$2,-629-0-. 6-9 % €rest) Pontoon 59, 615 141, 247 +46-(81 , 859
6-632) (57 . 3-8 % ) Aviara 44, 237 52, 143 34~(7 , 906) (15 723+%426-56-. 2 % ) Consolidated net sales $ 366, S88 $ 062, 046
$ 641-(295 , 458) (44 669-$520,4373- 2-6 % ) Net sales per unit: MasterCraft $ $ $ 6-8. 7 % Pontoon (2) (4. 0 %) Aviara (59)
(15 . 2 % ) erestH1%Aviara42+-%-Consolidated net sales per unit $8-12 . 6-5 % Gross margin 18. 3 % 25. 6 % 26-—2-%(
66-730 ) bps Net Sales. Net Sales inereased-decreased 3-44 . 2-6 percent for fiscal 2023-2024 when compared to fiscal 2022
2023 . The decrease was a result of lower unit volume, an increase was—a—resn-lt—e-ﬁhigheﬁpﬂees—m dealer 1ncent1ves, and
unfavorable model mix and options , partially offset by higher prices deere 38 ed Atves
andHess-faverablemodelmix-. Dealer incentives include higher floor plan f1mnc1n0 costs from hlgheras—a—reSﬂlt—e-Prnereased
dealer inventories entering the year and higher interest rates, as well as rebate programs and other neentives-measures
taken by the Company to assist dealers as the retail environment remains beeomesmore-competitive. Gross Margin. Gross
Margin percentage declined 606-730 basis points during fiscal 2623-2024 when compared to fiscal 20222023 . Lower margins
were the result of lower cost absorption due to planned decreased umt Volume and hig ghel eests—related—te—mateﬂa-l-&nd

everhead—r&ﬂ&t—teﬂ,—l‘ﬁghe%eests—freﬁi-dealer 1ncent1\ es d AVOra
f e ; rode , pdltldlly oh‘set by hlgher prices aﬂd—rmpreved

predueﬁeﬁ—efﬁeteﬂetes— Opemtmo Expenses Opemtmo expenses 1nc1edsed +12 . 5-6 percent during fiscal 2623-2024 when
compared to the same prior year period —Buring-fiseal-2622;-a-due to non- cash impairment charges of $ +9 . +8 million
goodwitlimpairment-eharge-was-rccorded in the-our Aviara segment ;-as-disetssedinNote-7in-the Notes-to-Consolidated
-F-'rn&neial—Staterﬁeﬂts.—SeH-iﬂg,—general-dnd admmistr&t-rve-CEO trans1tlon costs, partlally offset by decreased compensatlon
related cxpenses as-a-pereentage-ofne . veby—fla o fises W e e 3
pertod-. Interest Expense. lnteIest expense 1nc1edsed b +0 .26 m11110n prnnarlly due to hlgher eﬁecm ¢ interest rates. lnterest
Income. Interest income efinereased $ 3-2 . 4 million during fiscal 2623-2024 is-derived-primarily due to fiscal 2024
beneﬁtmg from a full year of nvestments— 1nvestment mcome, compared to a partial year in fiscal 2023 ira-pertfetto-of
e he A ategy—. Income Tax Expense. Our consolidated effective
income th rate decreased to 13 9 percent for ﬁscal 2024 from 23. 1 percent for fiscal 2023 froem23-3-pereent-forfiseal 2622~
See Note 10 in Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for more information. Segment Results MasterCraft Segment The
following table sets forth MasterCraft segment results for the fiscal years ended: (Dollar amounts in thousands) Change %
Change Net sales $ 262, 736 $ 468, 656 $ 466-(205 , 027-$2,-920) (43. 9 %) Operating income 629- 29 6-, 573 101, 324 (71,
751) (70. 8 %) Purchases of property, plant and equlpment 7 912 17, 414 (9 502) (54 . 6 % Operating-ineome+64;324165;
6 o-Unit sales volume 1, 758 3,
407 3%96—( -1-8-9-1 652 ) ( 48 5 —3—%) Net sales per unit b b $68. 2—7 % Net sales -rnereased—decreased 8-43 . 6-9 percent
during fiscal 2623-2024 , when compared to fiscal 2022-2023 . The inerease-decrease was primarily driven by higherseling
priees-lower unit volume and increased dealer incentives , partially offset by higher prices and deereased-sales—volumes;Jess
favorable model mix s-and options irereased-dealerineentives-. Operating income decreased 3-70 . 8 percent during fiscal 2623
2024 , when compdled to the same prior year period. The overall decrease was driven by decreased sales volume higher-eests
-freﬁa-r&ﬂaﬁeﬂaﬁ—pfessﬁres— higher dealer incentives, fess-and CEO transition costs, partially offset by higher prices,
favomble model mix and optlons decreased compensation related expenses, and decreased sales votames;and marketing
g AFEARE P debyearcxpenses ypartiatly-offsetbyfavorableprietng-. Purchases of property,
plant, qnd equ1pment -rnefeased-decreased 3> +6-9 . 85 million during fiscal 2623-2024 ., when compared to fiscal 2622-2023 .
For fiscal 2024, The-inerease-was-dae-to-capital spending was focused on facility enhancements, tooling strategie-tnitiatives-,
and information technology. €rest-Pontoon Segment The following table sets forth €rest-Pontoon segment results for the fiscal
years ended: (Dollar amounts in thousands) Change % Change Net sales $ 59, 615 $ 141, 247 $ +40-(81 , 859-$-6-632) (57 . 3-8




% ) Operating income (loss) (2, 097) 20, 106 +9-(22 , 924-203) (110 . +4 % ) Purchases of property, plant and equipment 2,
613 7, 149 (4, 536) (63 193295676~ 5-4 % ) Unit sales volume 1, 241 2, 836 3456+ 326101 , 595) (56. 2 %) Net sales
perunit $ $ $+H-(2) (4. +0 % ) Net sales -rnefeased—decreased 9—57 8—8 percent durlng ﬁseal %92—3—2024 when compared to
fiscal 2022-2023 , as a result of highe i etby-decreased unit volume
a-nd— 1nereased dealer 1ncent1ves - i

Operating loss was Pureh 6 : $32. 9—1 mIHIOI’l durmg ﬁscal 2024 compared to
operating income of $ 20. 1 million in ﬁscal 2023 —when—eenﬁaafed—te—t-}wsame—pﬂer-—ye&epemd— The tnerease-change was
primarily due to decreased net sales, as discussed above, and lower cost absorption. Purchases of property, plant, and
equipment decreased $ 4. 5 million during fiscal 2024, when compared to fiscal 2023. For fiscal 2024, capital spending was
focused on eapaeity-expanstonr-facility enhancements and toollng Aviara Segment The following table sets forth Aviara
segment results for the fiscal years ended: (Dollar amounts in thousands) Change % Change Net sales $ 44,237 $ 52, 143 $ 34
(7, 906) (15 723-$347426-50-. 2 % ) Operating loss ( 19, 844) (4, 515) (15, 329) 339. 5 % Impairments 9, 827 63834523
50-6-%-GoodwiHmpairment-— +9 , 827 +06-35106)- Purchases of property, plant and equipment 5, 836 5, 760 | ;46445
299-294- 3 % Unit sales volume — — 34-6-%-Net sales per unit § $ $ 42-(59) (15 . +2 % ) Net sales nereased-decreased 59-15
. 2 percent during fiscal 2623-2024 , when compared to fiscal 2022-2023 , mainly due to inereased-sales-volume-unfavorable
model mix and options and higher seHingpriees-dealer incentives , paltlally offset by higher prices dealerineentives-.
Operating tess-losses deereased-increased 56-339 . 6-5 percent for fiscal 2023-2024 , when compared to fiscal 2622-2023 . The
change was a result of non- cash impairment charges of $ 9. 8 million primarily aresult-related to property, plant,
equipment and inventory, as well as inefficiencies related to the ramp up of new product launches, higher prices-dealer
incentives , improved-produetioneffietenetes;and -rnereased—sa-}es—vel-ume-unfavorable model mix and optlons partially
offset by higher prices and reduced warranty costs frem-inflationary—p d 5 . Additionally;

a—geeder-See Notes 5 and 6 for further 1nformat10n related to the lmpalrlnent eh&rge—charges was—reeerded—dtrrmg—t-he—ﬁfst
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due-to-eap d ooling EBITDA Ad]usted
EBITDA EBITDA Margln and Adjusted EBITDA Ma1 gin We deflne EBITDA as net income from continuing operations,
before interest, income taxes, depreciation and amortization. We define Adjusted EBITDA as EBITDA further adjusted to
eliminate certain non- cash charges or other items that we do not consider to be indicative of our core and / or ongoing
operations. For the periods presented herein, these adjustments include non- cash impairment charges, share- based
compensation, CEQ transition costs, and business development consulting costs ;-geedwilHmpairmentAviara-transition
eosts;-and-debtrefinaneing-eharges-, as described in more detail below. We define EBITDA margin and Adjusted EBITDA
margin as EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA, respectively, expressed as a percentage of Net sales. Adjusted Net Income and
Adjusted Net Income Per Share We define Adjusted Net Income and Adjusted Net Income per share as net income from
continuing operations adjusted to eliminate certain non- cash charges or other items that we do not consider to be indicative of
our core and / or ongoing operations and reflecting income tax expense on adjusted net income before income taxes at our
estimated annual effective tax rate. For the periods presented herein, these adjustments include non- cash impairment charges,
other mtanglble asset amortlzatlon shale based compensatlon CEO trans1tlon costs, and business development consulting

g s Aviara-transtttoneosts e eharges-. EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, EBITDA
margin, Adjusted EBITDA margln Adjusted Net Income and Adjusted Net Income per share, which we refer to collectively as
the Non- GAAP Measures, are not measures of net income or operating income as determined under accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States, or U. S. GAAP. The Non- GAAP Measures are not measures of performance in
accordance with U. S. GAAP and should not be considered as an alternative to net income, net income per share, or operating
cash flows determined in accordance with U. S. GAAP. Additionally, Adjusted EBITDA is not intended to be a measure of cash
flow. We believe that the inclusion of the Non- GAAP Measures is appropriate to provide additional information to investors
because securities analysts and investors use the Non- GAAP Measures to assess our operating performance across periods on a
consistent basis and to evaluate the relative risk of an investment in our securities. We use Adjusted Net Income and Adjusted
Net Income per share to facilitate a comparison of our operating performance on a consistent basis from period to period that,
when viewed in combination with our results prepared in accordance with U. S. GAAP, provides a more complete
understanding of factors and trends affecting our business than does U. S. GAAP measures alone. We believe Adjusted Net
Income and Adjusted Net Income per share assists our beard-Board efdireetors-, management, investors, and other users of the
financial statements in comparing our net income on a consistent basis from period to period because it removes certain non-
cash items and other items that we do not consider to be indicative of our core and / or ongoing operations and reflecting income
tax expense on adjusted net income before income taxes at our estimated annual effective tax rate. The Non- GAAP Measures
have limitations as an analytical tool and should not be considered in isolation or as a substitute for analysis of our results as
reported under U. S. GAAP. Some of these limitations are: * Although depreciation and amortization are non- cash charges, the
assets being depreciated and amortized will often have to be replaced in the future and the Non- GAAP Measures do not reflect
any cash requirements for such replacements; * The Non- GAAP Measures do not reflect our cash expenditures, or future
requirements for capital expenditures or contractual commitments; * The Non- GAAP Measures do not reflect changes in, or
cash requirements for, our working capital needs; « Fhe-Certain Non- GAAP Measures do not reflect our tax expense or any
cash requirements to pay income taxes; ® Certain Non- GAAP Measures do not reflect interest expense, or the cash
requlrements necessary to serv1ce interest payments on our 1ndebtedness, and . The Non- GAAP Measures do not reflect




Measures-denotrefleet-the impact of earnings or charges resulting from matters we do not consider to be indicative of our core
and / or ongoing operations, but may nonetheless have a material impact on our results of operations. In addition, because not all
u)nmamcs use 1dc1mu11 (,dlLLlldllOnS our plLSCHldllOH of 1hc Non- GAAP Measures may nol be u)mpalabk 10 Slnllldll) titled

b&ﬁs—fe{—a-l-l—peﬂeds—pfeseﬂ-ted—T he following mble pluenls a ILL()llulldllOH 01 net income hom continuing opcmuons as

determined in accordance with U. S. GAAP to EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA, and net income from continuing operations
margin (expressed as a percentage of net sales) to Adjusted EBITDA margin (expressed as a percentage of net sales) for the
periods indicated: % of Net % of Net % of Net (Dollar amounts in thousands) sales sales salesNet income from continuing
operations $ 8,7222.4 % $ 90,452 13.7 % $ 87, 945 13. 7 % $58;438425% Income tax expense 1,407 27, 135 26, 779

+6;-086-Interest expense 3,292 2, 679 1, 471 3;-392-Interest income ( 5, 789) (3, 351) Depreciation and amortization 11,
182 10,5699, 731 8;368-EBITDA 18,814 5.1 % 127,484 19.3 % 125,926 19. 6 % $6-Impairments (a) 9 , 2783+8-—5%827

— 1, 100 Share- based compensation (b) 2, 598 7> 6% ,510 2—CEO transltlon costs (c) 1 932—708 — — Business
development consulting costs €a sgissass v s e b
refinanetngeharges-(d) — — Adjusted EBITDA % 32,9479.0 % $ 131,452 19. 9 % $ 13(), 536 2(). 3 % The followmg table

sets forth a reconciliation of net income from continuing 0perat10ns as determined in accordance with U. S. GAAP to
Adjusted Net Income for the periods indicated: (Dollar amounts in thousands, except per share data) Net income from
continuing operations $ 92-8 . +29-722 § 90, 452 § 87, 945 Income tax expense 1, 407 27, 135 26, 779 Impairments (a) 9,
827 — 1, 100 Amortization of acquisition intangibles 1, 812 1, 849 1, 849 Share- based compensation (b) 2, 598 3, 656 3,
510 CEO transition costs (c) 1, 708 — — Business development consulting costs (d) — — Adjusted Net Income before
income taxes 26, 074 123, 404 121, 183 Adjusted income tax expense (e) 5, 214 28, 383 27, 872 Adjusted Net Income $ 20,
860 $ 95, 021 $ 93, 311 Adjusted Net Income per share: Basic $ 1. 23 $5.39 $ 5. 06 Diluted $1.22 $5.358§ 5. 01
Weighted average shares used for the computation of (f): Basic Adjusted Net Income per share 16, 930, 348 17, 618, 797
18, 455, 226 Diluted Adjusted Net Income per share 17, 038, 305 17, 765, 117 18, 636, 512 The following table presents
the reconciliation of net income from continuing operations per diluted share to Adjusted net income per diluted share
for the periods presented: Net income from continuing operations per diluted share $ 0. 51 $ 5. 09 $ 4. 72 Impact of
adjustments: Income tax expense 0. 08 1. 53 1. 44 Impairments (a) 0. S7 — 0. 06 Amortization of acquisition intangibles
0.11 0. 10 0. 10 Share- based compensation (b) 0. 15 0. 21 0. 19 CEO transition costs (c¢) 0. 10 — — Business
development consulting costs (d) — 0. 02 — Adjusted Net Income per diluted share before income taxes 1. 52 6. 95 6. 51
Impact of adjusted income tax expense on net income per diluted share before income taxes (e) (0. 30) (1. 60) (1. 50)
Adjusted Net Income per diluted share $ 1. 22 §5. 35 $ S. 01 (a) Represents non- cash charges recorded in the Aviara
segment of $ 9 . 8 Yo-million primarily for impairment of property, plant, equipment and inventory in fiscal 2024 and § 1.
1 million for impairment of goodwill in fiscal 2022. See Notes 5, 6, and 7 within the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for more information on impairment charges. ( &b) Included in share- based compensation are the impacts of
accelerating expense recognition for equity awards related to the CEO transition. (c) Represents amounts paid to the
Company’ s former CEO upon his departure under the terms of his transition agreements and legal fees incurred with
the transition, but excluding amounts related to accelerating expense recognition for equity awards related to the CEO
transition noted in (b). Also included are recruiting and relocation costs related to the new CEO. (d ) Represents non-
recurring third- party costs associated with business development activities, primarily relating to consulting costs for evaluation
and execution of internal growth and other strategic initiatives. The evaluation and execution of the internal growth and other
strategic initiatives is a bespoke initiative, dnd the costs associated therewith do not constitute normal recurring Ld%h opcmlmﬂ
L\penses nucssdly to opuate the ( ompany > s business. ( b—e ) Reﬂects p Rts-a-non A A ;

-I-ﬂeeﬂ&e—pefshafe—Baste%é— %9—$é—0 % for 2024 and 23 96—$—3—0 % for 2023 and 2022 (f) Represents the%—?’—Bi-l-ttted—$é—
35—$+944$—3—34~w uOhlcd average shdlcs uscd or lhe u)mpulallon 01 (e)—Basu Adjﬂsfed—Net—I-ﬂeefﬁe-and Dlluted earnlngs




ha G at-a-ta for each-all period-periods
plesented herein . L1qu1dlty dnd ( apital Resources Our primary liquidity and capital resource needs are to finance working
capital, fund capital expenditures, service our debt, fund potential acquisitions, and fund our steeleshare repurchase program.
Our principal sources of liquidity are our cash balance, held- to- maturity securities, cash generated from operating activities, our
revolving credit agreement and the refinancing and / or new issuance of long- term debt. Cash and cash equivalents totaled § +9-
7 . 84 million as of June 30, 2023-2024 , a decrease of $ 4412 . 4 million from $ 34-19 . 2-8 million as of June 30, 2022-2023 .
Held- to- maturity securities totaled $ 78. 8 million as of June 30 2024 a decrease 0f$ 12. 8 mllllon from $ 91. 6 million as
of June 30, 2023. As of June 30, 2022-2024 -there-w 0 § hetd e , We
had no amounts outstanding under the Revolving C Iedlt Facility, led\ ing $ 100. 0 mllllon of av allable bonoxxmg, capauty Total
debt outstanding under the Term Loan as of June 30, 2623-2024 and June 30, 2622-2023 was $ 49. 3 million and $ 53. 7 million
and-$-56--5millien, respectively . Subsequent to June 30, 2024, the Company was in discussions with its bank group
regarding an amendment to the Credit Agreement. The anticipated amendment entails obtaining the necessary consents
and waivers to certain restrictions related to the Aviara asset exchange and plans to sell certain facility assets, in addition
to a waiver to the covenant ratios in the Credit Agreement for certain future periods as a result of anticipated decreases
in earnings. The Company currently expects to complete the amendment process in the first quarter of fiscal 2025. The
amendment process remains subject to completion of final documentation and credit approval by the bank group and,
accordingly, the Company cannot be certain that it will be able to complete the amendment process. If the Company
does not complete the amendment process, the Company has cash and held- to- maturity securities in excess of total debt
and thus believes that it will have sufficient liquidity on hand to continue to fund operations and repay the borrowings
outstanding under the Credit Agreement . Refer to Note 9 — Long Term Debt in the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements for further details. On June 24, 2021, the board-Board ef-direetors-efthe-Company-authorized a steelk-share
repurchase program that aHews-allowed for the repurchase of up to $ 50. 0 million of our common stock during the three- year
period ending-ended June 24, 2024. As of June 30, 2023, $ 1. 6 million remained available under this program, all of which
was fully utilized during the fiscal 2024 first quarter ended October 1, 2023. During fiscal 2024 and fiscal 2023 and-fiseat
2622-, the Company repurchased 750, 943 shares and 872, 055 shares-and-975;+6+-shares of common stock for $ 16. 3 million
and $ 22.9 ﬂa-ﬂteﬁ-aﬁd%%é—mllllon respecm ely, in cash, including related fees and expenses —As-ofJane36;2023;-there

€ y ; gram-. We believe our cash balance, investments, cash
hom opemtlons and our ablllty to bmrow will be sufficient to p10\1de f01 our liquidity and capital resource needs. The
following table and discussion below relate to our cash flows from continuing operations for operating, investing, and financing
activities: (Dollar amounts in thousands) Total cash provided by (used in): Operating activities § 12,569 $ 136, 824 § 82, 378
$73;961+-Investing activities (1, 785) (120, 933) (12, 296 H25;-249-) Financing activities ( 23, 135) (27, 148) (62, 540 Y%
F#3-) Net change in cash and cash equivalents from continuing operations $ ( 12,351) $ (11, 257) $ 7, 542 Fiscal 2024 Cash
Flow from Continuing Operations Net cash provided by operating activities was $ 36-12. 6 million , 969-primarily due to
net income, partially offset by working capital usage. Working capital is defined as accounts receivable, income tax
receivable, inventories, and prepaid expenses and other current assets net of accounts payable, income tax payable, and
accrued expenses and other current liabilities as presented in the consolidated balance sheets, excluding the impact of
acquisitions and non- cash adjustments. Working capital usage primarily consisted of a decrease in accrued expenses
and other current liabilities, accounts payable, and income tax payable, offset by a decrease in inventories. Accrued
expenses and other current liabilities decreased as a result of lower compensation related accruals, warranty costs as a
result of reduced unit volume, and reduced volume rebates, offset by an increase in retail rebates. Accounts payable
decreased as a result of decreased production levels. Income tax payable decreased due to the lower earnings compared
to the prior year. Inventories decreased as we continue to rebalance inventory levels to align with lower production
levels. Net cash used in investing activities was $ 1. 8 million, which included $ 16. 4 million in net capital expenditures,
partially offset by net purchases and maturities of $ 14. 6 million in held- to- maturity securities. Our capital spending
was primarily focused on facility enhancements, tooling, and information technology. Net cash used in financing
activities was $ 23. 1 million, which included net payments of $ 4. 5 million on long- term debt and $ 16. 3 million of stock
repurchases. Fiscal 2023 Cash Flow from Continuing Operations Net cash provided by operating activities was $ 136. 8
mllhon pllmarllv due to net mcome asw ell as IedUCtIOI]S of working capltal as —Weﬁﬂﬂg—e&ptta-l—ts—dehned above asaceounts

Wﬁe%&eqiﬂsﬁeﬂs—&ﬂd-ﬁeﬂ—e&sh—&djﬁsfmeﬁfs— Fav 01able w 01k1ng Capltdl clmnw pnmduly consisted of an increase in

accrued expenses and other current liabilities, and a decrease in accounts receivable, offset by a decrease in accounts payable,
and an increase in prepaid expenses and other current assets. Accrued expenses and other current liabilities increased as a result
of an increase in warranty costs and dealer incentives. Accounts receivable decreased primarily as a result of lower sales at the
end of the period compared to the end of the prior- year period. Accounts payable decreased as a result of decreased production
levels. Prepaid and other current assets increased primarily as a result of higher general insurance premiums. Net cash used in
investing activities was $ 120. 9 million, due to net investments in held- to- maturity securities of $ 90. 6 million and $ 30. 3
million of capital expenditures. Our capital spending was focused on tooling, capacity expansion, strategic initiatives, and
information technology. Net cash used in fmanung activities was $ 27. 1 million, which included net payments of $ 3. 0 million
onlong termdebtdnd‘{>22 9 miHion-ofstoe ash n-Contintng-OperationsNet-eash




$—36—7—miﬂieﬂ-eﬂ—}eﬂg-—tef&rdebt—aﬂd—$—2§%—mrlhon of stock repurchases Off Balance Sheet Arrangements The Company did
not have any off- balance sheet financing arrangements as of June 30, 2623-2024 . Contractual Obligations As of June 30, 2623
2024 , the Company’ s material cash obligations were as follows: Long- Term Debt Obligations — See Note 9 — Long- Term
Debt in the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further information. Interest on Long- Term Debt
Obligations — As of June 30, 2623-2024 , the Company has estimated total interest payments on its outstanding long- term debt
obligations of $ 8-6 . 9-1 million, of which $ 4-3 . 8-2 million is due during the next 12 months. Interest on variable rate debt
instruments was calculated using interest rates in effect for our borrowings as of June 30, 2623-2024 and holding them constant
for the life of the instrument. Purchase Commitments — As of June 30, 2623-2024 , the Company is committed to purchasing $
2816 . 5 million of engines ﬁ#whmh%%%—miﬂmﬂis—eemmfﬁted—&tﬁﬁtg—&le—ﬂexH%mﬂﬁ{hS— See Note 12 in the
accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for more information. Repurchase Obhgatrons — The Company has
reserves to cover potential losses associated with repurchase obligations based on historical experience and current facts and
circumstances. We incurred no material impact from repurchase events during fiscal 2024, 2023, or 2022 yer2624-. An adverse
change in retail sales, however, could require us to repurchase boats repossessed by floor plan financing companies upon an
event of default by any of our dealers, subject in some cases to an annual limitation. See Note 12 in the accompanying Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements for more information. In addition to the above, we have unrecognized tax benefits that are
not reflected here because the Company cannot predict when open income tax years will close with completed examinations.
See Note 10 in Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for more information. Appheation-efCritical Accounting Pelietes
and-Estimates Significant accounting policies are described in the notes to the consolidated financial statements. In the
application of these policies, certain estimates are made that may have a material impact on our financial condition and results of
operations. Actual results could differ from those estimates and cause our reported net income to vary significantly from period
to period. For additional information regarding these policies, see Note 1 — Significant Accounting Policies in Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements. Asset Impairment The Company reviews goodwill for impairment at its annual impairment
testing date, which is June 30, and whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the fair value of a reporting unit
may be below its carrying value. As part of the impairment tests, the Company may perform a qualitative, rather than
quantitative, assessment to determine whether the fair values of its reporting units are “ more likely than not ” to be greater than
their carrying values. In performing this qualitative analysis, the Company considers various factors, including the effect of
market or industry changes and the reporting units & actual results compared to projected results. If the fair value of a reporting
unit does not meet the % more likely than not *” criteria discussed above, the impairment test for goodwill is a quantitative
test. This test involves comparing the fair value of the reporting unit with its carrying value. If the fair value exceeds the
carrying value, goodwill is not considered impaired. If the carrying amount exceeds the fair value then the goodwill is
considered impaired and an impairment loss is recognized in an amount by which the carrying value exceeds the reporting unit’
s fair value, not to exceed the carrying amount of the goodwill allocated to that reporting unit. The Company calculates the fair
value of its reporting units considering both the income approach and market approach. The income approach calculates the fair
value of the reporting unit using a discounted cash flow method. Internally forecasted future cash flows, which the Company
believes reasonably approximate market participant assumptions, are discounted using a weighted average cost of capital (**
Discount Rate ) developed for each reporting unit. The Discount Rate is developed using market observable inputs, as well as
considering whether or not there is a measure of risk related to the specific reporting unit’ s forecasted performance. Fair value
under the market approach is determined for each reporting unit by applying market multiples for comparable public companies
to the reporting unit’ s financial results. The key judgements in these calculations are the assumptions used in determining the
reporting unit’ s forecasted future performance, including revenue growth and operating margins, as well as the perceived risk
associated with those forecasts in determining the Discount Rate, along with selecting representative market multiples. As
discussed further in Note 7 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, during the year ended June 30, 2022, the Company
performed a quantitative test and recognized a $ 1. 1 million goodwill impairment charge related to its Aviara reporting unit. As
of June 30, 2023, only the MasterCraft reporting unit has a goodwill balance. The fair value of this reporting unit substantially
exceeds its carrying value. Other Intangible Assets The Company -’ s primary intangible assets other than goodwill are dealer
networks and trade names acquired in business combinations. These intangible assets are initially valued using a methodology
commensurate with the intended use of the asset. The dealer networks were valued using an income approach, which requires an
estimate or forecast of the expected future cash flows from the dealer network through the application of the multi- period
excess earnings approach. The fair value of trade names is measured using a relief- from- royalty approach, a variation of the
income approach, which requires an estimate or forecast of the expected future cash flows. This method assumes the value of
the trade name is the discounted cash flows of the amount that would be paid to third parties had the Company not owned the
trade name and instead licensed the trade name from another company. The basis for future sales projections for these methods
are based on internal revenue forecasts by reporting unit, which the Company believes represent reasonable market participant
assumptions. The future cash flows are discounted using an applicable Discount Rate as well as any potential risk premium to
reflect the inherent risk of holding a standalone intangible asset. The key judgements in these fair value calculations, as
applicable, are: assumptions used in developing internal revenue growth and dealer expense forecasts, assumed dealer attrition
rates, the selection of an appropriate royalty rate, as well as the perceived risk associated with those forecasts in determining the



Discount Rate. The costs of amortizable intangible assets, including dealer networks, are recognized over their expected useful
lives, approximately ten years for the dealer networks, using the straight- line method. The dealer network Hatangible
intangible assets— asset within our MasterCraft reporting unit is fully amortized. The dealer network intangible asset
within our Pontoon reporting unit that are-is subject to amortization are-is evaluated for impairment using-a-proeess-simitarto
if events or changes in circumstances suggest that used-it may be impaired. As part of the impairment test, the Company
may perform a quantitative assessment to evaltatetonng—tived-determine whether the dealer network intangible assets—
asset as-deseribed-below-is impaired. If the carrying value exceeds the fair value of the asset, an impairment loss is
recognized for the amount by which the carrying value exceeds the fair value . Intangible assets not subject to amortization ,
including trade names, are assessed for impairment at least annually and whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that it is more likely than not that an asset may be impaired. As part of the annual test, the Company may perform a qualitative,
rather than quantitative, assessment to determine whether each trade name intangible asset is *“ more likely than not > impaired.
In performing this qualitative analysis, the Company considers various factors, including macroeconomic events, industry and
market events and cost related events. If the “ more likely than not ” criteria is not met, the impairment test for indefinite- lived
intangible assets consists of a comparison of the fair value of the intangible asset with its carrying amount. An impairment loss
is recognized for the amount by which the carrying value exceeds the fair value of the asset. As discussed further in Note 3 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements, during the year ended June 30, 2022, the Company recognized $ 18. 5 million in
intangible asset impairment charges related to its indefinite lived intangible asset and its dealer network intangible asset within
the NauticStar reporting unit. These charges are included in the loss from discontinued operations. Long- Lived Assets The
Company assesses the potential for impairment of its long- lived assets if facts and circumstances, such as declines in sales,
earnings, or cash flows or adverse changes in the business climate, suggest that they may be impaired. A current expectation
that, more likely than not, a long- lived asset (asset group) will be sold or otherwise disposed of significantly before the end of
its previously estimated useful life will also trigger a review for impairment. The Company performs its assessment by
comparing the book value of the asset groups to the estimated future undiscounted cash flows associated with the asset groups.
If any impairment in the carrying value of its long- lived assets is indicated, the assets would be adjusted to an estimate of fair
value. As discussed further in Note 6 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, during the year ended June 30, 2024, the
Company recognized $ 6. 9 million in long- lived asset impairment charges related to its Aviara reporting unit. As
discussed further in Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, during the year ended June 30, 2022, the Company
recognized $ 5. 3 million in long- lived asset impairment charges related to its NauticStar reporting unit. Product Warranties —
The Company offers warranties on the sale of certain products for periods of between one and five years from the date of retail
sale. These warranties require us or our dealers to repair or replace defective products during the warranty period at no cost to
the consumer. We estimate the costs that may be incurred under our basic limited warranty and record as a liability the amount
of such costs at the time the product revenue is recognized. The key judgements that affect our estimate for warranty liability
include the number of units sold, historical and anticipated rates of warranty claims and cost per claim. We periodically assess
the adequacy of the recorded warranty liabilities and adjust the amounts as actual claims are determined or as changes in the
obligations become reasonably estimable. We also adjust our liability for specific warranty matters when they become known
and exposure can be estimated. Future warranty claims may differ from our estimate of the warranty liability, which could lead
to changes in the Company’ s warranty liability in future periods. Income Taxes — We are subject to income taxes in the United
States of America and the United Kingdom. ©ut-For fiscal 2024, our cffective tax rates— rate differ-differs from the statutory
rates— rate, primarily due to a state benefit for separate company losses and the relative impact of tax credits to the
declines in pre- tax book income. For fiscal 2023, our effective tax rate differs from the statutory rate , primarily due to a
change in state taxes as a result of sethng-sell NauticStar ;-as-further-deseribed-. See the components of our effective tax rate
reconciliation in Note 10 in-Notes-to-ConsolidatedFinanetal-Statements- Significant judgment is required in evaluating our
uncertain tax positions and determining our provision for income taxes. Although we believe our reserves are reasonable, we
cannot provide assurance that the final tax outcome of these matters will not be different from that which is reflected in our
historical income tax provisions and accruals. We adjust these reserves in light of changing facts and circumstances, such as the
closing of a tax audit or the refinement of an estimate. To the extent that the final tax outcome of these matters is different than
the amounts recorded, such differences will impact the provision for income taxes in the period in which such determination is
made. The provision for income taxes includes the impact of reserve provisions and changes to reserves that are considered
appropriate, as well as the related net interest. Revenue Recognition — The Company’ s revenue is derived primarily from the
sale of boats and trailers, marine parts, and accessories to its independent dealers. The Company recognizes revenue when
obligations under the terms of a contract are satisfied and control over promised goods is transferred to a customer. For
substantially all sales, this occurs when the product is released to the carrier responsible for transporting it to a customer. The
Company typically receives payment from the floor plan financing providers within 5 business days of shipment. Revenue is
measured as the amount of consideration we expect to receive in exchange for a product. The Company offers dealer incentives
that include wholesale rebates, retail rebates and promotions, floor plan reimbursement or cash discounts, and other allowances
that are recorded as reductions of revenues in net sales in the consolidated statements of operations. The consideration
recognized represents the amount specified in a contract with a customer, net of estimated incentives the Company reasonably
expects to pay. The estimated liability and reduction in revenue for dealer incentives is recorded at the time of sale. Subsequent
adjustments to incentive estimates are possible because actual results may differ from these estimates if conditions dictate the
need to enhance or reduce sales promotion and incentive programs or if dealer achievement or other items vary from historical
trends. Accrued dealer incentives are included in Accrued expenses and other current liabilities in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets. Rebates and Discounts Dealers earn wholesale rebates based on purchase volume commitments and
achievement of certain performance metrics. The Company estimates the amount of wholesale rebates based on historical



achievement, forecasted volume, and assumptions regarding dealer behavior. Rebates that apply to boats already in dealer
inventory are referred to as retail rebates. The Company estimates the amount of retail rebates based on historical data for
specific boat models adjusted for forecasted sales volume, product mix, dealer and consumer behavior, and assumptions
concerning market conditions. The Company also utilizes various programs whereby it offers cash discounts or agrees to
reimburse its dealers for certain floor plan interest costs incurred by dealers for limited periods of time, generally ranging #p
from six to nine-12 months. Other Revenue Recognition Matters Dealers generally have no right to return unsold boats.
Occasionally, the Company may accept returns in limited circumstances and at the Company’ s discretion under its warranty
policy. The Company may be obligated, in the event of default by a dealer, to accept returns of unsold boats under its repurchase
commitment to floor plan financing providers, who are able to obtain such boats through foreclosure. The repurchase
commitment is on an individual unit basis with a term from the date it is financed by the lending institution through the payment
date by the dealer, generally not exceeding 30 months. The Company accounts for these arrangements as guarantees and
recognizes a liability based on the estimated fair value of the repurchase obligation. The estimated fair value takes into account
our estimate of the loss we will incur upon resale of any repurchases. The Company accrues the estimated fair value of this
obligation based on the age of inventory currently under floor plan financing and estimated credit quality of dealers holding the
inventory. Inputs used to estimate this fair value include significant unobservable inputs that reflect the Company’ s assumptions
about the inputs that market participants would use and, therefore, this liability is classified within Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy. We incurred no material impact from repurchase events during fiscal 2024, 2023, or 2022 ;-e1r262+. See Note 12 in
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for more information on repurchase obligations . SEC Climate Disclosure Rule In
March 2024, the SEC issued its final climate disclosure rule, which requires the disclosure of material Scope 1 and Scope
2 greenhouse gas emissions and other climate- related topics in annual reports and registration statements. Under the
final rule, for accelerated filers, disclosure requirements will begin phasing in for fiscal years beginning on or after
January 1, 2026, or fiscal 2027 for the Company. However, on April 4, 2024, the SEC announced its decision to
voluntarily stay the new rules pending judicial review of certain legal challenges filed requesting that the proposed rules
be vacated. As a result, the timing and scope of the new rules remains unknown. However, the Company is continuing to
evaluate the potential impact of the rules, as adopted in March 2024, on the Company’ s consolidated financial
statements and related disclosures . New Accounting Pronouncements See “ Part 11, Item 8. Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data — Note 1 — Significant Accounting Policies — New Accounting Pronouncements. ”” ITEM 7A.
QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK. Market risk represents the risk of
changes in the value of market risk sensitive instruments caused by fluctuations in foreign exchange rates, interest rates, and
commodity prices. Changes in these factors could cause fluctuations in the results of our operations and cash flows. In the
ordinary course of business, we are primarily exposed to inflation and interest rate risks. We rely on third parties to supply raw
materials used in the manufacturing process, including resins, fiberglass, aluminum, lumber, and steel, as well as product parts
and components. The prices for these raw materials, parts, and components fluctuate depending on market conditions and, in
some instances, commodity prices or trade policies, including tariffs. Substantial increases in the prices of raw materials, parts,
and components would increase our operating costs, and could reduce our profitability if we are unable to recoup the increased
costs through higher product prices or improved operating efficiencies. As of June 30, 2623-2024 , we had $ 54-49 . 8-5 million
of long- term debt outstanding, bearing interest at the effective interest rate of 6. 56-69 %. See Note 9 in Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements for more information regarding our long- term debt. A hypothetical 1 % increase or decrease in interest
rates would have resulted in a $ 0. 6-5 million change to our interest expense for fiscal 2623-2024 . ITEM 8. FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA. The financial statements and supplementary financial information required
to be filed under this [tem 8 are presented in Part IV, Item 15 of this Form 10- K. ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND
DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE. ITEM 9A.
CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures We maintain disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Rule 13a- 15 (e) and 15d- 15 (e) (of the Exchange Act) that are designed to ensure that information
required to be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized
and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC - s rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and
communicated to our management, including our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, as appropriate, to allow
timely decisions regarding required disclosures. Any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can
provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives. As of the end of the period covered by this Form
10- K Annual Report, we carried out an evaluation under the supervision and with the participation of our management,
including our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures.
Based on this evaluation, our chief executive officer and chief financial officer have concluded that our disclosure controls and
procedures were effective as of June 30, 2623-2024 . Management’ s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting Our
management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rule
13a- 15 (f) and 15d- 15 (f) under the Exchange Act. Internal control over financial reporting is a process to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of our financial reporting for external purposes in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not
prevent or detect misstatements. Projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate. Our management, including our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, assessed the
effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of June 30, 2623-2024 . In making this assessment, we used the
criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (** COSO *-”) in Internal
Control- Integrated Framework (2013). Based on such assessment our management has concluded that, as of June 30, 2623-2024



, our internal control over financial reporting is effective based on those criteria. The effectiveness of our internal control over
financial reporting as of June 30, 2623-2024 , has been audited by our independent registered public accounting firm, Deloitte &
Touche LLP, as stated in their report which is included in Item 15 of this Annual Report on Form 10- K. Changes in Internal
Control Over Financial Reporting There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting, as defined in
Exchange Act Rule 13a- 15 (f) and 15d- 15 (f), during the period covered by this report that have materially affected, or are
reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting. ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION Director
and Officer Rule 10b5- 1 Trading Arrangements During the three months ended June 30, 2623-2024 , none of our directors or *
“ officers - (as defined in Rule 16a- 1 (f) under the Exchange Act) adopted, modified or terminated - Rule 10b5- 1 trading
arrangements *-” or - non- Rule 10b5- 1 trading arrangements +-” (each as defined in Item 408 of Regulation S- K). ITEM 9C.
DISCOLSURE REGARDING FOREIGN JURISDICTIONS THAT PREVENT INSPECTIONS PART III ITEM 10.
DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE. The information required by this Item 10 will
be included in the Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference. ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION The
information required by this Item 11 will be included in the Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference. ITEM 12.
SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS The information required by this Item 12 will be included in the Proxy Statement and is
incorporated herein by reference. ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS, AND
DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE The information required by this Item 13 will be included in the Proxy Statement and is
incorporated herein by reference. ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES. The information required
by this Item 14 will be included in the Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference. PART IV ITEM 15.
EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES. a. Documents included in this report: 1. Financial Statements Reports
of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm (PCAOB ID: 34) Consolidated Balance Sheets Consolidated Statements of
Operations Consolidated Statements of Equity Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements2. Financial Statement Schedules Financial statement schedules have been omitted because they are either not
required, not applicable or the information required to be presented is included in our financial statements and related notes. 3.
Exhibits The following documents are filed as a part of this annual report on Form 10- K or are incorporated by reference to
previous filings, if so indicated: ExhibitNo. Description Form File No. Exhibit Filing Date FiledHerewith 3. 1 Amended and
Restated Certificate of Incorporation of MCBC Holdings, Inc. 10- K 001- 37502 3. 19 /18 /15 3. 2 Certificate of Amendment
to Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of MasterCraft Boat Holdings, Inc. 10- Q 001-375023.211/9/183.3
Certificate of Amendment to Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of MasterCraft Boat Holdings, Inc. 8- K 001-
375023.110/25/19 3. 4 Fourth Amended and Restated By- laws of MasterCraft Boat Holdings, Inc. 8- K 001- 37502 3.2 10
/25/19 4.1 Common stock certificate of MasterCraft Boat Holdings, Inc. S- 1/ A 333-2038154.17/15/15 4. 2 Description
of Registrant’ s Securities Registered Pursuant to Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 * 10. 1 ¥+ MCBC Holdings,
Inc. 2010 Equity Incentive Plan S- 1/ A 333-203815 10.2 6 /25 /15 10. 2 ¥+ MCBC Holdings, Inc. 2015 Incentive Award Plan
S-1/A333-20381510.47/15/1510. 3 § Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement and Grant Notice under 2015
Incentive Award Plan (employee) S- 1/ A 333-203815 10. 10 7/1/15 10. 4 1+ Form of Stock Option Agreement and Grant
Notice under 2015 Incentive Award Plan (employee) S- 1 / A 333-203815 10. 127/7 /15 10. 5 + Form of Restricted Stock
Award Grant Notice under 2015 Incentive Award Plan (director) S- 1 / A 333-203815 10. 13 7/7 /15 10. 6 T Senior Executive
Incentive Bonus Plan 10- K 001- 37502 10. 8 9 / 18 / 1510.7 T Non- Employee Director Compensatlon Pohcy 10- K 001-
37502 10.79/13/19 10. 8 T Empleym e 3 atrie
F34940-9-FForm of Indemnlﬁcatlon Agreement for dlrectors and ofﬁcers S 1/ A 333 203815 10 97/ 7 /15 10 -1-9—9 il
Form of Performance Stock Unit Award Agreement under 2015 Incentive Award Plan 8- K 001- 37502 10. 1 8/26/16 10. +
10 Fourth Amended and Restated Credit and Guaranty Agreement, dated October 1, 2018, by and among MasterCraft Boat
Holdings, Inc. as a guarantor, MasterCraft Boat Company, LLC, MasterCraft Services, LLC, MasterCraft International Sales
Administration, Inc., Nautic Star, LLC, NS Transport, LLC, and Crest Marine LLC as borrowers, Fifth Third Bank as the agent
and letter of credit issuer, and the lenders party thereto 8- K 001- 37502 10. 1 10 /1 /18 10. 42-11 Amendment No. 3 to the
Fourth Amended and Restated Credit and Guaranty Agreement 10- Q 001- 37502 10. 1 5/8/20 10. +3-12 § Offer Letter, dated
December 2, 2019 8- K 001- 37502 10. 1 12/3 /19 10. 13 1 Offer Letter, dated March 1, 2024 8- K 001- 37502 10.23 /4 /
24 10. 14 + Retirement and Consulting Agreement, dated March 1, 2024 8- K 001- 37502 10. 13 /4 /24 10. 15 { Form of
PSU Award Agreement 8- K 001- 37502 10. 1 7/22 /20 10. +5-16 Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Merritt Island Facility
10- Q 001-37502 10. 1 11/12/20 10. +6-17 Amendment No. 4 and Joinder to Fourth Amended and Restated Credit and
Guaranty Agreement 10- Q 001- 37502 10.12/10/21 10. +718 Credit Agreement, dated as of June 28, 2021, among
MasterCraft Boat Holdings, Inc., the Lenders Party Thereto and JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N. A., as Administrative Agent,
Sole Bookrunner and Sole Lead Arranger and FIFTH THIRD BANK and BMO HARRIS BANK, N. A., as Co- Syndication
Agents 8- K 001-37502 10. 1 6 /28 /2021 10. 4819 Second Amendment to Credit Agreement 10- K 001- 37502 10. 18 8 /30 /
23 10. 20 Third Amendment to Credit Agreement 10- Q 001- 37502 10.1 11 /8 /23 19. 1 Insider Trading Compliance
Policy * 21. 1 List of subsidiaries of MasterCraft Boat Holdings, Inc. * 23. 1 Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP, independent
registered public accounting firm * 31. 1 Rule 13a- 14 (a) / 15d- 14 (a) Certification of Principal Executive Officer * 31. 2 Rule
13a- 14 (a) / 15d- 14 (a) Certification of Principal Financial Officer * 32. 1 Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive
Officer * * 32. 2 Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial Officer * * 97. 1 Amended and Restated Clawback Policy *
101. INS Inline XBRL Instance Document * 101. SCH Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document * 101. CAL
Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document * 101. DEF Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition
Linkbase Document * 101. LAB Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document * 101. PRE Inline XBRL
Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document * Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as Inline XBRL and




contained in Exhibit 101). *  Indicates management contract or compensatory plan. * Filed herewith. * * Furnished herewith.
ITEM 16. FORM 10- K SUMMARY. Not Applicable. SIGNATURES Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15 (d) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned,
thereunto duly authorized. Date: August 36-29 , 2623-2024 MASTERCRAFT BOAT HOLDINGS, INC. By: / s / FREBERICK
A-BRADLEY M . BRIGHFBH-E-NELSON Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer) and DirectorPursuant
Chairman-ofthe- BoeardPursuant-to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below
by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated. Signature Title Date /s /
FREPERICK-A-BRADLEY M . BRIGHTBH-E-NELSON Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer) and Director
Bradley M Chairman-of the Board-FredertelkA—. Brightbi-Nelson August 36-29 , 2023-2024 /s / TIMOTHY M. OXLEY Chief
Financial Officer (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer), Treasurer and Secretary Timothy M. Oxley August 36-29 , 2623
2024 /s / ROCH LAMBERT Chairman of the Board Roch Lambert August 29, 2024 /s / W. PATRICK BATTLE Director
W. Patrick Battle August 36-29 , 2623-2024 /s / JACLYN BAUMGARTEN Director Jaclyn Baumgarten August 36-29 , 2623
2024 /s / DONALD C. CAMPION Director Donald C. Campion August 36-29 , 2623-2024 / s / JENNIFER DEASON Director
Jennifer Deason August 36-29 , 2623-2024 +s+R9€H—I:AN{BER—T—Bﬁeefer—Ree}rbambeﬁ—Augus{—39—2923—/ s/ PETER G.
LEEMPUTTE Director Peter G. Leemputte August 36-29 , 2623-2024 / s / KAMILAH MITCHELL- THOMAS Director
Kamilah Mitchell- Thomas August 36-29 , 2623-2024 REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING
FIRM To the steekholders-shareholders and the Board of Directors of MasterCraft Boat Holdings, Inc. Opinion on the
Financial Statements-StatementsWe We-have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of MasterCraft Boat
Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries (the" Company") as of June 30, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-, the related consolidated statements of
operations, equity, and cash flows, for each of the three years in the period ended June 30, 2623-2024 , and the related notes
(collectively referred to as the" financial statements"). In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company as of June 30, 2024 and 2023 ard-20822-, and the results of its operations and its
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended June 30, 2023-2024 , in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB), the Company’ s internal control over financial reporting
as of June 30, 2024, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated August 29, 2024, expressed
an unquallfied opmlon on the Cornpany s 1nterna1 control over ﬁnan01al reportmg as—ef—}uﬁe—39—292-3—based-eﬁ—efﬁeﬂa

eﬁnﬁfe-l—ever—ﬁnaﬁei‘a-l—repefﬁﬂg— Ba51s for Op1n10n These ﬁnanc1a1 statements are the resp0n51b111ty of the Company

management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company &’ s financial statements based on our audits. We are a
public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in
accordance with the U. S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission and the PCAOB. We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks.
Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion. Critical Audit Matter The critical audit matter communicated below is a matter arising from the current- period audit of
the financial statements that was communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that (1) relates to
accounts or disclosures that are material to the financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or
complex judgments. The communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion on the financial
statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matter below, providing a separate opinion on
the critical audit matter or on the accounts or disclosures to which it relates. Product Warranties — Refer to Notes 1 and 8 to the
financial statements Critical Audit Matter Description The Company offers warranties on the sale of certain of its products for
periods of between one and five years. Estimated costs that may be incurred under these warranties are accrued at the time the
product revenue is recognized. These estimated costs are based upon the number of units sold, historical and anticipated rates of
warranty claims, and the cost per claim. We identified the accrued warranty liability related to ef$24—6-millienfor-the
MasterCraft and Aviara brand-brands as a critical audit matter because of the significant judgments made by management to
estimate the anticipated rates of warranty claims and cost per claim related to product warranties at the time the product revenue
is recognized. This required a high degree of auditor judgment and an increased extent of effort when performing audit
procedures to evaluate the reasonableness of management’ s estimates of the rates and costs of future warranty claims. How the
Critical Audit Matter Was Addressed in the Audit Our audit procedures related to the accrued warranty liability for the
MasterCraft and Aviara brand-brands included the following, among others: « We evaluated the design and operating
effectiveness of controls over management’ s estimation of the accrued warranty liability, including those over historical product
warranty claim data and projected future product warranty claims. « We evaluated the accuracy and completeness of the
historical product warranty claims as an input to management’ s accrued warranty liability calculation. + We evaluated
management’ s ability to accurately estimate the accrued warranty liability by comparing the accrued warranty liability in the
prior year to the actual product warranty claims paid in the current year. « We evaluated the completeness of the accrued
warranty liability through inquiries of operational and executive management regarding knowledge of known product warranty




claims or product issues and evaluated whether they were appropriately considered in the determination of the accrued warranty
liability. « We assessed management’ s methodology and tested the valuation of the accrued warranty liability by developing an
independent expectation for the accrual based on historical and current year warranty claims activity and any known trends in
warranty claims or specific product issues, and compared our expectation to the amount recorded by management. / s / Deloitte
& Touche LLP Nashville, TennesseeAugust 36-29 , 2623-2024 We have served as the Company' s auditor since 2019. Opinion
on Internal Control over Financial Reporting We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of MasterCraft Boat
Holdings Inc. and subsidiaries (the “ Company ) as of June 30, 2023-2024 , based on criteria established in Internal Control —
Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). In
our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of June 30,
2623-2024 , based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by COSO. We have also
audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB), the
consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended June 30, 2623-2024 , of the Company and our report dated August
36-29 , 2623-2024 , expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements. Basis for Opinion The Company’ s
management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management' s Report on Internal
Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’ s internal control over financial
reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent
with respect to the Company in accordance with the U. S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the
Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB. We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the
PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective
internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding
of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Definition and
Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting A company’ s internal control over financial reporting is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’ s internal control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’ s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate. MASTERCRAFT BOAT HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS June
30, June 30, ( Dollar amounts in thousands, except per share data) ASSETS CURRENT ASSETS: Cash and cash equivalents $
7,394 $ 19, 817 $34,203-Held- to- maturity securities (Note 4) 78, 846 91, 560 —Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $
101 and $ 122 and-$244- respectively 15, 382 15, 741 225472-Income tax receivable — Inventories, net (Note 5) 44, 267 58,
298 58;-595-Prepaid expenses and other current assets 8, 686 10, 083 F232-Current-assets-assoetated-with-diseontinued
eperattons-{Note-3)—23-668-Total current assets 155, 074 195, 499 +46;-H0-Property, plant and equipment, net (Note 6) 73,
813 77, 921 55:-823-Goodwill (Note 7) 28, 493 28, 493 Other intangible assets, net (Note 7) 33, 650 35, 462 3F-4+8-Deferred
income taxes 18 584 12, 428 %—Deferred debt issuance costs, net Other long- term assets 8, 098 3, 869 +;296-Neomn-

e S se 2t Total assets $ 317,984 $ 353, 976 $297-0652
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY CURRENT LIABILITIES Accounts payable 12,178 20, 391 23;:3%5-Income tax payable — 5,
272 4-686-Accrued expenses and other current liabilities (Note 8) 61, 384 72, 496 54—43—7—Current portlon of Iong term debt
net of unamortized debt issuance costs (Note 9) 4, 374 4,381 2; e5-ass e S
Nete-3)—F88FTotal current liabilities 77,936 102, 540 93—1—7Q—L0ng term debt net of unamortlzed debt issuance costs
(Note 9) 44, 887 49, 295 53;-676-Unrecognized tax positions 8,549 7, 350 6;358-Other long- term liabilities 2, 733 2, 702 Total
liabilities 134, 105 161, 887 +53;:404-COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Note 12) EQUITY: Common stock, $. 01
par value per share — authorized, 100, 000, 000 shares; issued and outstanding, 16, 759, 109 shares at June 30, 2024 and 17,
312, 850 shares at June 30, 2023 and38;-06543Fshares-atJune 36, 2022-Additional paid- in capital 59, 892 75, 976 96,584
Retained earnings 123, 620 115, 820 46;-883-MasterCraft Boat Holdings, Inc. equity 183, 679 191, 969 +43;-648-Noncontrolling
interest —Total equity 183, 879 192, 089 +43;-648-Total liabilitics and equity $ 317, 984 $ 353, 976 $297652-The Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS For the Years Ended June 30 (Dollar amounts in thousands, except per share data) NET
SALES $ 366, 588 $ 662, 046 $ 641, 609 $465;962-COST OF SALES 299, 491 492, 333 473, 419 346;-834+-GROSS PROFIT
67,097 169, 713 168, 190 -1—25—1—3—1—OPEMTING EXPENSES: Selling and marketing 13, 430 13, 808 12, 869 +5-576-General
and administrative 34, 396 37, 034 36, 070 32;-956-Amortization of other intangible assets 1, 812 1, 956 1, 956 +-956-Geodwilt
impairment-Impairments (Notes 5, 6, and 7) 9, 827 — 1, 100 —Total operating expenses 59 465 52, 798 51, 995 46:488
OPERATING INCOME 7, 632 116, 915 116, 195 —7-8—643-OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE): Interest expense ( 3 292) (2, 679)

(1,471 335392 Interest income 5, 789 3, 351 — —Loss-onextinguishment-ofdebt————7333INCOME BEFORE




INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10, 129 117, 587 114, 724 #4;-5+8- INCOME TAX EXPENSE 1, 407 27, 135 26, 779 +6;-688-NET
INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 8, 722 90, 452 87, 945 58;438-LOSS FROM DISCONTINUED
OPERATIONS, NET OF TAX (Note 3) (922) (21, 515) (29, 731 H2;268-) NET INCOME §$ 7, 800 $ 68, 937 $ 58, 214 $-56;
+76-NET INCOME (LOSS) PER SHARE: Basic Continuing operations $ 0. 52 $ 5. 13 $ 4. 77 $3—3+-Discontinued operations (
0.06) (1.22)(1.62y042) Net income $0.46$ 3. 91 $ 3. 15 $2-99-Diluted Continuing operations $ 0.51$5.09 $4. 72 %
308-Discontinued operations (0. 05) (1. 21) (1. 60 3632 Net income $ 0. 46 $ 3. 88 $ 3. 12 $2-96-WEIGHTED
AVERAGE SHARES USED FOR COMPUTATION OF: Basic earnings per share 16, 930,348 17, 618, 797 18, 455, 226 18;
865;464-Diluted earnings per share 17, 038,305 17, 765, 117 18, 636, 512 +8;95552+-CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF
EQUITY MasterCraft Additional Retamed—Eammgs—Maﬁefoa-ft—Boat Common Stock Paid- in Retained (Aeeumutated
Holdings, fre=Noncontrolling Total (Dollar amounts in thousands yexeeptshare-data-) Shares Amount Capital Deftetty
Earnings Inc. Equity Interest Equity Balance at June 30, %9%9—2021 18 8—7—1—956 637719 $ § -1—1-6—118 -1-8-2—930 $ (67—11 56+
331)$48—107 '849-788$—$ ased aety

34 e-atJu 5 107 788 Share—
based compensatlon acthlty 79 879 3, 099 3,100 — 3, 100 Repurchase and retlrement ofcommon stock (975, 161) (9) (25,
445) — (25, 454) — (25, 454) Net income — — — 58, 214 58, 214 — 58, 214 Balance at June 30, 2022 18, 061, 437 96, 584
46, 883 143, 648 — 143, 648 Share- based compensation activity 123, 468 2,452 — 2,453 — 2, 453 Repurchase and
retirement of common stock (872, 055) (9) (23, 060) — (23, 069) — (23, 069) Capital contribution from noncontrolling interest
————— Net income — — — 68, 937 68, 937 — 68, 937 Balance at June 30, 2023 17, 312, 850 75, 976 115, 820 191,
969 192, 089 Share- based compensation activity 197, 202 — — Repurchase and retirement of common stock (750, 943)
(8) (16, 365) — (16, 373) — (16, 373) Capital contribution from noncontrolling interest — — — — — Net income — —
— 17,8007, 800 — 7, 800 Balance at June 30, 2024 16, 759, 109 $ $ 75-59 , 976-892 $ H5-123 , 826-620 S 194183 , 969-679
$ $492-183 , 689-879 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS For the Years Ended June 30 (Dollar amounts in
thousands) CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: Net income $ 7, 800 $ 68, 937 $ 58, 214 $56;34706-Loss from
discontinued operations, net of tax 21, 515 29, 731 2;,268Net income from continuing operations 8, 722 90, 452 87, 945 58;
438-Adjustments to reconcile net income from continuing operations to net cash provided by operating activities: Depreciation
and amortization 11, 182 10, 569 9, 731 §;368-Share- based compensation 2, 598 3, 656 3, 510 2;-932-Unrecognized tax
benefits 1,199 2, 528 Deferred income taxes (6, 156) 9, 097 (6, 390) Geedwitlimpairment-Impairments 9, 827 — 1, 100 —
Changes in certain operating assets and liabilities Accounts receivable (428) 10, 332 (13, 010) 5835 -Inventories 10, 457 (18,
105 H26;:75+) Prepaid expenses and other current assets 1, 503 (2, 851) (2, 208 H45358) Income taxes (5, 771) 4, 224 5466
Accounts payable (7, 959) (3, 258) 3, 253 95-888-Accrued expenses and other current liabilities (10, 962) 16, 155 10, 189 425
272-Other, net (1, 643) (389) +-6+5-Net cash provided by operating activities of continuing operations 12, 569 136, 824 82,
378 #37-96+Net cash used in operating activities of discontinued operations ( 72) (2, 628) (9, 067 3H5423-) Net cash provided
by operating activities 12, 497 134, 196 73, 311 68;538-CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: Purchases of
property, plant and equipment ( 16, 361) (30, 323) (12, 296) 25;249)-Purchases of investments ( 143, 840) ( 123, 360)
Maturities of investments 158, 411 32, 750 — Other, net — — Net cash used in investing activities of continuing operations (
1, 785) (120, 933) (12, 296 ¥25;:249-) Net cash used in investing activities of discontinued operations — (501) (3, 524 H256+3
) Net cash used in investing activities ( 1, 785) ( 121, 434) (15, 820 H2%-832-) CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES: Principal payments on long- term debt (4, 500) ( 3, OOO) (3 000 )—699—993—) Repurchase and retirement of
common stock (16, 257) (22, 949) (25, 454) —Preeeeds SRR e g—termrdeb 60;-600-Borrowings on
revolving credit facility — — 12, 000 56—2—2—8—Pr1n01pa1 payments on revolvmg “credit facﬂlty —— (45 728) 325560 Other,
net (2,378) (1, 199) (358 ¥45-568-) Net cash used in financing activities of continuing operations ( 23, 135) (27, 148) (62, 540
H+7+3) NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (12, 423) ( 14, 386) (5, 049) 22;-933-CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS — BEGINNING OF PERIOD 19, 817 34, 203 39, 252 +6;345-CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS — END
OF PERIOD $ 7,394 $ 19, 817 $ 34, 203 $39;252-SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash payments for interest , net of amounts capitalized $ 2,993 $ 2, 425 § 1, 190 $2,852-Cash payments for income taxes 11,
611 10, 053 18, 833 55476-NON- CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES: Activity related to sales- type lease
3, 898 — — Capital expenditures in accounts payable and accrued expenses NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Unless otherwise noted, dollars in thousands, except per share data and per unit data) 1. SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIESBasis of Presentation and Principles of Consolidation — The accompanying financial statements are
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“ U. S. GAAP ). The
consolidated financial statements include the accounts of MasterCraft Boat Holdings, Inc. (“ Holdings ) and its wholly owned
subsidiaries from the dates of their acquisitions. Holdings and its subsidiaries collectively are referred to herein as the
Company. ” All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. Holdings has no
independent operations and no material assets, other than its wholly owned equity interests in its subsidiaries, as of June 30,
2024 and 2023 and2022- and no material liabilities. As of June 30, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-, Holdings had no material
contingencies, long- term obligations, or guarantees other than a guarantee of its subsidiaries’ long- term debt (see Note 9).
Discontinued Operations — On September 2, 2022, the Company sold substantially all of the assets and liabilities of its
NauticStar segment. The disposal represented the Company -’ s exit from the saltwater and deck boat category, a strategic shift
that has a significant effect on the Company +” s operations and financial results, and as such, qualifies for reporting as
discontinued operations. The NauticStar segment results, for the periods presented, are reflected in our consolidated statements
of operations and consolidated statements of cash flows as discontinued operations. Additionally, the related assets and
liabilities associated with the discontinued operations are classified as discontinued operations in our consolidated balance sheet
for the prior period presented (see Note 3). Unless otherwise indicated, the financial disclosures and related information




provided herein relate to our continuing operations and we have recast prior period amounts to reflect discontinued operations.
Reclassifications — Certain historical amounts have been reclassified in these consolidated financial statements and the
accompanying notes herewith to conform to current presentation. Use of Estimates — The preparation of the Company’ s
consolidated financial statements in conformity with U. S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses and related disclosures. The Company bases these
estimates on historical results and various other assumptions believed to be reasonable. The Company’ s most significant
financial statement estimates include impairment of goodwill and indefinite- lived intangible assets, warranty liability,
unrecognized tax positions, inventory repurchase contingent obligations, and impairment of long- lived assets and intangible
assets subject to amortization. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Revenue Recognition — The Company’ s
revenue is derived primarily from the sale of boats and trailers, marine parts, and accessories to its independent dealers. The
Company recognizes revenue when obligations under the terms of a contract are satisfied and control over promised goods is
transferred to a customer. For substantially all sales, this occurs when the product is released to the carrier responsible for
transporting it to a customer. The Company typically receives payment from the floor plan financing providers within 5 business
days of shipment. Revenue is measured as the amount of consideration it expects to receive in exchange for a product. The
Company offers dealer incentives that include wholesale rebates, retail rebates and promotions, floor plan reimbursement or
cash discounts, and other allowances that are recorded as reductions of revenues in Net sales in the consolidated statements of
operations. The consideration recognized represents the amount specified in a contract with a customer, net of estimated
incentives the Company reasonably expects to pay. The estimated liability and reduction in revenue for dealer incentives is
recorded at the time of sale. Subsequent adjustments to incentive estimates are possible because actual results may differ from
these estimates if conditions dictate the need to enhance or reduce sales promotion and incentive programs or if dealer
achievement or other items vary from historical trends. Accrued dealer incentives are included in Accrued expenses and other
current liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Rebates and DiscountsDealers earn wholesale rebates based
on purchase volume commitments and achievement of certain performance metrics. The Company estimates the amount of
wholesale rebates based on historical achievement, forecasted volume, and assumptions regarding dealer behavior. Rebates that
apply to boats already in dealer inventory are referred to as retail rebates. The Company estimates the amount of retail rebates
based on historical data for specific boat models adjusted for forecasted sales volume, product mix, dealer and consumer
behavior, and assumptions concerning market conditions. The Company also utilizes various programs whereby it offers cash
discounts or agrees to reimburse its dealers for certain floor plan interest costs incurred by dealers for limited periods of time,
generally ranging up to nine months. 45-47 Shipping and Handling CostsShipping and handling costs includes those costs
incurred to transport product to customers and internal handling costs, which relate to activities to prepare goods for shipment.
The Company has elected to account for shipping and handling costs associated with outbound freight after control over a
product has transferred to a customer as a fulfillment cost. The Company includes shipping and handling costs, including costs
billed to customers, in Cost of sales in the consolidated statements of operations. Contract LiabilitiesA contract liability is
created when eus’eemefs—pfepay—fe%amounts are collected prlor to hav1ng completed performance obligations related to
goods er-and services pri y g : mer- The contract
liability is reduced once eonﬁrel—ef—the geeds—ts—t—rafrsfeﬁed-to—t-he—eﬂstemefassocmted performance obllgatlon has been
satisfied . The difference between the opening and closing balances of the Company’ s contract liabilities primarily results from
the timing difference between the Company’ s performance and the point at which it receives advanced pre—payment from the
customer. Other Revenue Recognition MattersDealers generally have no right to return unsold boats. Occasionally, the
Company may accept returns in limited circumstances and at the Company”’ s discretion under its warranty policy. The
Company may be obligated, in the event of default by a dealer, to accept returns of unsold boats under its repurchase
commitment to floor financing providers, who are able to obtain such boats through foreclosure. The repurchase commitment is
on an individual unit basis with a term from the date it is financed by the lending institution through the payment date by the
dealer, generally not exceeding 30 months. The Company accounts for these arrangements as guarantees and recognizes a
liability based on the estimated fair value of the repurchase obligation. The estimated fair value takes into account our estimate
of the loss we will incur upon resale of any repurchases. The Company accrues the estimated fair value of this obligation based
on the age of inventory currently under floor plan financing and estimated credit quality of dealers holding the inventory. Inputs
used to estimate this fair value include significant unobservable inputs that reflect the Company’ s assumptions about the inputs
that market participants would use and, therefore, this liability is classified within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The
Company has excluded sales and other taxes assessed by a governmental authority in connection with revenue- producing
activities from the determination of the transaction price for all contracts. The Company has not adjusted net sales for the effects
of a significant financing component because the period between the transfer of the promised goods and the customer ~? s
payment is expected to be one year or less. Accounts Receivable — Accounts receivable represents amounts billed to customers
under credit terms customary in its industry. The Company normally does not charge interest on its accounts receivable. The
Company carries its accounts receivable at face value, net of an allowance for doubtful accounts, which the Company records
on a regular basis based upon known bad debt risks and past loss history, customer payment practices and economic conditions.
Actual collection experience may differ from the current estimate of net receivables. A change to the allowance for doubtful
accounts may be required if a future event or other change in circumstances results in a change in the estimate of the ultimate
collectability of a specific account. Amounts recorded as bad debt expense, write- offs, and recoveries were not material for the
years ended June 30, 2024, 2023, and 2022 ;and-2624-. Cash and Cash Equivalents — The Company considers all highly-
liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash and cash equivalents. The Company' s cash and
cash equivalents include cash deposits and money market funds. The Company’ s cash deposits may at times exceed federally
insured amounts. Held- to- Maturity Securities — The Company invests excess cash balances in short- term debt securities, such
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We clas51fy our 1nvestments in debt securltles based on the facts and circumstances present at the time of purchase of the
securities. We subsequently reassess the appropriateness of that classification at each reporting date. As of June 30, 2024 and
2023, all of our investments in debt securities were classified as held- to- maturity and are due to mature within one year (see
Note 4). Inputs used to estimate the fair value of our investments include significant other observable inputs and, therefore, are
classified within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. 46-Concentrations of Credit and Business Risk — Financial instruments that
potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk primarily consist of trade receivables. Credit risk on trade
receivables is mitigated as a result of the Company’ s use of trade letters of credit, dealer floor plan financing arrangements, and
the geographically diversified nature of the Company”’ s customer base. Supplier ConcentrationsThe Company is dependent on
the ability of its suppliers to provide products on a timely basis and on favorable pricing terms. The loss of certain principal
suppliers or a significant reduction in product availability from principal suppliers could have a material adverse effect on the
Company. Business risk insurance is in place to mitigate the business risk associated with sole suppliers for sudden disruptions
such as those caused by natural disasters. 48 The Company is dependent on third- party equipment manufacturers, distributors,
and dealers for certain parts and materials utilized in the manufacturing process. During the years ended June 30, 2024, 2023,
and 2022 ;and-2024-, the Company purchased all engines for its MasterCraft performance sport boats under a supply agreement
with a single vendor. Total purchases for all segments from this vendor were $ 27. 2 million, $ 47. 6 million, and $ 45. 0
mithen-and-$40-6-million for the years ended June 30, 2024, 2023, and 2022 ;ard2024- respectively. During the years ended
June 30, 2024, 2023, and 2022 ;and262+, the Company purchased outboard engines for its Aviara boats and, a majority of the
engines for its Crest boats, and all of the engines for its Balise boats under a supply agreement with a single vendor. Total
purchases from this vendor were $ 13. 8 million, $ 31. 0 million, and $ 34. 0 milten;and-$22-Fmillion for the years ended
June 30, 2024, 2023, and 2022 ;ard-2024, respectively. Inventories — Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net
realizable value and are shown net of an inventory allowance in the consolidated balance sheet. Inventory cost includes material,
labor, and manufacturing overhead and is determined based on the first- in, first- out (FIFO) method. Provisions are made as
necessary to reduce inventory amounts to their net realizable value or to provide for obsolete inventory. Property, Plant, and
Equipment — Property, plant, and equipment are recorded at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and are depreciated
on a straight- line basis over the estimated useful lives. Repairs and maintenance are charged to operations as incurred, and
expenditures for additions and improvements that increase the asset’ s useful life are capitalized. For the years ended June 30,
2024, 2023, and 2022 ;and-2024-, ranges of asset lives used for depreciation purposes are: Buildings and improvements-
yearsMachinery and equipment- yearsFurniture and fixtures- years Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets — The Company does
not amortize goodwill and other purchased intangible assets with indefinite lives, which are primarily related to trade names.
The Company’ s intangible assets with finite lives consist primarily of dealer networks and are carried at their estimated fair
values at the time of acquisition, less accumulated amortization. Amortization is recognized on a straight- line basis over the
estimated useful lives of the respective assets (see Note 7). Intangible assets that are subject to amortization are evaluated for
impairment using a process similar to that used to evaluate long- lived assets described below. The Company has three reporting
units, MasterCraft, €rest-Pontoon , and Aviara, which each relate to an operating segment as described in Note 14. As of June
30,2623-2024 , all of the Company’ s goodwill relates to the MasterCraft reporting unit and all of the Company”’ s other
intangible assets relate to the MasterCraft and €rest-Pontoon reporting units. GoodwillGoodwill results from the excess of
purchase price over the net identifiable assets of businesses acquired. The Company reviews goodwill for impairment annually,
at its fiscal year- end annual impairment testing date, and whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the fair
value of a reporting unit may be below its carrying value. As part of the impairment tests, the Company may perform a
qualitative, rather than quantitative, assessment to determine whether the fair values of its reporting units are “ more likely than
ot ” to be greater than their carrying values. In performing this qualitative analysis, the Company considers various factors,
including the effect of market or industry changes and the reporting units +* actual results compared to projected results. If the
fair value of a reporting unit does not meet the £ more likely than not *-” criteria discussed above, the impairment test for
goodwill is a quantitative test. This test involves comparing the fair value of the reporting unit with its carrying value. If the fair
value exceeds the carrying value, goodwill is not considered impaired. If the carrying amount exceeds the fair value then the
goodwill is considered impaired and an impairment loss is recognized in an amount by which the carrying value exceeds the
reporting unit’ s fair value, not to exceed the carrying amount of the goodwill allocated to that reporting unit. The Company
calculates the fair value of its reporting units by considering both the income approach and market approach. The income
approach calculates the fair value of the reporting unit using a discounted cash flow method. Internally forecasted future cash
flows, which the Company believes reasonably approximate market participant assumptions, are discounted using a weighted
average cost of capital (“ Discount Rate ”’) developed for each reporting unit. The Discount Rate is developed using observable
market inputs, as well as 4#considering whether or not there is a measure of risk related to the specific reporting unit’ s
forecasted performance. Fair value under the market approach is determined for each unit by applying market multiples for
comparable public companies to the unit’ s financial results. The key judgements in these calculations are the assumptions used
in determining the reporting unit’ s forecasted future performance, including revenue growth and operating margins, as well as
the perceived risk associated with those forecasts in determining the Discount Rate, along with selecting representative market
multiples. Fhe-During the year ended June 30, 2022, the Company recognized a $ 1. 1 million goodwill impairment charge
within the Aviara segment during-the-year-endedJune30;2022-(sce Note 7). 49 Other Intangible AssetsThe Company - s
primary intangible assets other than goodwill are dealer networks and trade names acquired in business combinations. These
intangible assets are initially valued using a methodology commensurate with the intended use of the asset. The dealer networks
were valued using an income approach, which requires an estimate or forecast of the expected future cash flows from the dealer




network through the application of the multi- period excess earnings approach. The fair value of trade names is measured using
a relief- from- royalty approach, a variation of the income approach, which requires an estimate or forecast of the expected
future cash flows. This method assumes the value of the trade name is the discounted cash flows of the amount that would be
paid to third parties had the Company not owned the trade name and instead licensed the trade name from another company.
The basis for future sales projections for these methods are internal revenue forecasts by reporting unit, which the Company
believes represent reasonable market participant assumptions. The future cash flows are discounted using an applicable Discount
Rate as well as any potential risk premium to reflect the inherent risk of holding a standalone intangible asset. The key
judgements in these fair value calculations, as applicable, are: assumptions used in developing internal revenue growth and
dealer expense forecasts, assumed dealer attrition rates, the selection of an appropriate royalty rate, as well as the perceived risk
associated with those forecasts in determining the Discount Rate. The costs of amortizable intangible assets, including dealer
networks, are recognized over their expected useful lives, approximately ten years for the dealer networks, using the straight-
line method. The dealer network Intangible-intangible assets— asset within our MasterCraft reporting unit is fully
amortized. The dealer network intangible asset within our Pontoon reporting unit that are-is subject to amortization are-is
evaluated for impairment ustng-a-proeess-simtarto-if events or changes in circumstances suggest that used-it may be
impaired. As part of the impairment test, the Company may perform a quantitative assessment to evalnatelong—tived
determine whether the dealer network intangible assets— asset desertbed-below-is impaired. If the carrying value exceeds
the fair value of the asset, an impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the carrying value exceeds the fair
value of . Intangible assets not subject to amortization , including trade names, arc assessed for impairment at least annually
and whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that it is more likely than not that an asset may be impaired. As part
of the annual test, the Company may perform a qualitative, rather than quantitative, assessment to determine whether each trade
name intangible asset is “ more likely than not ” impaired. In performing this qualitative analysis, the Company considers
various factors, including macroeconomic events, industry and market events and cost related events. If the “ more likely than
not ” criteria is not met, the impairment test for indefinite- lived intangible assets consists of a comparison of the fair value of
the intangible asset with its carrying amount. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the carrying value
exceeds the fair value of the asset. Fhe-During the year ended June 30, 2022, the Company recognized $ 18. 5 million in other
intangible asset impairment charges related to the NauticStar reporting unit euring-the-year-endedJune36,2022-. These charges
are included in the loss from discontinued operations (see Note 3). Long- Lived Assets Other than Intangible Assets — The
Company assesses the potential for impairment of its long- lived assets if facts and circumstances, such as declines in sales,
earnings, or cash flows or adverse changes in the business climate, suggest that they may be impaired. A current expectation
that, more likely than not, a long- lived asset (asset group) will be sold or otherwise disposed of significantly before the end of
its previously estimated useful life will also trigger a review for impairment. The Company performs its assessment by
comparing the book value of the asset groups to the estimated future undiscounted cash flows associated with the asset groups.
If any impairment in the carrying value of its long- lived assets is indicated, the assets would be adjusted to an estimate of fair
value. The Company recognized $ 5-6 . 3-9 million in long- lived asset impairment charges related to the NautieStar-Aviara
reporting unit during the year ended June 30, 2024 (see Note 6). During the year ended June 30, 2022 , the Company
recognized $ 5. 3 million in long- lived asset impairment charges related to the NauticStar reporting unit . These charges
are included in the loss from discontinued operations (see Note 3). Product Warranties — The Company offers warranties on
the sale of certain products for periods of between one and five years. These warranties require us or our dealers to repair or
replace defective products during the warranty period at no cost to the consumer. We estimate the costs that may be incurred
under our basic limited warranty and record as a liability the amount of such costs at the time the product revenue is recognized.
Factors that affect our warranty liability include the number of units sold, historical and anticipated rates of warranty claims, and
cost per claim. We periodically assess the adequacy of the recorded warranty liabilities and adjust the amounts as actual claims
are determined or as changes in the obligations become reasonably estimable. We also adjust our liability for specific warranty
matters when they become known, and the exposure can be estimated. Future warranty claims may differ from our estimate of
the warranty liability, which could lead to changes in the Company’ s warranty liability in future periods. 48-50 Income Taxes
— Income tax expense is the total of the current year income tax due or refundable and the change in deferred tax assets and
liabilities. The Company records its global tax provision based on the respective tax rules and regulations for the jurisdictions in
which it operates. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are the expected future tax amounts for the temporary differences between
carrying amounts and tax bases of assets and liabilities, computed using enacted tax rates. Valuation allowances are recorded to
reduce deferred tax assets when it is more likely than not that a tax benefit will not be realized. Significant judgment is required
in evaluating the need for and magnitude of appropriate valuation allowances against deferred tax assets. The realization of
these assets is dependent on generating future taxable income. A tax position is recognized as a benefit only if it is “ more likely
than not ” that the tax position would be sustained in a tax examination, with a tax examination being presumed to occur. The
amount recognized is the largest amount of tax benefit that is greater than 50 % likely of being realized on examination. For tax
positions not meeting the “ more likely than not ” test, no tax benefit is recorded. The Company recognizes interest and / or
penalties related to income tax matters in income tax expense. In determining the amount of current and deferred tax the
Company takes into account the impact of uncertain tax positions and whether additional taxes, interest and penalties may be
due. The Company believes that its accruals for tax liabilities are adequate for all open tax years based on its assessment of
many factors, including interpretations of tax law and prior experience. This assessment relies on estimates and assumptions and
may involve a series of judgments about future events. New information may become available that causes the Company to
change its judgment regarding the adequacy of existing tax liabilities; such changes to tax liabilities will have an impact on tax
expense in the period that such a determination is made. Investment in Sales- Type Lease — On July 1, 2023, the Company
became a lessor in a sales- type lease arrangement consisting of land valued at $ 3. 9 million. The underlying land was



derecognized as property, plant and equipment and a sales- type lease was recognized as a net investment in a lease. The
net investment balances are represented as lease receivable and unguaranteed residual asset amounts on the
consolidated balance sheet within other current assets and other long- term assets. Interest earned on the net investment
is recognized as interest income. The initial term of the lease is ten years and interest income and annual cash flows
under the arrangement are not significant to any year during the term. Rescarch and Development — Research and
development expenditures are expensed as incurred. Research and development expense for the years ended June 30, 2024,
2023, and 2022 ;and202+-was $ 8. 6 million, $ 8. 3 million, and $ 7. 2 mithef;and-$-5—8-million, respectively, and is included
in Operating expenses in the consolidated statements of operations. Self- Insurance — The Company is self- insured for certain
losses relating to product liability claims and employee medical claims. The Company has purchased stop- loss coverage in
order to limit its exposure to any significant levels for these matters. Losses are accrued based on the Company’ s estimates of
the aggregate liability for self- insured claims incurred using certain actuarial assumptions followed in the insurance industry
and the Company’ s historical experience. Deferred Debt Issuance Costs — Certain costs incurred to obtain financing are
capltahzed and amortized over the term of the related debt u%lng the effective interest method. For the yearendedJune36;202%;

eurred-d d-firrmetreeostsof-$-0—6 o he-years ended June 30, 2024, 2023, and 2022 s-and-2624,
the Company recorded related amortization expen%e of $0.3 mllllon, $0.2 mllhon and $0.2 mllhon ﬁrﬂd—$—9—6—ﬂ‘l-l-1-1-teﬁ-
reqpectlvely —Additionally he-yea 0 y

eesfs—. Share- Based Compensation — The Company records amounts for all share- based compensation, including grants of
restricted stock awards and performance stock units over the vesting period in the consolidated statements of operations based
on their fair values at the date of the grant. Forfeitures of share- based compensation, if any, are recognized as they occur.
Share- based compensation costs are included in Selling and marketing and General and administrative expense in the
consolidated statements of Operations-operations . See Note 11 — Share- Based Compensation for a description of the Company
L? s accounting for share- based compensation plans. Advertising — Advertising costs are expensed when the advertising first
takes place. Advertising expense recognized during the years ended June 30, 2024, 2023, and 2022 ;-and2624, was $ 5. 8
million, $ 5. 7 million, and $ 4. 4 million, and—$—4—4—na-1-1-1-teﬂ—respect1vely, and is 1ncluded in Selling and marketing expenses in
the consolidated statements of operations. 49-51 Fair Value Measurements — The Company measures certain of its financial
assets and liabilities at fair value and utilizes the established framework for measuring fair value and disclosing information
about fair value measurements. Fair value is the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability
(exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants on the measurement date. There are three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair values: Level 1 —
Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the entity has the ability to access as of the
measurement date. Level 2 — Significant other observable inputs other than Level 1 prices such as quoted prices for similar
assets or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by
observable market data. Level 3 — Significant unobservable inputs that reflect a company’ s own assumptions about the inputs
that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability. When measuring fair value, the Company considers the
principal or most advantageous market in which it would transact and considers assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability. When possible, the Company looks to active and observable markets to price identical assets.
When identical assets are not traded in active markets, the Company looks to market observable data for similar assets. The
Company’ s most significant financial asset or liability measured at fair value on a recurring basis is its inventory repurchase
contingent obligation (see “ Revenue Recognition- Other Revenue Recognition Matters ” and Note 12). The non- recurring fair
value measurement related to the impairment of goodwill recorded in fiscal 2022 is a level 3 measurement. Fair Value of
Financial Instruments — The carrying amounts of the Company’ s financial instruments, consisting of cash and cash
equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and other liabilities, approximate their estimated fair values due to the
relative short- term nature of the amounts. The carrying amount of debt approximates fair value due to variable interest rates at
customary terms and rates the Company could obtain in current financing. Earnings Per Common Share — Basic earnings per
common share reflects reported earnings divided by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the
reporting period. Diluted earnings per common share include the effect of dilutive stock options, restricted stock awards, and
performance stock units unless inclusion would not be dilutive. Postretirement Benefits — The Company has a defined
contribution plan and makes contributions including matching and discretionary contributions which are based on various
percentages of compensation, and in some instances are based on the amount of the employees' contributions to the plans. The
expense related to the defined contribution plan was $ 1. 6 million, $ 1. 9 million, and $ 1. 7 mitien,and-$3-—-<4-million for the
years ended June 30, 2024, 2023, and 2022 ;and-2024-, respectively. New Accounting Pronouncements Issued Ane
AdeptedineomeTaxes-But Not Yet AdoptedSegment Reporting — In-Deeember2049;-the-Finanetal-Accounting Standards—
Standard Beard-Update ( the-* FASB-ASU ") 1ssted-ASH2649-No. 2023 - 12-07 , IneomeTFaxes{Topte740)—Simplifying
Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures, requires incremental disclosures about an entity’ s reportable
segments but does not change thec Aeeounting-definition of a segment or the guidance for neeneFaxes-determining

reportable segments . ASH2049-—2-simpliftes-the-aeeounting-The new guidance requires disclosure of significant segment
expenses that are (1) regularly provided to (for-- or ineeme-taxes-by-removingeertairexeeptions-easily computed from
information regularly provided to general-prineiples-inineomeTFaxes{(Fopie740-) the chief operating decision maker (“
CODM ”) and (2) included in the reported measure of segment profit or loss . 1+ The new standard also allows companies
elarifies-and-amends-existing-guidanee-to improve-consistent-appheationr-disclose multiple measures of segment profit or loss
if those measures are used to assess performance and allocate resources . The-guidanee-This update is effective for fiscal
years beginning after December +5-31 , 2626-2023 , or fiscal 2025 for the Company, and should be adopted retrospectively



unless impracticable . The Company is currently evaluating the impact, if any, that the adoption of this standard will did
nothave on financial disclosures. Income Taxes — ASU No. 2023- 09, Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures, requires
entities to disclose in their rate reconciliation table additional categories of information about federal, state an-and
foreign income taxes and provide more details about the reconciling items in some categories if items meet a quantitative
threshold. Entities would have to provide qualitative disclosures about the new categories. The guidance will require all
entities to disclose income taxes paid, net of refunds, disaggregated by federal (national), state and foreign taxes for
annual periods and to disaggregate the information by jurisdiction based on a quantitative threshold. The guidance
makes several other changes to the disclosure requirements. Entities are required to apply the guidance prospectively,
with the option to apply it retrospectively. The guidance is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15,
2024 or ﬁscal 2026 for the Company The Company is currently evaluating the impact etrthe-Company—s-eonsolidated

d-td—net—ha\ e a-n—rmpaet—on t-he—Geﬂapany’—s—eeﬂsehdated—hnancml statemeﬁts-dlsclosures 2. REVENUE RECOGNITIONThe
following tables present the Company’ s net sales by major product category for each reportable segment. Year Ended June 30,
2023-2024 MasterCraft €restPontoon Aviara Total Major Product Categories: Boats and trailers $ 452-245 | 963-963 $ 439-57 ,
654-832 § 52-44 | 143-237 § 644-348 , 706-032 Parts 13, 922-567 1, 676-242 — 14, 992-809 Other revenue +3 , 83+206 — 23 ,
354-747 Total $ 468262 , 656736 S +41-59 , 247615 $ 52-44 , 143-237 $ 662-366 , 588 646-50-Year Ended June 30, 2022-2023
MasterCraft €restPontoon Aviara Total Major Product Categories: Boats and trailers $ 450-452 | 734-903 $ +38-139 , 841-654
$34-52 , 723-143 § 624-644 , 298-700 Parts 13, 476-922 1, 070 — 14, 432992 Other revenue 1, 831 — 2, 354 +2345-056—3;
+79-Total § 466-468 ., 927656 5 +40-141 , 859-247 § 34-52 , 723-143 $ 641662 , 669-046 For Year Ended June 30, 26242022
MasterCraft €restPontoon Aviara Total Major Product Categories: Boats and trailers $ 336-450 , 785-734 $ +64-138 , 268-841
$42-34 | 462-723 § 456-624 , 455-298 Parts 42-13 , 170 934369+ 14, 625-132 Other revenue 2, 123 1, 693-056 — 43 , 482
179 Total $ 356466 , §12-027 $ +02-140 , 688859 § 12-34 , 462-723 § 465-641 , 962-609 For fiscal 2023-2024 , the Company’
s top ten dealers accounted for approximately 40 % of our net sales and one of our dealers individually accounted for 15. 1 %,
or approximately $ 55. 5 million. For fiscal 2023, the Company’ s top ten dealers accounted for approximately 40 % of
our net sales and one of our dealers individually accounted for 14. 9 % s-or approximately $ 98. 6 million. For fiscal 2022
and202+-, the Company & s top ten dealers accounted for approximately 30 % of our net sales and none of our dealers
individually accounted for more than 10 % of our total net sales. On a consolidated basis, sales outside of North America
accounted for 5.9 %, 4. 6 %, and 5. 5 Y%and-5—+% of the Company’ s net sales for the years ended June 30, 2024, 2023, and
2022 ;and20214- respectively. The Company had no significant concentrations of sales to individual dealers or in countries
outside of North America during the years ended June 30, 2024, 2023, and 2022 ;-and20624+. Contract LiabilitiesAs of June 30,
2023-2024 , the Company had $ 3-4 . 3-1 million of contract liabilities associated with customer deposits and telematic services
reported in Accrued expenses and other current liabilities and Other long- term liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet. The
Company expects to recognize $ +2 . 50 million of this amount during the year ending June 30, 2624-2025 , and $ 2. | &
million thereafter. As of June 30, 2022-2023 , total contract liabilities were $ 43 . 4-3 million. During the year ended June 30,
2623-2024 , aH-$ 1. 5 million of this amount was recognized as revenue. See Note | for a description of the Company’ s
significant revenue recognition policies and Note 14 for a description of the Company’ s segments. 3. DISCONTINUED
OPERATIONSOn September 2, 2022, the Company sold its NauticStar business to certain affiliates of Iconic Marine Group,
LLC (% Purchaser ). Pursuant to the terms of the purchase agreement, substantially all of the assets of NauticStar were
sold, including, among other things, all of the issued and outstanding membership interests in its wholly- owned subsidiary NS
Transport, LLC, all owned real property, equipment, inventory, intellectual property and accounts receivable, and the Purchaser
assumed substantially all of the liabilities of NauticStar, including, among other things, product liability and warranty claims. In
conjunction with the purchase agreement, the (,ompany entered into a joint employer services agreement and a transition
services agreement, which provided certain services to the Purchaser for various periods of time after the sale. Both agreements
ended during the second quarter of fiscal 2023. These agreements did not a have a material impact on expenditures, earnings,
nor cash flows during the year ended June 30, 2023. 53 Further, the Company entered into the Second Amendment to the Credit
Agreement as described further in Note 9 related to waivers of restrictions within the Credit Agreement, as amended, on the sale
of assets. During the year ended June 30, 2023, the Company recognized a $ 22. 5 million loss on sale ;. The final settlement
of the purchase price was subject to further-ehanges-basedupena-customary working capital adjastment-adjustments that
had been in arbitration as of June 30, 2023, but were settled in October 2023 without a significant impact to the loss on
sale previously recorded. Under the terms of the settlement, the agreed upon amounts will be paid in installments
through July 2025 The value of the assets and hablhtles that were retalned at the time of sale, Wh1ch were 1s—euﬁeﬂt-l-y

2 2 red-primarily
related to certain clnms are subject to change . Certam of these claims have been settled or are expected to settle for higher
amounts than previously estimated , with the related activity afterthe-date-ofsale-being recorded as discontinued operations.
5+-The following table summarizes the results of discontinued operations for the following periods: Fiscal Years— Year Ended
June 30, June 30, June 30, NET SALES $ 8§ 7, 766 $ 66, 253 $59;-846-COST OF SALES 10, 253 72, 081 55;-886-GROSS
LOSS (150) (2, 487) (5, 828) 47840-OPERATING EXPENSES: Selling, general and administrative 1,229 2, 859 6, 645 5:-53%&
Amortization of other intangible assets — — 2, 032 +5-992-Impairments —— — 23, 833 —Total operating expenses 1, 229 2,




859 32, 510 -530-OPERATING LOSS ( 1,379) (5. 346) (38, 338) Gain ( 2698y Eessloss ) on sale of discontinued
operations (22, 487) LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX BENEFIT ( 1, 192) (27, 833) (38, 338 2-696-) INCOME TAX
BENEFIT 6,318 8, 607 LOSS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS NET OF TAX'S (922)$ (21, 515)$ (29, 731) $-¢2;

epefat—teﬂs—$—7—8-8—7—NautlcStar Impalrment Acthlty In the fourth quarter of hscal year 2022 the NautlcStar reportlng unit
recorded unplanned negative operating results despite ongoing efforts to improve sales volumes and yield more favorable
margins, including the engagement of third- party consulting resources. These results, combined with the outlook for further
supply chain disruptions, labor challenges, and higher costs from inflationary pressures, resulted in an impairment trigger in the
fourth quarter related to the NauticStar reporting unit’ s intangible and other long- lived assets. Based on our evaluation of
projected future cash flows, we concluded that the trade name intangible asset of $ 8. 0 million was fully impaired as of June 30,
2022. We then performed a probability- weighted undiscounted cash flow analysis for the asset group related to the NauticStar
reporting unit that considered projected cash flows from continuing to operate the assets through their remaining estimated
useful lives, a potential sale, and a potential exit of the business other than through a sale and concluded that the carrying value
of the asset group was not recoverable. The fair value of the finite- lived dealer network intangible asset was estimated using
these cash flows, resulting in a full impairment of $ 10. 5 million. The fair value of the fixed assets, which primarily comprised
of machinery and equipment, such as tooling, was estimated using liquidation values, resulting in an impairment charge of § 5. 3
million against the asset group’ s fixed assets. As a result of our impairment analyses, we recorded total impairment charges of $
23. 8 million related to the NauticStar reporting unit’ s intangible and fixed assets during the year ended June 30, 2022, which
are included in Impairments in the results of discontinued operations above. 4. HELD- TO- MATURITY SECURITIESWe
SECURITHESBuring-the-year-endedJune30,2023-we-invested-—- invest a portion of our cash and cash equivalents in short-
term investments, which primarily consist of investment grade corporate bonds ard-H—S—treasury-bilts- We have the ability and
intention to hold these investments until maturity and therefore have classified these investments as held- to- maturity and
recorded them at amortized cost and presented them in “ Held- to- maturity securities ” on our consolidated balance skeet-sheets
54 as of June 30, 2024, and 2023. The income recognized for these investments is recorded within Interest-interest income on
the €onselidated-consolidated Statements-statements of Gpefatreﬁs—operatlons As—The followmg tables summarlze
1nvestments held by the Company as of : June 30, 2022-2024 ;-the g ;
~Amortized Cost / Net Gloss Gross Estlmated Carrylng Unrealnzed
Unrealnzed Fa1r Amount Gams Losses Value Held- to- maturity securities: Fixed income securities: Corporate bonds $
78,846 $ $ (82) $ 78, 766 Total held- to- maturity securities $ 78, 846 $ $ (82) $ 78, 766 June 30, 2023 Amortized Cost /
Net Gross Gross Estimated Carrying Unrealized Unrealized Fair €arrytng-Amount Gains Losses Value Held- to- maturity
securities: Fixed income securities: Corporate bonds $ 81, 743 $ $ (160) $ 81, 584 U. S. treasury bills 9, 817 (1) 9, 847 Total
held- to- maturity securities $ 91, 560 $ $ (161) $ 91, 431 5. INVENTORIESInventories consisted of the following: June 30,
June 30, Raw materials and supplies $ 29, 750 $ 40, 201 $45;-62+-Work in process 7, 340 9, 465 F-634-Finished goods 9, 597
10, 335 #6-Obsolescence reserve ( 2, 420) ( 1, 703 H5F76-) Total inventories $ 5844 | 298-267 $ 58, 595-298 During the
fourth quarter of fiscal 2024, the Company identified an indication of impairment related to its Aviara segment. In
analyzing future cash flows used in the impairment analysis, the Company identified excess inventory not expected to be
used in future production. As a result, the Company recognized a $ 2. 4 million write- off to reduce inventory amounts to
their net realizable value. See Note 6 for further information related to the impairment analysis. 6. PROPERTY, PLANT,
AND EQUIPMENTProperty, plant, and equipment, net consisted of the following: June 30, June 30, Land and improvements $
7,587 $ 10, 456 $-6;367-Buildings and improvements 51, 256 46, 759 35;379-Machinery and equipment 32, 858 40, 632 39;
457Furniture and fixtures 5, 658 5, 284 3;-394-Construction in progress 10, 295 10, 180 6;-3+5-Total property, plant, and
equipment 107, 654 113, 311 969421 ess accumulated depreciation ( 33, 841) (35, 390 H355-689-) Property, plant, and
equipment — net 73, 813 $ 77, 921 $-55 -823-Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2024, 2023, and 2022 ;and
262+-was $ 9. 4 million, $ 8. 6 million, and $ 7. 7 million, respectively. Our Aviara segment experienced a material
reduction in expected future orders near the end of the fourth quarter of fiscal 2024. This reduced outlook for future
demand, and related cost inefficiencies of lower production levels, resulted in an impairment trigger related to the
Aviara reporting unit. Accordingly, we then performed an undiscounted cash flow analysis for the asset group related to
the Aviara reporting unit that considered projected cash flows from continuing to operate the assets through their
remaining estimated useful lives, a potential sale, and a potential exit of the business other than through a sale and
concluded that the carrying value of the asset group was not recoverable. The fair value of the fixed assets, which
primarily are comprised of and-land , building, machinery and equipment, was estimated using fair value techniques,
resulting in an impairment charge of © 6. 4-9 million ;respeetively-against the asset group’ s fixed assets . As a result of
our impairment analyses, we recorded total 1mpa1rment charges of $ 9.8 mllllon related to the Av1ara reportmg umt’
-Pfepeﬁy—property plant aﬂd—equlpment inventory net-ine edHm y eap petdin €
-and tﬂ-fefmatreﬁ—teehﬂe-}egy—other assets 7 GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE
ASSETSGOOdWlH and Other Intanglble Asset ImpairmentSee Note 1 for a discussion of the methods used to determine the fair
value of goodwill and other intangible assets. In assessing the need for goodwill and intangible impairment, management
utilizes a number of estimates, including operating results, business plans, economic projections, anticipated future cash flows,
transactions and marketplace data. Accordingly, these fair value measurements fall in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. Fiscal




2022 Goodwill ImpairmentIn fiscal 2022, the Company realigned its reportable segments. As a result of the change in segments,
the Company reallocated the goodwill recorded in the MasterCraft reporting unit to the two separate MasterCraft and Aviara
reporting units. In conjunction with the reallocation of goodwill, the Company tested goodwill at our MasterCraft and Aviara
segments and determined the carrying value of the Aviara reporting unit to be in excess of the fair value. Consequently, a $ 1. 1
million impairment charge was recognized for our Aviara reporting unit in fiscal 2022. GoodwillGoodwill reallocation and
impairment charge for the year ended June 30, 2022, were as follows: MasterCraft Aviara Total Goodwill, net at June 30, 2021
$29,593 $ —$ 29, 593 Goodwill reallocation (1, 100) 1, 100 — Impairment loss — (1, 100) (1, 100) Goodwill, net at June 30,

assessment and identified no events or circumstances that indicated that there existed a more likely than not probability of
impairment of goodwill within our MasterCraft segment. The following table presents the carrying amounts of goodwill as of
June 30, 2024 and 2023 and2022-for each of the Company &’ s reportable segments. Gross Amount Accumulated Impairment
Losses Total MasterCraft $ 28, 493 § —— $ 28, 493 €rest-Pontoon 36, 238 (36, 238) —— Aviara 1, 100 (1, 100) — Total $ 65,
831 $ (37, 338) $ 28, 493 56 Other Intangible AssetsThe following table presents the carrying amount of Other intangible assets,
net as of June 30, 2024 and 2023 and2022-. June 30, June 30, Gross Amount Accumulated Amortization / Impairment Other
intangible assets, net Gross Amount Accumulated Amortization / Impairment Other intangible assets, net Amortized intangible
assets Dealer networks $ 19, 500 $ (11, 850) $ 7, 650 $ 19, 500 $ ( 10, 050) $ 9, 450 $-Software (245) — (233) 19, 745 566-5-(
812, 443-095 ) 7 $H-, 650 357Seftware (23338419, 745 (10, 283) 9, 462 497745832 H-48-Unamortized intangible
assets Trade names 33, 000 (7, 000) 26, 000 33, 000 (7, 000) 26, 000 Total other intangible assets $ 52, 745 $ (19, 095) $ 33,
650 $52,745$ (17,283) § 35, 462 $52,745-$5327-$3F418-54-As of June 30, 2623-2024 , our annual impairment test
date, the Company performed a qualitative assessment on our indefinite- lived intangible assets and identified no events or
circumstances that indicated that there existed a more likely than not probability of impairment of trade names within our
MasterCraft and Pontoon segments. Additionally, other--- the Company performed a quantitative assessment on our
definite- lived intangible assets— asset within-eurMasterCraft-that is not fully amortized and €restsegments-concluded the
fair value of the dealer network exceeded the carrying value . Amortization expense related to Other intangible assets, net
for the year ended June 30, 2024 was $ 1. 8 million and for cach of the years ended June 30, 2023 and June 30 , 2022 and
262+-was $ 2. 0 million. The following table presents estimated future amortization expense for the next five fiscal years and
thereafter. Fiscal years ending June 30, $ 1, 8324800 1, 800 1, 800 1, 800 and-thereafter-Total $ 9-7 , 462-650 8. ACCRUED
EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIESAccrued expenses and other current liabilities consisted of the following:
June 30, June 30, Warranty $ 29, 097 $ 31, 780 $25;-824-Dealer incentives 18, 122 24, 987 +5:-568-Compensation and related
accruals 5, 044 5, 838 4-Contract liabilities 2 , 034 308-Self—insuranee-1, 477 586+ -Inventory repurchase contingent
obligation 1, 657 1, 515 Centracttabilities-Self- insurance 1, 477216 1, 447586 Liabilities retained associated with
discontinued operations —Other 3, 905 4, 623 4,938-Total accrued expenses and other current liabilities $ 61,384 $ 72, 496 $
54—43—7—Accrued Warranty habrhty actrvrty was as follows: June 30 June 30, Balance at the begmmng of the perrod $ 25—8%4—$

4(-)6—Balanee—at—t-he—eﬂd-ef—t-he—peﬂed—$—31 780 $ 25, 824 Prov1snons 8, 087 15 302 Payments made (14 692) 12, 899)
Changes for pre- existing warranties 3, 922 3, 553 Balance at the end of the period $ 29, 097 $ 31, 780 57 9. LONG- TERM

DEBTLong- term debt outstanding was as follows: June 30, June 30, Term loan $ 49, 500 $ 54 ;-800-$57-, 000 Debt issuance
costs on term loan ( 239) (324 345+) Total debt 49, 261 53, 676 56;549-Less current portion of long- term debt 4, 500 3-4 ,
666-500 Less current portion of debt issuance costs on term loan ( 126) ( 119 332%) Long- term debt, net of current portion $
44, 887 $ 49, 295 $-53,676-On June 28, 2021, the Company entered into a credit agreement with a syndicate of certain financial
institutions (the “ Credit Agreement ). The Credit Agreement provides the Company with a $ 160. 0 million senior secured
credit facility, consisting of a $ 60. 0 million term loan (the “ Term Loan ") and a $ 100. 0 million revolving credit facility (the
Revolving Credit Facility 7). The Credit Agreement reﬁnanced and replaced the F ourth Amended Cred1t Agreement Wthh had

contains a number of covenants that among other things, reatrrct the Company s ablhty to, subject to specified exceptroni
incur additional debt; incur additional liens and contingent liabilities; sell or dispose of assets; merge with or acquire other
companies; liquidate or dissolve; engage in businesses that are not in a related line of business; make loans, advances or
guarantees; pay dividends or make other distributions; engage in transactions with affiliates; and make investments. The
Company is also required to maintain a minimum fixed charge coverage ratio and a maximum net leverage ratio (—As-aresuit
ofentering-into-the covenant ratlos ”). Adherence to covenant ratlos apphes to both the Term Loan and avallablhty to

.On Auguqt 31 2022 the Company entered into the Second Amendment to the Credit Agreement to obtarn the necessary
consents and waivers to the restrictions described above in the covenants of the Credit Agreement, as related to the sale of the
NauticStar business on September 2, 2022, as discussed in Note 3 . On October 4, 2023, the Company entered into the Third
Amendment to the Credit Agreement to exclude certain amounts of stock repurchases during the fiscal year ended June
30, 2024 from the calculation of the minimum fixed charge coverage ratio . The Credit Agreement, as amended, bears
interest, at the Company’ s option, at either the prime rate plus an applicable margin ranging from 0. 25 % to 1. 00 % or at an
adjusted benchmark rate plus an applicable margin ranging from 1. 25 % to 2. 00 %, in each case based on the Company’ s net
leverage ratio. The Company is also required to pay a commitment fee for any unused portion of the revolving credit facility
ranging from 0. 15 % to 0. 30 % based on the Company’ s net leverage ratio. As of June 30, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-, the



effective interest rate on borrowings outstanding was 6. 69 % and 6. 50 %-and2-94-%, respectively. The Credit Agreement
will mature and all remaining amounts outstanding thereunder will be due and payable on June 28, 2026. As of June 30, 2023
2024 , the Company was in compliance with its financial covenants under the Credit Agreement. Revolving Credit Faethityds

FacilityAs of eonjunetion-with-the-Credit-AgreemententeredHnto-on-Junc 2830 , 2—92—1—2024 and 2023 the Company had no
amounts outstandlng &few—$—33—7—mﬂ+ten—011 its Revolvmg Credlt F acﬂlty —DBravn 3

borrewingstn he Revolving CreditFaeility and hadremalnlng avallablhty 0f$ 100. 0
million. Fh d-the 0 ; d-stitt-he
Maturities for the Term Loan Subqequent to June 30, %92—3—2024 are as followq $ 4, 500 H99-45 000 Total $ 54—49 ©606-500
Subsequent to June 30, 2024, and prior to the issuance of these audited financials on Form 10- K, the Company was in
discussions with its bank group regarding an amendment to the Credit Agreement. The anticipated amendment entails
obtaining the necessary consents and waivers to the restrictions described above in the covenants of the Credit
Agreement, as related to the Aviara asset exchange and plans to sell certain facility assets, in addition to a waiver to the
covenant ratios for certain future periods as a result of anticipated decreases in earnings. The Company currently
expects to complete the amendment process in the first quarter of fiscal 2025. The amendment process remains subject to
completion of final documentation and credit approval by the bank group and, accordingly, the Company cannot be
certain that it will be able to complete the amendment process. 58 If the Company does not complete the amendment
process, the Company has cash and held- to- maturity securities in excess of total debt and thus believes that it will have
sufficient liquidity on hand to continue to fund operations and repay the borrowings outstanding under the Credit
Agreement. 10. INCOME TAXESThe Company &’ s sources of earnings before income taxes are primarily derived in the U. S.
Earnings in jurisdictions outside of the U. S. were not significant during each of the years ended June 30, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022
and202+-. For the years ended June 30, the components of the provision for income taxes for continuing operations are as
follows: Current income tax expense: Federal $ 5, 858 $ 25, 115 $ 22, 563 $42,795-State 1, 709 5, 728 5, 680 3;276-Total
current tax expense $ 7,567 $ 30, 843 § 28, 243 $46;0-Deferred tax £benefit yexpense-: Federal § (5,302) $ (3, 739) S (1,
044) $-State ( 858) (413) 849 -Foreign — — (7) —Total deferred tax expense-benefit (6, 160 ) (3, 708) (1, 464) Income tax
expense fberefity$ 1,407 $ 27, 135 § 26, 779 $46:0880-56-The difference between the statutory and the effective federal tax
rate related to continuing operations for the periods below is attributable to the following: Statutory income tax rate 21. 00 %
21.00 % 21. 00 % State taxes (net of federal income tax benefit and valuation allowance) (4. 04 %) 2. 20 % 1. 76 % Uncertain
tax positions 9. 89 % 1. 2+90 % 1. 99 % Permanent differences 2. 12 % (0. 90 %) (0. 69 %) Tax credits ( 11. 41 %) (0. 93
%) (0. 66 %3-6—F+%) Change in valuation allowance — — (0 03 %) Return to pr0v1smn true- ups and rate changes (3. 00
%) (0. 19 % ) Permanent-differenees(0. 15 96-2 6 4-% Other
(0.49-68 %) — (0. 18 83-%4)6-065-%) Effective income tax rate 13. 88 % 23. 08 % 23.34 %%HS%A@ ofJune 30, 2024,
and 2023 ;and2022- a summary of the significant components of the Company’ s deferred tax assets and liabilities was as
follows: Deferred tax assets: Capitalized research costs $ 7, 666 $ 1, 835 Warranty reserves 6, 802 7, 448 Accrued selling 2,
755 2 177 Intanglble asset bzmi dlfference $2,549 3 224 $—1§—8~86—\V&ff&&&y—fe86ﬁfes—7—448—6%4§%eeﬂted-seﬁiﬂg—2—l—74

-------- 6 Unrecognized tax benefits 1, 543 1, 328 -H45nventory
+HH42-Net opelatlng loss 1, 081 Stock compensatlon 1, 463 Other3 073 1,463-967 Total deferred tax assets 26, 028 20, 192

27-969-Valuation allowance (2) (2) Total deferred tax assets, net of the valuation allowance 26, 026 20, 190 2%-96FDeferred
tax liabilities: Depreciation (6, 220) (6, 201) €5;464)-Other (1, 222) (1, 561 H978-) Total deferred tax liabilities (7, 442) (7, 762
}H6;382-) Net deferred tax assets § 18,584 § 12, 428 59 $24:-525-As of June 30, 2623-2024 , the Company has state net
operating loss (NOL) carryforwards of $ 46-23 . -0 million. Of this amount, $ +-0 . 4 million expire in varying years ranging
from June 30, 2025-2038 to June 30, 28382039 , while the remainder can be carried forward indefinitely. Unrecognized Tax
BenefitsA reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits, excluding accrued amounts for
interest and penalties, is as follows: Balance at July 1 $ 6,232 $ 5, 513 $3;304-Additions based on tax positions related to the
current year 1, 289 2;-884-Additions for tax positions of prior years Reductions for tax positions of prior years ( 250) ( 600 3+
) Balance at June 30$ 6, 8618 6,232 $5543-Of this total, $ 5. 9 million and $ 5. 4 million ard-$4—Fmitien-as of June 30,
2024 and 2023 and2022-, respectively, represent the amount of unrecognized tax benefits that, if recognized, would favorably
affect the effective income tax rate in future periods. The total amount of interest and penalties recorded in the consolidated
statements of operations for the years ended June 30, 2024, 2023, and 2022 ;and2024+-was an expense of $ 0. 5 million, $ 0. 2
million, ar-and expense-of$-0-2-mithonandabenefitefs 0. 2 mllhon respectively. The amounts accrued for interest and
penalties at June 30, 2024 and 2023 and2022-were $ 1. 7 million and $ 1. | million arnd-$-08-8millien-, respectively, and +s-are
presented in unrecognized tax positions on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. In general, it is the practice and
intention of the Company to reinvest the earnings of its non- U. S. subsidiaries in those operations. As of June 30, 2623-2024 ,
the Company has not made a current provision for U. S. or additional foreign withholding taxes on investments in foreign 5%
subsidiaries that are indefinitely reinvested. Generally, such amounts become subject to U. S. taxation upon the remittance of
dividends and under certain other circumstances. The Company and its subsidiaries are subject to U. S. federal income tax, as
well as various other state income taxes and foreign income taxes. The federal income tax returns for the years ended June 30,
2626-2021 through 2622-2023 are subject to examination by the Internal Revenue Service. For state purposes, the statutes of
limitation vary by jurisdiction. With few exceptions, the Company is no longer subject to examination by taxing authorities for
years before June 30, 2628-2021 . The Company expects the total amount of unrecognized benefits to increase by approximately
$ 0. 8-1 million in the next twelve months. The Company records unrecognized tax benefits as liabilities and adjusts these
liabilities when its judgment changes as a result of the evaluation of new information not previously available. Because of the
complexity of some of these uncertainties, the ultimate resolution may result in a payment that is materially different from our




current estimate of the unrecognized tax benefit liabilities. These differences will be reflected as increases or decreases to
income tax expense in the period in which new information is available. 11. SHARE- BASED COMPENSATIONThe 2015
Incentive Award Plan (“ 2015 Plan ) provides for the grant of stock options, including incentive stock options, and nonqualified
stock options (“ NSOs ), restricted stock, dividend equivalents, stock payments, restricted stock units, restricted stock awards (*“
RSAs ”), deferred stock, deferred stock units, performance awards, stock appreciation rights, performance stock units (“ PSUs
), and cash awards. As of June 30, 2023-2024 . there were +-848 , 175 045;386-shares available for issuance under the 2015
Plan. The following table presents the components of share- based compensation expense within continuing operations by award
type for the years ended June 30, 2024, 2023, and 2022 ;and2024-. Restricted stock awards $ 3,014 $ 2, 283 § 1, 684 $4554+
Performance stock units (416) 1, 373 1, 826 45394-Share- based compensation expense (benefit) $ 2,598 $ 3, 656 $ 3, 510 $2;
932-The amount of compensation cost the Company recognizes over the requisite service period is based on the Company’ s
best estimate of the achievement of the performance conditions and can fluctuate over time. The following table presents the
income tax benefit (expense) related to share- based compensation expense within continuing operations recognized by award
type for the years ended June 30, 2024, 2023, and 2022 . Restricted stock awards $ $ $§ Performance stock units (71) Share-
based compensation expense (benefit) $ $ $ 60 Restricted Stock AwardsAll RSAs granted to non- employee directors vest over
the remainder of that fiscal year, and all RSAs granted to employees vest over a period of between one to three years. Generally,
non- vested RSAs are forfeited if employment is terminated prior to vesting. RSAs are granted at a per share fair value equal to
the market value of the Company’ s common stock on the grant date. The Company recognizes the cost of non- vested RSAs
ratably over the requisite service period. The fair value of RSAs vested during the years ended June 30, 2024, 2023, and 2022
and2024-was $ 2. 9 million, $ 3. 2 million, and $ 2. 4 mithen;and-$4—6-million, respectively. A summary of RSA activity
within continuing operations for these years is as follows: 58-Number of Restricted Stock Awards Outstanding Weighted
Average Grant Date F air Value Total Non- vested Restrlcted Stock Awards at June 30, 2020-166;:-894-518-61+-Granted-93;357
etted S al- Ne ed-StoekAwards-at June 36,2021 118, 193 §
l9 42 Granted 95 753 25 04 Vested (99, 004) 22. Ol Forferted (8, 534) 24 65 Total Non- Vested Restrrcted Stock Awards at
June 30, 2022 106, 408 21. 65 Granted 104, 657 23. 91 Vested (112, 789) 22. 10 Forfeited (6, 369) 21. 83 Total Non- vested
Restricted Stock Awards at June 30, 2023 91, 907 23. 66 As-efGranted 181, 706 21. 33 Vested (146, 650) 22. 15 Forfeited
(22, 591) 23. 43 Total Non- vested Restricted Stock Awards at June 30, 2623-2024 104, 372 21. 76 As of June 30, 2024 .
there was $ 2. 1 =8-million of total unrecognized compensation expense related to non- vested RSAs. The Company expects this
expense to be recognized over a weighted average period of +2 . 5-2 years. Performance Stock UnitsDuring the years ended
June 30, 2024, 2023, and 2022 ;and-2621, the Company granted performance shares to certain employees. The awards will be
earned based on the Company’ s achievement of certain performance criteria over a three- year performance period. The
performance period for the awards commences on July 1 of the fiscal year in which they were granted and continues for a three-
year period, ending on June 30 of the applicable year. The probability of achieving the performance criteria is assessed
quarterly. Following the determination of the Company’ s achievement with respect to the performance criteria, the amount of
shares awarded will be subject to adjustment based on the application of a total shareholder return (“ TSR ") modifier. The grant
date fair value is determined based on both the assessment of the probability of the Company’ s achieving the performance
criteria and an estimate of the expected TSR modifier. The TSR modifier estimate is determined by using a Monte Carlo
Simulation model, which considers the likelihood of all possible outcomes of long- term market performance. The amount of
compensation cost the Company recognizes over the requisite service period is based on management’ s best estimate of the
achievement of the performance criteria. 61 The fair value of PSUs vested during the years ended June 30, 2024, 2023, and
2022 yand202+t-was $ +0 . 7 million, $ 1. 7 million, and $ 2. | milien;and-$0--4-million, respectively. A summary of PSU
activity within continuing operations for these years is as follows: Number of Performance Stock Units Weighted Average Grant
Date Fair Value Total Non Vested Performance Stock Un1ts at June 30, %9%9—67—494—$—2-9—92—Gfaﬂfed—1—2—3—996—2—2—1—1—‘v‘ested
- d ree-StoekUnitsatJune 30,2021 160, 285 $21. 03
Granted 53, 842 28 73 Vested (99 860) 20. 16 Forferted o, 077) 26 7l Total Non vested Performance Stock Units at June 30,
2022 105, 190 25. 30 Granted 76, 567 26. 08 Vested (56, 790) 22. 38 Forfeited (1, 996) 26. 15 Total Non- vested Performance
Stock Units at June 30, 2023 122, 971 27. 12 59-As-ef-Granted 86, 555 21. 62 Vested (39, 554) 28. 71 Forfeited (30, 062) 24.
84 Total Non- vested Performance Stock Units at June 30, 2623-2024 139, 910 23. 62 As of June 30, 2024 . there was no $3
é—m-rl-l-ten—e-f—teta-l-unrecogmzed Compensat10n expense related to non- vested PSUs —Fhe-Company-expeets-this-expense-to-be
g ears-. Nonqualified Stock OptionsIn July 2015, the Company granted 137,
786 NSOs t0 certain employees As of July 2019 all outstanding options were fully vested and exercrsable All outstanding
options as-efFune-36;2622;-were exercised as of during-the-year-ended-June 30, 2023. A summary of NSO activity within
continuing operations for these years is as follows: Weighted Weighted Average Average Remaining Aggregate Exercise
Contractual lntr1nsrc Shares Prrce Term (Yrs ) Value Outstandrng at June 30, %929—2021 32—24 392—440 $10.7054.18%
ctaed el : e / / ranted —
Exerc1sed o, 294) 10. 70 Forferted or exprred — Outstandmg at June 30 2022 15, 146 10. 70 3.1 Granted — Exercised (15,
146) 10. 70 Forfeited or expired — Outstanding at June 30, 2023 — 12. COMMITMENTS AND
CONTINGENCIESRepurchase ObligationsUnder certain conditions, the Company is obligated to repurchase new inventory
repossessed from dealerships by financial institutions that provide credit to the Company’ s dealers. See Note 1 for more
information regarding the terms and accounting policies related to this obligation. The Company -’ s obligations under such
floor plan agreements are subject to various calculations and caps based on amounts currently owed by dealers to these financial
institutions and, based on such terms, totaled approximately $ 42. 0 million and $ 53. 1 million and-$46--6-millienas of June
30, 2623-2024 and June 30, 26222023 , respectively. We incurred no material impact from repurchase events during the years
ended June 30, 2024, 2023, and 2022 ;-and2024-. The Company recorded a repurchase liability of $ 1. 7 million and $ 1. 6




million and-$-0—Fmithtenas of June 30, 2024 and 2023 and2022-, respectively. 62 Purchase CommitmentsThe Company is
engaged in an exclusive contract with a single vendor to provide engines for its MasterCraft performance sport boats. This
contract makes this vendor the only supplier to MasterCraft for in- board engines and expires June 30, 2025. The Company is
obligated to purchase a minimum number of engines for each model year under this contract. The Company could also be
required to pay a penalty to this vendor in order to maintain exclusivity if annual purchases under the agreement fail to meet a
certain volume threshold. We incurred no penalties related to purchase commitments during the years ended June 30, 2024,
2023, and 2022 ;and2024-. Operating LeasesThe Company has lease agreements for certain personal and real property. Leases
with an initial lease term of 12 months or less are not recorded on the balance sheet. Our lease agreements do not include any
significant renewal options. Our lease agreements do not contain any material residual value guarantees or material restrictive
covenants. The Company determines if an arrangement is a lease at lease inception. Operating lease right- of- use (“ ROU *)
assets and operating lease liabilities are recognized based on the present value of the future minimum lease payments over the
lease term at the commencement date. Because the rates implicit in the Company' s lease contracts are not readily determinable,
the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate based on information available at the commencement date in determining the
present value of future 68-payments. The incremental borrowing rate is estimated to approximate the interest rate on a
collateralized basis with similar terms and payments, and in economic environments where the leased asset is located. The
operating lease ROU asset also includes any initial direct costs and lease payments made prior to lease commencement and
excludes lease incentives incurred. The Company + s lease terms may include options to extend or terminate the lease when it is
reasonably certain that we will exercise that option. Operating lease expense is recognized on a straight- line basis over the lease
term. The Company may enter into lease agreements that contain both lease and non- lease components, which it has elected to
account for as a single lease component for all asset classes. The lease- related balances as of June 30, 2024 and 2023 ard-2622-,
and activity and costs during the periods presented are not material. Legal ProceedingsThe Company is subject to various
litigation, claims and proceedings, which have arisen in the ordinary course of business. The Company accrues for litigation,
claims and proceedings when a liability is both probable and the amount can be reasonably estimated. As of June 30, 2623-2024
, the Company’ s accruals for litigation matters are not material. While these matters are subject to inherent uncertainties,
management believes that current litigation, claims and proceedings, individually and in aggregate, and after considering
expected insurance reimbursements, are not likely to have a material adverse impact on the Company’ s financial position,
results of operations or cash flows. 13. EARNINGS PER SHARE AND COMMON STOCKThe factors used in the earnings per
share computation are as follows: Net income from continuing operations $ 8, 722 $ 90, 452 $ 87, 945 $-58,438-Loss from
discontinued operations, net of tax (922) (21, 515) (29, 731 H2,268-) Net income $ 7, 800 $ 68, 937 $ 58, 214 $-56,176
Weighted average shares — basic 16, 930,348 17, 618, 797 18, 455, 226 48;-885:464-Dilutive effect of assumed exercises of
stock options — 5, 270 11, 110 +4;-844-Dilutive effect of assumed restricted share awards / units 107, 957 141, 050 170, 176
+345243-Weighted average outstanding shares — diluted 17, 038,305 17, 765, 117 18, 636, 512 48;95+-524+-Basic net income
(loss) per share Continuing operations $ 0. 52 $ 5. 13 § 4. 77 $3—3+-Discontinued operations (0. 06) (1. 22) (1. 62 3H68—32-) Net
income $ 0. 46 $ 3. 91 $ 3. 15 $2-99-Diluted net income (loss) per share Continuing operations $ 0. 51 $ 5. 09 $ 4. 72 $3-908
Discontinued operations (0. 05) (1. 21) (1. 60 3£6-42) Net income $ 0.46 $ 3. 88 $ 3. 12 63 $2-96-For the years ended June
30,2024, 2023, and 2022 ;and-26824-, an immaterial number of shares were excluded from the computation of diluted earnings
per share as the effect would have been anti- dilutive. Stock Repurchase Program On June 24, 2021, the board of directors of the
Company authorized a stock repurchase program that allows for the repurchase of up to $ 50. 0 million of the Company’ s

common stock durlng the three- year perlod eﬂdtng—ended June 24,2024 —Btn*rﬂg—t-he—ﬁsea-l—ye&fs—eﬂded—}uﬂe%@%%—aﬂd

1.6 mllhon remamed avallable under thls program, all of whlch was fully utlllzed durlng the eﬁﬁeﬁt—&ufheﬂfaﬁeﬂ—ﬁscal
2024 first quarter ended October 1, 2023 . On July 24, 2023, the board of directors of the Company authorized a new share
repurchase program under which the Company may repurchase up to $ 50 million of its outstanding shares of common stock.
The new authorization swil-beeeme-became cffective upon the expiratien-completion of the Company & s existing $ 50 million
share repurchase authorization. As of June 30, 2024, $ 35. 4 million remained available under the new authorization.
During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2024, 2023 and 2022, the Company repurchased 750, 943 shares, 872, 055 shares
and 975, 161 shares of common stock for $ 16 3 mllllon, $22.9 mllllon and $ 25. 5 million in cash, including related fees

and expenses. 4. SEGMENT N s INFORMATIONDuring the fourth quarter
of fiscal 2024, the Company changed the name of 1ts “ Crest ” operating segment to “ Pontoon. ” The segment name
change had no impact on the composition of the Company' s segments or on previously reported financial position,
results of operations, cash flows or segment operating results. Operating scgments are identified as components of an
enterprise about which discrete financial information is available for evaluation by the CODM in making decisions on how to
allocate resources and assess performance. For the year ended June 30, 2623-2024 , the Company’ s CODM regularly assessed
the operating performance of the Company’ s boat brands under three operating and reportable segments: * The MasterCraft
segment produces boats at its Vonore, Tennessee facility. These are premium recreational performance sport boats primarily
used for water skiing, wakeboarding, wake surfing, and general recreational boating. * The €restPontoon segment produces
pontoon boats at its Owosso, Michigan facility. Pontoon €rest—s-boats are primarily used for general recreational boating. ¢ The
Aviara segment produces luxury day boats at its Merritt Island, Florida facility. Aviara boats are primarily used for general
recreational boating. Each segment distributes its products through its own independent dealer network. Each segment also has
its own management structure which is responsible for the operations of the segment and is directly accountable to the CODM
for the operating performance of the segment, which is regularly assessed by the CODM who allocates resources based on that
performance. The Company files a consolidated income tax return and does not allocate income taxes and other corporate- level




expenses, including interest, to operating segments. All material corporate costs are included in the MasterCraft segment.
Selected financial information for the Company’ s reportable segments was as follows: For the Year Ended June 30, 2024
MasterCraft Pontoon Aviara Consolidated Net sales $ 262, 736 $ 59, 615 $ 44, 237 $ 366, 588 Operating income (loss) 29,
573 (2, 097) (19, 844) 7, 632 Depreciation and amortization S, 109 3, 266 2, 807 11, 182 Impairments — — 9, 827 9, 827
Purchases of property, plant and equipment 7, 912 2, 613 5, 836 16, 361 For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 MasterCraft
Gfest—Pontoon Aviara Consolidated Net sales $ 468, 656 § 141, "47 $ 52, 143 § 662, 046 Operating income (loss) 101, 324 20,
06 (4,515) 116,915 anumllon and amortization 5, 555 2, 841 2, 173 10, 569 Purchases of property, plant and equipment
7. 4147, —19 5,760 30, 323 64 For the Year Ended June 30, "()22 Mdslu(m leest—Pontoon Aviara Consolidated Net sales $
466, 027 $ 140, 859 $ “1—1 723 § 641, 609 Operating income (loss) 105, 341 19, 892 (9, 038) 1 195 Depreciation and
amortization 4 968 2 (w(ﬁ 2 ()98 9,731 Geed-wﬂ-l—rm-pa—rfmeﬂt—lmpalrment — 1,100 1, 1 PLIILhd\LS ol plopul\ D]dlll and
u]ulpmull 6,642 4,193 1, 461 G A e Ata tets

: Aton 6 S P plant-an P 0 ThL following table
presents total axsulx 101 the (ompdn\ s reportable segments as of June 30, 2024 and 2 ’ 023 —&ﬂd%@%%— June 30, 2623-2024 June
0,2022-2023 Assets: MasterCraft $ 233, 088 $ 259, 201 $178-Pontoon 51 , 994 386-Crest-53, 435 53;956-Aviara 32,902 41,
340 35 H5Diseontinned-operations—29-595-Total assets $ 317, 984 $ 353, 976 $29%-052-62-15. QUARTERLEY
FINANCIAEREPORTING-SUBSEQUENT EVENTOn August 8, 2024, the Company announced that it had entered into
an asset exchange agreement, pursuant to which it will transfer rights to its Aviara brand of luxury dayboats and certain
related assets to a subsidiary of MarineMax ( UINAUDITED-the “ Aviara Transaction ” ) . The Aviara Transaction is
subject to customary closing conditions, and is expected to close in the first quarter of fiscal 2025. Following
consummation of the Aviara Transaction, we intend to close the Merritt Island facility and offer the property for open
market sale. The Company maintains-intends to classify Aviara as discontinued operations beginning in the first quarter
of fiscal 2025. Exhibit 19. 1 mastercraft boat Holdings, Inc. INSIDER TRADING compliance POLICY CONTENTS
Pagel. SUMMARY II. STATEMENT OF POLICIES PROHIBITING INSIDER TRADING III. EXPLANATION OF
INSIDER TRADING 1IV. STATEMENT OF PROCEDURES PREVENTING INSIDER TRADING V. ADDITIONAL
PROHIBITED TRANSACTIONS VI. RULE 10b5- 1 TRADING PLANS, SECTION 16 AND RULE 144
ATTACHMENT A SHORT- SWING PROFIT RULE SECTION 16 (B) CHECKLIST i | | | | | Mastercraft boat
Holdings, Inc. INSIDER TRADING compliance POLICY 1. SUMMARY Preventing insider trading is necessary to
comply with securities laws and to preserve the reputation and integrity of Mastercraft Boat Holdings, Inc. (together
with its subsidiaries, the “ Company ) as well as that of all persons affiliated with the Company. “ Insider trading ”
occurs when any person purchases or sells a security while in possession of inside information relating to the security. As
explained in Section III below, “ inside information ” is information that is both “ material ” and “ non- public. ” Insider
trading is a crime. The penalties for violating insider trading laws include imprisonment, disgorgement of profits, civil
fines, and criminal fines of up to $ 5 million for individuals and $ 25 million for corporations. Insider trading is also
prohibited by this Insider Trading Compliance Policy (this “ Policy ”), and violation of this Policy may result in
Company- imposed sanctions, including removal or dismissal for cause. This Policy applies to all officers, directors and
employees of the Company. Individuals subject to this Policy are responsible for ensuring that members of their
households also comply with this Policy. This Policy also applies to any entities controlled by individuals subject to the
Policy, including any corporations, partnerships or trusts, and transactions by these entities should be treated for the
purposes of this Policy and applicable securities laws as if they were for the individual’ s own account. This Policy
extends to all activities within and outside an individual’ s Company duties. Every officer, director and employee must
review this Policy. Questions regarding the Policy should be directed to the Company’ s Chief Financial Officer. II.
STATEMENT OF POLICIES PROHIBITING INSIDER TRADING No officer, director or employee shall purchase or
sell any type of security while in possession of material, non- public information relating to the security, whether the
issuer of such security is the Company or any other company. Additionally, no officer, director or other key employee
(key employee list maintained by the Company’ s Chief Financial Officer and amended from time to time) shall purchase
or sell any security of the Company during the period beginning on the 14th calendar day before the end of any fiscal
quarter of the Company and ending upon completion of the second full trading day after the public release of earnings
data for such fiscal quarter or during any other trading suspension period declared by the Company. For the purposes of
this Policy, a “ trading day ” is a day on which national stock exchanges are open for trading. These prohibitions do not
apply to: (2] purchases of the Company’ s securities from the Company or sales of the Company’ s securities to the
Company; (2] exercises of stock options or other equity awards or the surrender of shares to the Company in payment of
the exercise price or in satisfaction of any tax withholding obligations in a manner permitted by the applicable equity
award agreement, or vesting of equity- based awards, that in each case do not involve a market sale of the Company’ s
securities (the “ cashless exercise ” of a Company stock option through a broker does involve a market sale of the
Company’ s securities, and therefore would not qualify under this exception); or (?] purchases or sales of the Company’ s
securities made pursuant to any binding contract, specific instruction or written plan entered into outside of a black- out
period and while the purchaser or seller, as applicable, was unaware of any material, non- public information and which
contract, instruction or plan (i) meets all of the requirements of the affirmative defense provided by Rule 10bS- 1 (“ Rule
10b5S- 1 ”) promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “ 1934 Act ), (ii) was pre- cleared
in advance pursuant to this Policy and (iii) has not been amended or modified in any respect after such initial pre-
clearance without such amendment or modification being pre- cleared in advance pursuant to this Policy. For more
information about Rule 10bS- 1 trading plans, see Section VI below. No officer, director or employee shall directly or
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indirectly communicate (or “ tip ”’) material, non- public information to anyone outside of the Company (except in
accordance with the Company’ s policies regarding the protection or authorized external disclosure of Company
information) or to anyone within the Company other than on a need- to- know basis. III. EXPLANATION OF INSIDER
TRADING “ Insider trading ” refers to the purchase or sale of a security while in possession of “ material, ” “ non-
public ” information relating to the security or its issuer. “ Securities ” includes stocks, bonds, notes, debentures, options,
warrants and other convertible securities, as well as derivative instruments. “ Purchase ” and “ sale ” are defined
broadly under the federal securities law. “ Purchase ” includes not only the actual purchase of a security, but any
contract to purchase or otherwise acquire a security. “ Sale ” includes not only the actual sale of a security, but any
contract to sell or otherwise dispose of a security. These definitions extend to a broad range of transactions, including
conventional cash- for- stock transactions, conversions, the exercise of stock options, and acquisitions and exercises of
warrants or puts, calls or other derivative securities. It is generally understood that insider trading includes the
following: (2] Trading by insiders while in possession of material, non- public information; (?J Trading by persons other
than insiders while in possession of material, non- public information, if the information either was given in breach of an
insider’ s fiduciary duty to keep it confidential or was misappropriated; and (2] Communicating or tipping material,
non- public information to others, including recommending the purchase or sale of a security while in possession of such
information. A. What Facts are Material? The materiality of a fact depends upon the circumstances. A fact is considered
“ material ” if there is a substantial likelihood that a reasonable investor would consider it important in making a
decision to buy, sell or hold a security, or if the fact is likely to have a significant effect on the market price of the
security. Material information can be positive or negative and can relate to virtually any aspect of a company’ s business
or to any type of security, debt or equity. Examples of material information include (but are not limited to) information
about dividends; corporate earnings or earnings forecasts; possible mergers, acquisitions, tender offers or dispositions;
major new products or product developments; important business developments such as major contract awards or
cancellations, trial results, developments regarding strategic collaborators or the status of regulatory submissions;
management or control changes; significant borrowing or financing developments including pending public sales or
offerings of debt or equity securities; defaults on borrowings; bankruptcies; and significant litigation or regulatory
actions. Moreover, material information does not have to be related to a company’ s business. For example, the contents
of a forthcoming newspaper column that is expected to affect the market price of a security can be material. A good
general rule of thumb: When in doubt, do not trade. B. What is Non- public? Information is “ non- public ” if it is not
available to the general public. In order for information to be considered public, it must be widely disseminated in a
manner making it generally available to investors through media outlets such as Dow Jones, Business Wire, Reuters, The
Wall Street Journal, Associated Press, or United Press International, a broadcast on widely available radio or television
programs, publication in a widely available newspaper, magazine or news web site, a Regulation FD- compliant
conference call, or public disclosure documents filed with the SEC that are available on the SEC’ s web site. The
circulation of rumors, even if accurate and reported in the media, does not constitute effective public dissemination. In
addition, even after a public announcement, a reasonable period of time must lapse in order for the market to react to
the information. Generally, one should allow two full trading days following publication as a reasonable waiting period
before such information is deemed to be public. C. Who is an Insider? “ Insiders ” include officers, directors and
employees of a company and anyone else who has material inside information about a company. Insiders have
independent fiduciary duties to their company and its stockholders not to trade on material, non- public information
relating to the company’ s securities. All officers, directors and employees of the Company should consider themselves
insiders with respect to material, non- public information about the Company’ s business, activities and securities.
Officers, directors and employees may not trade in the Company’ s securities while in possession of material, non- public
information relating to the Company, nor may they tip such information to anyone outside the Company (except in
accordance with the Company’ s policies regarding the protection or authorized external disclosure of Company
information) or to anyone within the Company other than on a need- to- know basis. D. Trading by Persons Other than
Insiders Insiders may be liable for communicating or tipping material, non- public information to a third party (“ tippee
”), and insider trading violations are not limited to trading or tipping by insiders. Persons other than insiders also can be
liable for insider trading, including tippees who trade on material, non- public information tipped to them or individuals
who trade on material, non- public information that has been misappropriated. Tippees inherit an insider’ s duties and
are liable for trading on material, non- public information illegally tipped to them by an insider. Similarly, just as
insiders are liable for the insider trading of their tippees, so are tippees who pass the information along to others who
trade. In other words, a tippee’ s liability for insider trading is no different from that of an insider. Tippees can obtain
material, non- public information by receiving overt tips from others or through, among other things, conversations at
social, business, or other gatherings. E. Penalties for Engaging in Insider Trading Penalties for trading on or tipping
material, non- public information can extend significantly beyond any profits made or losses avoided, both for
individuals engaging in such unlawful conduct and their employers. The Securities and Exchange Commission (“ SEC )
and Department of Justice have made the civil and criminal prosecution of insider trading violations a top priority.
Enforcement remedies available to the government or private plaintiffs under the federal securities laws include: SEC
administrative sanctions; (?] Securities industry self- regulatory organization sanctions; (?] Civil injunctions; (2] Damage
awards to private plaintiffs; (2] Disgorgement of all profits; (2] Civil fines for the violator of up to three times the amount
of profit gained or loss avoided; (2] Civil fines for the employer or other controlling person of a violator (i. e., where the
violator is an employee or other controlled person) of up to the greater of $ 2, 479, 282 (as adjusted from time to time) or
three times the amount of profit gained or loss avoided by the violator; (?) Criminal fines for individual violators of up to



$ 5,000,000 ($ 25, 000, 000 for an entity); and (2] Jail sentences of up to 20 years. In addition, insider trading could
result in serious sanctions by the Company, including dismissal. Insider trading violations are not limited to violations of
the federal securities laws. Other federal and state civil or criminal laws, such as the laws prohibiting mail and wire
fraud and the Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations Act (RICO), also may be violated in connection with
insider trading. F. Size of Transaction and Reason for Transaction Do Not Matter The size of the transaction or the
amount of profit received does not have to be significant to result in prosecution. The SEC has the ability to monitor even
the smallest trades, and the SEC performs routine market surveillance. Brokers and dealers are required by law to
inform the SEC of any possible violations by people who may have material, non- public information. The SEC
aggressively investigates even small insider trading violations. G. Examples of Insider Trading Examples of insider
trading cases include actions brought against corporate officers, directors, and employees who traded in a company’ s
securities after learning of significant confidential corporate developments; friends, business associates, family members
and other tippees of such officers, directors, and employees who traded in the securities after receiving such information;
government employees who learned of such information in the course of their employment; and other persons who
misappropriated, and took advantage of, confidential information from their employers. The following are illustrations
of insider trading violations. These illustrations are hypothetical and, consequently, not intended to reflect on the actual
activities or business of the Company or any other entity. Trading by Insider An officer of X Corporation learns that
earnings to be reported by X Corporation will increase dramatically. Prior to the public announcement of such earnings,
the officer purchases X Corporation’ s stock. The officer, an insider, is liable for all profits as well as penalties of up to
three times the amount of all profits. The officer also is subject to, among other things, criminal prosecution, including
up to $ 5, 000, 000 in additional fines and 20 years in jail. Depending upon the circumstances, X Corporation and the
individual to whom the officer reports also could be liable as controlling persons. Trading by Tippee An officer of X
Corporation tells a friend that X Corporation is about to publicly announce that it has concluded an agreement for a
major acquisition. This tip causes the friend to purchase X Corporation’ s stock in advance of the announcement. The
officer is jointly liable with his friend for all of the friend’ s profits, and each is liable for all civil penalties of up to three
times the amount of the friend’ s profits. The officer and his friend are also subject to criminal prosecution and other
remedies and sanctions, as described above. H. Prohibition of Records Falsification and False Statements Section 13 (b)
(2) of the 1934 Act requires companies subject to the Act to maintain proper internal books and records and to devise
and maintain an adequate system of internal accounting controls. The SEC has supplemented the statutory requirements
by adopting rules that prohibit (1) any person from falsifying records or accounts subject to the above requirements and
(2) officers or directors from making any materially false, misleading, or incomplete statement to any accountant in
connection with any audit or filing with the SEC. These provisions reflect the SEC’ s intent to discourage officers,
directors and other persons with access to the Company’ s books and records from taking action that might result in the
communication of materially misleading information to the investing public. IV. STATEMENT OF
PROCEDURES PREVENTING INSIDER TRADING The following procedures have been established, and will be
maintained and enforced, by the Company to prevent insider trading. Every officer, director and employee is required to
follow these procedures. A. Pre- Clearance of All Trades by All Officers, reeords— Directors and Certain Employees To
provide assistance in preventing inadvertent violations of applicable securities laws and to avoid the appearance of
impropriety in connection with the purchase and sale of the Company’ s securities, all transactions in the Company’ s
securities (including without limitation, acquisitions and dispositions of Company stock, the exercise of stock options,
gifts and the sale of Company stock issued upon exercise of stock options) by officers, directors and such other
employees as are designated from time to time by the Board of Directors, the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial
Officer as being subject to this pre- clearance process (each, a “ Pre- Clearance Person ) must be pre- cleared by the
Company’ s Chief Financial Officer. Pre- clearance does not relieve anyone of his or her responsibility under SEC rules.
A request for pre- clearance may be oral or in writing (including without limitation by e- mail), should be made at least
two business days in advance of the proposed transaction and should include the identity of the Pre- Clearance Person,
the type of proposed transaction (for example, an open market purchase, a gift, a privately negotiated sale, an option
exercise, etc.), the proposed date of the transaction and the number of shares, options or other securities to be involved.
In addition, the Pre- Clearance Person must execute a certification (in the form approved by the Chief Financial Officer)
that he or she is not aware of material nonpublic information about the Company. The Chief Financial Officer shall
have sole discretion to decide whether to clear any contemplated transaction. (The Chief Executive Officer shall have
sole discretion to decide whether to clear transactions by the Chief Financial Officer or persons or entities subject to this
policy as a result of their relationship with the Chief Financial Officer.) All trades that are pre- cleared must be effected
within five business days of receipt of the pre- clearance unless a specific exception has been granted by the Chief
Financial Officer (or the Chief Executive Officer, in the case of the Chief Financial Officer or person or entities subject to
this policy as a result of their relationship with the Chief Financial Officer). A pre- cleared trade (or any portion of a pre-
cleared trade) that has not been effected during the five business day period must be pre- cleared again prior to
execution. Notwithstanding receipt of pre- clearance, if the Pre- Clearance Person becomes aware of material, non-
public information or becomes subject to a black- out period before the transaction is effected, the transaction may not
be completed. None of the Company, the Chief Financial Officer or the Company’ s other employees will have any
liability for any delay in reviewing, or refusal of, a request for pre- clearance submitted pursuant to this Section IV. A.
Notwithstanding any pre- clearance of a transaction pursuant to this Section IV. A, none of the Company, the Chief
Financial Officer or the Company’ s other employees assumes any liability for the legality or consequences of such
transaction to the person engaging in such transaction. B. Black- Out Periods Additionally, no officer, director or other



key employee shall purchase or sell any security of the Company during the period beginning 14th calendar day
before the end of any fiscal quarter of the Company and ending upon completion of the second full trading day after the
public release of earnings data for such fiscal quarter or during any other trading suspension period declared by the
Company, except for: (2 exercises of stock options or other equity awards or the surrender of shares to the Company in
payment of the exercise price or in satisfaction of any tax withholding obligations in a manner permitted by the
applicable equity award agreement, or vesting of equity- based awards that in each case do not involve a market sale of
the Company’ s securities (the “ cashless exercise ” of a Company stock option through a broker does involve a market
sale of the Company’ s securities, and therefore would not qualify under this exception); and (?J purchases or sales of the
Company’ s securities made pursuant to any binding contract, specific instruction or written plan entered into outside of
a blackout period and while the purchaser or seller, as applicable, was unaware of any material, non- public information
and which contract, instruction or plan (i) meets all requirements of the affirmative defense provided by Rule 10b5- 1,
(ii) was pre- cleared in advance pursuant to this Policy and (iii) has not been amended or modified in any respect after
such initial pre- clearance without such amendment or modification being pre- cleared in advance pursuant to this
Policy. Exceptions to the black- out period policy may be approved only by the Company’ s Chief Financial Officer (or,
in the case of an exception for the Chief Financial Officer or persons or entities subject to this policy as a result of their
relationship with the Chief Financial Officer, the Chief Executive Officer or, in the case of exceptions for directors or
persons or entities subject to this policy as a result of their relationship with a director, the Board of Directors or Audit
Committee of the Board of Directors.). From time to time, the Company, through the Board of Directors, the Company’ s
disclosure committee or the Chief Financial Officer, may recommend that officers, directors, employees or others
suspend trading in the Company’ s securities because of developments that have not yet been disclosed to the public.
Subject to the exceptions noted above, all those affected should not trade in the Company’ s securities while the
suspension is in effect, and should not disclose to others that the Company has suspended trading. If the Company is
required to impose a “ pension fund black- out period ” under Regulation BTR, each director and executive officer shall
not, directly or indirectly sell, purchase or otherwise transfer during such black- out period any equity securities of the
Company acquired in connection with his or her service as a director or officer of the Company, except as permitted by
Regulation BTR. C. Post- Termination Transactions With the exception of the pre- clearance requirement, this Policy
continues to apply to transactions in the Company’ s securities even after termination of service to the Company. If an
individual is in possession of material, non- public information when his or her service terminates, that individual may
not trade in the Company’ s securities until that information has become public or is no longer material. D. Information
Relating to the Company 1. Access to Information Access to material, non- public information about the Company,
including the Company’ s business, earnings or prospects, should be limited to officers, directors and employees of the
Company on a need- to- know . In addition, such information should not be communicated to anyone outside the
Company under any circumstances (except in accordance with the Company’ s policies regarding the protection or
authorized external disclosure of Company information) or to anyone within the Company on an other than need- to-
know basis. In communicating material, non- public information to employees of the Company, all officers, directors
and employees must take care to emphasize the need for confidential treatment of such information and adherence to the
Company’ s policies with regard to confidential information. 2. Inquiries From Third Parties Inquiries from third
parties, such as industry analysts or members of the media, about the Company should be directed to the Chief Financial
Officer at (423) 884- 2221. E. Limitations on Access to Company Information The following procedures are designed to
maintain confidentiality with respect to the Company’ s business operations and activities. All officers, directors and
employees should take all steps and precautions necessary to restrict access to, and secure, material, non- public
information by, among other things: (?) Maintaining the confidentiality of Company- related transactions;
Conducting their business and social activities so as not to risk inadvertent disclosure of confidential information.
Review of confidential documents in public places should be conducted so as to prevent access by unauthorized persons;
Restricting access to documents and files (including computer files) containing material, non- public information to
individuals on a need- to- know basis (including maintaining control over the distribution of documents and drafts of
documents); (2] Promptly removing and cleaning up all confidential documents and other materials from conference
rooms following the conclusion of any meetings; (?J Disposing of all confidential documents and other papers, after there
is no longer any business or other legally required need, through shredders when appropriate; (2] Restricting access to
areas likely to contain confidential documents or material, non- public information; (?J Safeguarding laptop computers,
mobile devices, tablets, memory sticks, CDs and other items that contain confidential information; and (?) Avoiding the
discussion of material, non- public information in places where the information could be overheard by others such as in
elevators, restrooms, hallways, restaurants, airplanes or taxicabs. Personnel involved with material, non- public
information, to the extent feasible, should conduct their business and activities in areas separate from other Company
activities. V. ADDITIONAL PROHIBITED TRANSACTIONS The Company has determined that there is a heightened
legal risk and / or the appearance of improper or inappropriate conduct if the persons subject to this Policy engage in
certain types of transactions. Therefore, officers, directors and key employees shall comply with the following policies
with respect to certain transactions in the Company securities: A. Short Sales Short sales of the Company’ s securities
evidence an expectation on the part of the seller that the securities will decline in value, and therefore signal to the
market that the seller has no confidence in the Company or its short- term prospects. In addition, short sales may reduce
the seller’ s incentive to improve the Company’ s performance. For these and other reasons, short sales of the Company’
s securities are prohibited by this Policy. In addition, as noted below, Section 16 (c) of the 1934 Act absolutely prohibits
Section 16 reporting persons from making short sales of the Company’ s equity securities, i. e., sales of shares that the



insider does not own at the time of sale, or sales of shares against which the insider does not deliver the shares within 20
days after the sale. B. Publicly Traded Options A transaction in options is, in effect, a bet on the short- term movement
of the Company’ s stock and therefore creates the appearance that an officer, director or employee is trading based on
inside information. Transactions in options also may focus an officer’ s, director’ s or employee’ s attention on short-
term performance at the expense of the Company’ s long- term objectives. Accordingly, transactions in puts, calls or
other derivative securities involving the Company’ s equity securities, on an exchange or in any other organized market,
are prohibited by this Policy. C. Hedging Transactions Certain forms of hedging or monetization transactions, such as
zero- cost collars and forward sale contracts, allow an officer, director or employee to lock in much of the value of his or
her stock holdings, often in exchange for all or part of the potential for upside appreciation in the stock. These
transactions allow the officer, director or employee to continue to own the covered securities, but without the full risks
and rewards of ownership. When that occurs, the officer, director or employee may no longer have the same objectives
as the Company’ s other stockholders. Therefore, such transactions involving the Company’ s equity securities are
prohibited by this Policy. D. Purchases of the Company’ s Securities on Margin; Pledging the Company’ s Securities to
Secure Margin or Other Loans Purchasing on margin means borrowing from a brokerage firm, bank or other entity in
order to purchase the Company’ s securities (other than in connection with a cashless exercise of stock options through a
broker under the Company’ s equity plans). Margin purchases of the Company’ s securities are prohibited by this
Policy. Pledging the Company’ s securities as collateral to secure loans is also prohibited. This prohibition means, among
other things, that you cannot hold the Company’ s securities in a “ margin account ” (which would allow you to borrow
against your holdings to buy securities). E. Partnership Distributions Nothing in this Policy is intended to limit the
ability of a venture capital partnership or other similar entity with which a director is affiliated to distribute Company
securities to its partners, members or other similar persons. It is the responsibility of each affected director and the
affiliated entity, in consultation with their own counsel (as appropriate), to determine the timing of any distributions,
based on all relevant facts and circumstances and applicable securities laws. VI. RULE 10b5- 1 TRADING PLANS,
SECTION 16 AND RULE 144 A. Rule 10b5- 1 Trading Plans 1. Overview Rule 10b5- 1 will protect directors, officers
and employees from insider trading liability under Rule 10b5- 1 for transactions under a previously established contract,
plan or instruction to trade in the Company’ s stock (a “ Trading Plan ) entered into in good faith and in accordance
with the terms of Rule 10b5- 1 and all applicable state laws and will be exempt from the trading restrictions set forth in
this Policy. The initiation of, and any modification to (including termination), any such Trading Plan will be deemed to
be a transaction in the Company’ s securities, and such initiation or modification (including termination) is subject to all
limitations and prohibitions relating to transactions in the Company’ s securities. Each such Trading Plan, and any
modification (including termination) thereof, must be submitted to and pre- approved by the Company’ s Chief
Financial Officer, or such other person as the Board of Directors may designate from time to time (the “ Authorizing
Officer ”’), who may impose such conditions on the implementation and operation of the Trading Plan as the Authorizing
Officer deems necessary or advisable. However, compliance of the Trading Plan to the terms of Rule 10b5- 1 and the
execution of transactions pursuant to the Trading Plan are the sole responsibility of the person initiating the Trading
Plan, not the Company or the Authorizing Officer. Trading Plans do not exempt individuals from complying with
Section 16 short- swing profit rules or liability. Rule 10b5- 1 presents an opportunity for insiders to establish
arrangements to sell (or purchase) Company stock without the restrictions of trading windows and black- out periods,
even when there is undisclosed material information. A Trading Plan may also help reduce negative publicity that may
result when key executives sell the Company’ s stock. Rule 10b5- 1 only provides an “ affirmative defense ” in the event
there is an insider trading lawsuit. It does not prevent someone from bringing a lawsuit. A director, officer or employee
may enter into a Trading Plan only when he or she is not in possession of material, non- public information, and only
during a trading window period outside of the trading black- out period. Although transactions effected under a Trading
Plan will not require further pre- clearance at the time of the trade, any transaction (including the quantity and price)
made pursuant to a Trading Plan of a Section 16 reporting person must be reported to the Company promptly on the
day of each trade to permit the Company’ s filing coordinator to assist in the preparation and filing of a required Form
4. Such reporting may be oral or in writing (including by e- mail) and should include the identity of the reporting person,
the type of transaction, the date of the transaction, the number of shares involved and the purchase or sale price.
However, the ultimate responsibility, and liability, for timely filing remains with the Section 16 reporting person. The
Company reserves the right from time to time to suspend, discontinue or otherwise prohibit any transaction in the
Company’ s securities, even pursuant to a previously approved Trading Plan, if the Authorizing Officer or the Board of
Directors, in its discretion, determines that such suspension, discontinuation or other prohibition is in the best interests
of the Company. Any Trading Plan submitted for approval hereunder should explicitly acknowledge the Company’ s
right to prohibit transactions in the Company’ s securities. Failure to discontinue purchases and sales as directed shall
constitute a violation of the terms of this Section VI and result in a loss of the exemption set forth herein. Officers,
directors and employees may adopt Trading Plans with brokers that outline a pre- set plan for trading of the Company’ s
stock, including the exercise of options. Trades pursuant to a Trading Plan generally may occur at any time. Trading
Plans must be reviewed, approved and counter- signed by the Company, and must comply in all respects with the
requirements of Rule 10bS- 1, which include the following: a cooling- ofoff period for insiders of the later of (1) 90
days following adoption of the Trading Plan; or (2) two business days following the disclosure in certain periodic reports
of the Company’ s financial results for the fiscal quarter in which the plan was adopted (but not to exceed 120 days
following adoption of the Trading Plan) before any trading can commence under the Trading Plan; cooling- off
period of 30 days for other persons; (2] a condition for insiders to include a representation in their Trading Plan



certifying, at the time of the adoption, that: (1) they are not aware of material nonpublic information about the Company
or its securities; and (2) they are adopting the Trading Plan in good faith and not as part of a plan or scheme to evade the
prohibitions of Rule 10b- 5; (7] a limitation on using multiple overlapping Trading Plans (except as otherwise permitted
by Rule 10bS- 1); (?] a limitation on the ability of anyone other than issuers to rely on the affirmative defense for a single
trade plan to one such Trading Plan during any consecutive 12- month period; and (?] a condition that all persons
entering into a Trading Plan must act in good faith with respect to that plan. Please review the following description of
how a Trading Plan works. Pursuant to Rule 10bS- 1, an individual’ s purchase or sale of securities will not be “ on the
basis of ” material, non- public information if: (?J First, before becoming aware of the information, the individual enters
into a binding contract to purchase or sell the securities, provides instructions to another person to sell the securities or
adopts a written plan for trading the securities (i. e., the Trading Plan). (?J Second, the Trading Plan must either:
specify the amount of securities to be purchased or sold, the price at which the securities are to be purchased or sold and
the date on which the securities are to be purchased or sold; (?] include a written formula or computer program for
determining the amount, price and date of the transactions; or (?] prohibit the individual from exercising any subsequent
influence over the purchase or sale of the Company’ s stock under the Trading Plan in question. (?J Third, the purchase
or sale must occur pursuant to the Trading Plan and the individual must not enter into a corresponding hedging
transaction or alter or deviate from the Trading Plan. (?] Fourth, the Trading Plan must satisfy the requirements set
forth above. 2. Revocation of and Amendments to Trading Plans Revocation of Trading Plans should occur only in
unusual circumstances. Effectiveness of any revocation or amendment of a Trading Plan will be subject to the prior
review and approval of the Authorizing Officer. Revocation is effected upon written notice to the broker. Once a
Trading Plan has been revoked, the participant must wait until the applicable cooling- off period has expired as
described in Section VI (A) (1) above before trading outside of a Trading Plan or establishing a new Trading Plan. You
should note that revocation of a Trading Plan can result in the loss of an affirmative defense for past or future
transactions under a Trading Plan. You should consult with your own legal counsel before deciding to revoke a Trading
Plan. In any event, you should not assume that compliance with the aforementioned cooling- off period will protect you
from possible adverse legal consequences of a Trading Plan revocation. A person acting in good faith may amend a prior
Trading Plan so long as such amendments are made outside of a quarterly trading black- out period and at a time when
the Trading Plan participant does not possess material, non- public information. Plan amendments must not take effect
for at least 30 days after the plan amendments are made. Under certain circumstances, a Trading Plan must be revoked.
This may include circumstances such as the announcement of a merger or the occurrence of an event that would cause
the transaction either to violate the law or to have an adverse effect on the Company. The Authorizing Officer or
administrator of the Company’ s stock plans is authorized to notify the broker in such circumstances, thereby insulating
the insider in the event of revocation. 3. Discretionary Plans Although non- discretionary Trading Plans are preferred,
discretionary Trading Plans, where the discretion or control over trading is transferred to a broker, are permitted if pre-
approved by the Authorizing Officer. The Authorizing Officer must pre- approve any Trading Plan, arrangement or
trading instructions, etc., involving potential sales or purchases of the Company’ s stock or option exercises, including
but not limited to, blind trusts, discretionary accounts with banks or brokers, or limit orders. The actual transactions
effected pursuant to a pre- approved Trading Plan will not be subject to further pre- clearance for transactions in the
Company’ s stock once the Trading Plan or other arrangement has been pre- approved. 4. Reporting (if Required) If
required, an SEC Form 144 will be filled out and filed by the individual / brokerage firm in accordance with the existing
rules regarding Form 144 filings. A footnote at the bottom of the Form 144 should indicate that the trades “ are in
accordance with a Trading Plan that complies with Rule 10bS- 1 and expires . ” For Section 16 reporting persons,
Form 4s must be filed before the end of the second business day following the date that the transaction occurred. A
similar footnote should be placed at the bottom of the Form 4 as outlined above. 5. Options Exercises of options for cash
may be executed at any time. “ Cashless exercise ” option exercises through a broker are subject to trading windows.
However, the Company will permit same day sales under Trading Plans. If a broker is required to execute a cashless
exercise in accordance with a Trading Plan, then the Company must have exercise forms attached to the Trading Plan
that are signed, undated and with the number of shares to be exercised left blank. Once a broker determines that the
time is right to exercise the option and dispose of the shares in accordance with the Trading Plan, the broker will notify
the Company in writing and the administrator of the Company’ s stock plans will fill in the number of shares and the
date of exercise on the previously signed exercise form. The insider should not be involved with this part of the exercise.
6. Trades Outside of a Trading Plan During an open trading window, trades differing from Trading Plan instructions
that are already in place are allowed as long as the Trading Plan continues to be followed. 7. Public Announcements The
Company may make a public announcement that Trading Plans are being implemented in accordance with Rule 10b5- 1.
It will consider in each case whether a public announcement of a particular Trading Plan should be made. It may also
make public announcements or respond to inquiries from the media as transactions are made under a Trading Plan. 8.
Prohibited Transactions The transactions prohibited under Section V of this Policy, including among others short sales
and hedging transactions, may not be carried out through a Trading Plan or other arrangement or trading instruction
involving potential sales or purchases of the Company’ s securities. 9. No Section 16 Protection The use of Trading Plans
does not exempt participants from complying with the Section 16 reporting rules or liability for short- swing trades. 10.
Limitation on Liability None of the Company, the Chief Financial Officer, the Authorizing Officer or the Company’ s
other employees will have any liability for any delay in reviewing, or refusal of, a Trading Plan submitted pursuant to
this Section VI or a request for pre- clearance submitted pursuant to Section IV of this Policy. Notwithstanding any
review of a Trading Plan pursuant to this Section VI or pre- clearance of a transaction pursuant to Section IV of this



Policy, none of the Company, the Chief Financial Officer, the Authorizing Officer or the Company’ s other employees
assumes any liability for the legality or consequences of such Trading Plan or transaction to the person engaging in or
adopting such Trading Plan or transaction. B. Section 16: Insider Reporting Requirements, Short- Swing Profits and
Short Sales (Applicable to Officers, Directors and 10 % Stockholders) 1. Reporting Obligations Under Section 16 (a):
SEC Forms 3, 4 and 5 Section 16 (a) of the 1934 Act generally requires all officers, directors and 10 % stockholders (*
insiders ), within 10 days after the insider becomes an officer, director, or 10 % stockholder, to file with the SEC an “
Initial Statement of Beneficial Ownership of Securities ” on SEC Form 3 listing the amount of the Company’ s stock,
options and warrants which the insider beneficially owns. Following the initial filing on SEC Form 3, changes in
beneficial ownership of the Company’ s stock, options and warrants must be reported on SEC Form 4, generally within
two business days after the date on which such change occurs, or in certain cases on Form 5, within 45 days after
endintg-end. The two- day Form 4 deadline begins to run from the trade date rather than the settlement date. A
Form 4 must be filed even if, as a result of balancing transactions, there has been no net change in holdings. In certain
situations, purchases or sales of Company stock made within six months prior to the filing of a Form 3 must be reported
June-30-Form 4. Similarly , certain purchases or sales of Company stock made within six months after an officer or
director ceases to be an insider must be reported on Form 4. 2. Recovery of Profits Under Section 16 (b) For the purpose
of preventing the unfair use of information which may have been obtained by an insider, any profits realized by any
officer, director or 10 % stockholder from any “ purchase ” and “ sale ” of Company stock during a six- month period,
so called “ short- swing profits, ” may be recovered by the Company. When such a purchase and sale occurs, good faith
is no defense. The insider is liable even if compelled to sell for personal reasons, and even if the sale takes place after full
disclosure and without the use of any inside information. The liability of an insider under Section 16 (b) of the 1934 Act
is only to the Company itself. The Company, however, cannot waive its right to short swing profits, and any Company
stockholder can bring suit in the name of the Company. Reports of ownership filed fiseal-quarters-equaling
thirteerrweeks-SEC on Form 3, Form 4 or Form 5 pursuant to Section 16 (a) (discussed above) are readily available to the
public, and certain attorneys carefully monitor these reports for potential Section 16 (b) violations. In addition, liabilities
under Section 16 (b) may require separate disclosure in the Company’ s annual report to the SEC on Form 10- K or its
proxy statement for its annual meeting of stockholders. No suit may be brought more than two years after the date the
profit was realized. However, if the insider fails to file a report of the transaction under Section 16 (a), as required, the
two- year limitation period does not begin to run until after the transactions giving rise to the profit have been disclosed.
Failure to report transactions and late filing of reports require separate disclosure in the Company’ s proxy statement.
Officers and directors should consult the attached “ Short- Swing Profit Rule Section 16 (b) Checklist ” attached hereto
as “ Attachment A ” in addition to consulting the Chief Financial Officer prior to engaging in any transactions involving
the Company’ s securities, including without limitation, the Company’ s stock, options or warrants. 3. Short Sales
Prohibited Under Section 16 (c) Section 16 (c) of the 1934 Act prohibits insiders absolutely from making short sales of
the Company’ s equity securities. Short sales include sales of stock which the insider does not own at the time of sale, or
sales of stock against which the insider does not deliver the shares within 20 days after the sale. Under certain
circumstances, the purchase or sale of put or call options, or the writing of such options, can result in a violation of
Section 16 (c). Insiders violating Section 16 (c) face criminal liability Chief feltowing-tablesset-forth-summary
gaartertyfinanetal-Financial infermation-Officer should be consulted if you have any questions regarding reporting
obligations, short- swing profits or short sales under Section 16. C. Rule 144 (Applicable to Officers, Directors and 10 %
Stockholders) Rule 144 provides a safe harbor exemption to the registration requirements of the Securities Act of 1933,
as amended, for certain resales of “ restricted securities ” and “ control securities. ” “ Restricted securities ” are
securities acquired from an issuer, or an affiliate of an issuer, in a transaction or chain of transactions not involving a
public offering. “ Control securities ” are any securities owned by directors, executive officers or other « affiliates ” of
the issuer, including stock purchased in the open market and stock received upon exercise of stock options. Sales of
restricted and control Company securities must comply with the requirements of Rule 144, which are summarized
below: (2] Holding Period. Restricted securities must be held for at least s1x months before fhe—they may be sold in years
endedme302023ard 2022 andrefleets 3 of-dhise d attons-market. (2] Current
Public Information. The Company must have filed all SEC requlred reports during the last 12 months or such shorter
period that the Company as-was required diseussed-inNote 3—Bue-to file such reports. (2) Volume Limitations. For
affiliates, total sales of Company common stock for any the-three - month period effeets-of rounding;the-quarterlyresults
sum-exceed the greater of: (i) 1 % of the total number of outstanding shares of Company common
stock, as reflected in the most recent report or statement published by the Company, or (ii) the average weekly reported
volume of such shares traded during the four calendar weeks preceding the filing of the requisite Form 144. (?] Method
of Sale. For affiliates, the shares must be sold either in a “ broker’ s transaction ” or in a transaction directly with a «
market maker. ” A “ broker’ s transaction ” is one in which the broker does no more than execute the sale order and
receive the usual and customary commission. Neither the broker nor the selling person can solicit or arrange for the sale
order. In addition, the selling person or Board member must not pay any fee or commission other than to the broker. A
“ market maker ” includes a specialist permitted to act as a dealer, a dealer acting in the position of a block positioner,
and a dealer who holds himself out as being willing to buy and sell Company common stock for his own account on a
regular and continuous basis. (?] Notice of Proposed Sale. For affiliates, a notice of the sale (a Form 144) may be
required to be filed with the SEC via EDGAR at the time of the sale. Brokers generally have internal procedures for
executing sales under Rule 144 and will assist you in completing the Form 144 and in complying with the other
requirements of Rule 144. If you are subject to Rule 144, you must instruct your broker who handles trades in Company




securities to follow the brokerage firm’ s Rule 144 compliance procedures in connection with all trades. ATTACHMENT
ASHORT- SWING PROFIT RULE SECTION 16 (B) CHECKLIST Note: ANY combination of PURCHASE AND
SALE or SALE AND PURCHASE within six months of each other by an officer, director or 10 % stockholder (or any
family member living in the same household or certain affiliated entities) results in a violation of Section 16 (b), and the
profit ” must be recovered by Mastercraft Boat Holdings, Inc. (the “ Company ). It makes no difference how long the
shares being sold have been held or, for officers and directors, that you were an insider for only one of the to-two
matching transactions. The highest priced sale will be matched with the lowest priced purchase within the six- month
period. If a sale is to be made by an officer, director or 10 % stockholder (or any family member living in the same
household or certain affiliated entities): 1. Have the-there fiseal-been any purchases by the insider (or family members
living in the same household or certain affiliated entities) within the past six months? 2. Have there been any option
grants or exercises not exempt under Rule 16b- 3 within the past six months? 3. Are any purchases (or non- exempt
option exercises) anticipated or required within the next six months? 4. Has a Form 4 been prepared? Note: If a sale is to
be made by an affiliate of the Company, has a Form 144 been prepared and has the broker been reminded to sell
pursuant to Rule 144? Purchases And Option Exercises If a purchase or option exercise for Company stock is to be
made: 1. Have there been any sales by the insider (or family members living in the same household or certain affiliated
entities) w1th1n the past six months" 2. Are any sales antlclpated or requlred w1th1n the next six months (such as tax-
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1nformat10n whlch could affect the price of the Company stock. All transactions in the Company’ s securities by officers
and directors must be pre- cleared by contactlng the Company s Chief Financial Ofﬁcer 952—2—67—1-8—2—95,—949—1-8,—7—2—27

Boat (ompany, LLC DPelaware-Mas a dmints of;tae: Delavx jare Master( raft Pcuts lelted The
United Kingdom M&sfef@fa—ft—Semees—H:&Tefmessee—NSB Boats, LLC Ml%%l%%lppl JBMC, LLC * Tennessee * As of June 30,
2023-2024 , The Company has approximately 95 % ownership in JBMC, LLC. EXHIBIT 23. 1 CONSENT OF
INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration
Statement No. 333- 212812 on Form S- 3 and Registration Statement No. 333- 205825 on Form S- 8§ of our reports dated August
30-29 , 2623-2024 , relating to the financial statements of MasterCraft Boat Holdings, Inc. and the effectiveness of MasterCraft
Boat Holdums Inc.’ s internal control over financial reporting appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10- K for the year
ended June 30, 2023-2024 . Exhibit 31. | CERTIFICATIONS I, Fredertek-A-Bradley M . BrightbittNelson , certify that: 1.1
have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10- K of MasterCraft Boat Holdings, Inc.; 2. Based on my knowledge, this report
does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in
light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report; 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present
in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report; 4. The registrant’ s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a- 15 (e) and 15d- 15 (e)) and internal control over
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a- 15 (f) and 15d- 15 (f)) for the registrant and have: a) Designed such
disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; b) Designed such internal control over
financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; ¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’ s
disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls
and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and d) Disclosed in this report any



change in the registrant’ s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’ s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant’ s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely
to materially affect, the registrant’ s internal control over financial reporting; and 5. The registrant’ s other certifying officer and
[ have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’ s auditors and
the audit committee of the registrant’ s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions): a) All significant
deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’ s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and b) Any
fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’ s
internal control over financial reporting. Date: August 36-29 , 2623-2024 / s / FREDERICK-A-BRADLEY M . BRIGHTBIHEE
Fredertek A-NELSON Bradley M . Brightbilt-Nelson Chicf Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer) and
DirectorExhibit Chatirman-ofthe BoardExhibtt-31. 2 [, Timothy M. Oxley, certify that: Date: August 36-29 , 2623-2024 /s |/
TIMOTHY M. OXLEY Timothy M. Oxley Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer), Treasurer and
SecretaryExhibit 32. 1 CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U. S. C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES- OXLEY ACT OF 2002 I, FredetielcA-Bradley M . Brightbit-Nelson , Chief Executive
Officer of MasterCraft Boat Holdings, Inc. (the “ Company ”), hereby certity, pursuant to 18 U. S. C. § 1350, as adopted
pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the best of my knowledge: (1) The Annual Report on Form 10- K
of the Company for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2623-2024 (the “ Report ) fully complies with the requirements of Section 13
(a) or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and (2) The information contained in the Report fairly
presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company. August 36-29 , 2623-2024 / s /
FREPDERICK-A-BRADLEY M . BRIGHTBH-EFredertekc A-NELSON Bradley M . Brightbit-Nelson Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer) and DirectorExhibit Chairman-efthe BoardExhibit-32. 2 [, Timothy M. Oxley, Chief Financial
Officer of MasterCraft Boat Holdings, Inc. (the “ Company ”), hereby certify, pursuant to 18 U. S. C. § 1350, as adopted
pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the best of my knowledge: August 36-29 , 2623-2024 / s /
TIMOTHY M. OXLEY Timothy M. Oxley Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer), Treasurer and
Seeretary-SecretaryExhibit 97. 1 Approved by the Board of Directors on August 1, 2023 Effective as of October 2, 2023 1.
Purpose. The purpose of this Policy is to describe the circumstances in which Executive Officers will be required to
repay or return Erroneously Awarded Compensation to members of the Company Group. This Policy is designed to
comply with, and will be interpreted in a manner that is consistent with, Section 954 of the Dodd- Frank Wall Street
Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010, Section 10D of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and the listing
standards of the Exchange. 2. Administration. This Policy shall be administered by the Committee. Any determinations
made by the Committee shall be final and binding on all affected individuals. 3. Definitions. For purposes of this Policy,
the following capitalized terms shall have the meanings set forth below. (a) “ Accounting Restatement ” shall mean an
accounting restatement (i) due to the material noncompliance of the Company with any financial reporting requirement
under the securities laws, including any required accounting restatement to correct an error in previously issued
financial restatements that is material to the previously issued financial statements, or (ii) that corrects an error that is
not material to previously issued financial statements, but would result in a material misstatement if the error were
corrected in the current period or left uncorrected in the current period. (b) “ Board ” shall mean the Board of Directors
of the Company. (c) “ Clawback Eligible Incentive Compensation > shall mean, in connection with an Accounting
Restatement and with respect to each individual who served as an Executive Officer at any time during the applicable
performance period for any Incentive- based Compensation (whether or not such Executive Officer is serving at the time
the Erroneously Awarded Compensation is required to be repaid to the Company Group), all Incentive- based
Compensation Received by such Executive Officer (i) on or after the Effective Date, (ii) after beginning service as an
Executive Officer, (iii) while the Company has a class of securities listed on a national securities exchange or a national
securities association and (iv) during the applicable Clawback Period. (d) “ Clawback Period ” shall mean, with respect
to any Accounting Restatement, the three completed fiscal years of the Company immediately preceding the Restatement
Date and any transition period (that results from a change in the Company’ s fiscal year) of less than nine months within
or immediately following those three completed fiscal years. (e) “ Committee ” shall mean the Compensation and Human
Capital Committee of the Board. (f) “ Company ” shall mean MasterCraft Boat Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corporation.
(g) “ Company Group ” shall mean the Company, together with each of its direct and indirect subsidiaries. (h) «
Exchange ” shall mean The Nasdaq Global Market or any other national securities exchange on which the Company’ s
securities are listed. (i) “ Effective Date ” shall mean October 2, 2023. (j) “ Erroneously Awarded Compensation ” shall
mean, with respect to each Executive Officer in connection with an Accounting Restatement, the amount of Clawback
Eligible Incentive Compensation that exceeds the amount of Incentive- based Compensation that otherwise would have
been Received had it been determined based on the restated amounts, computed without regard to any taxes paid. (k)
Executive Officer ” shall mean (i) the Company’ s current and former president, principal financial officer, principal
accounting officer (or if there is no principal accounting officer, the controller), any vice- president in charge of a
principal business unit, division or function (such as sales, administration, or finance), any other officer who performs a
policy- making function for the Company, or any other person who performs similar policy- making functions for the
Company, as determined by the Committee in accordance with Federal securities laws, SEC rules or the rules of any
national securities exchange or national securities association on which the Company’ s securities are listed.
Identification of an executive officer for purposes of this Policy includes at a minimum executive officers identified
pursuant to 17 C. F. R. 229. 401 (b). (1) “ Financial Reporting Measures ” shall mean measures that are determined and
presented in accordance with the accounting principles used in preparing the Company’ s financial statements, and all



other measures that are derived wholly or in part from such measures. Stock price and total shareholder return (and
any measures that are derived wholly or in part from stock price or total shareholder return) shall for purposes of this
Policy be considered Financial Reporting Measures. For the avoidance of doubt, a Financial Reporting Measure need not
be presented in the Company’ s financial statements or included in a filing with the SEC. (m) “ Incentive- based
Compensation ” shall mean any compensation that is granted, earned or vested based wholly or in part upon the
attainment of a Financial Reporting Measure. Incentive- based Compensation does not include: (i) bonuses paid solely at
the discretion of the Board or the Committee that are not paid from a bonus pool that is determined by satisfying a
financial reporting measure performance goal or solely upon satisfying one or more subjective standards and / or
completion of a specified employment period, (ii) non- equity incentive plan awards earned solely upon satisfying one or
more strategic or operational measures, (iii) equity awards not contingent upon achieving any financial reporting
measure performance goal and vesting is contingent solely upon the completion of a specified employment period and /
or attaining one or more non- financial reporting measures or (iv) any Incentive- based Compensation received before
the Company had a class of securities listed on a national securities exchange. (n) “ Policy ” shall mean this Amended
and Restated Clawback Policy, as the same may be amended and / or restated from time to time. (0) “ Received ” shall,
with respect to any Incentive- based Compensation, mean actual or deemed receipt, and Incentive- based Compensation
shall be deemed received in the Company’ s fiscal period during which the Financial Reporting Measure specified in the
Incentive- based Compensation award is attained, even if payment or grant of the Incentive- based Compensation occurs
after the end of that period. (p) “ Restatement Date ” shall mean the earlier to occur of (i) the date the Board, a 2
committee of the Board or the officers of the Company authorized to take such action if Board action is not required,
concludes, or reasonably should have concluded, that the issuer is required to prepare an Accounting Restatement, or (ii)
the date of court, regulator or other legally authorized body directs the issuer to prepare an Accounting Restatement. (q)
“ SEC ” shall mean the U. S. Securities and Exchange Commission. 4. Repayment of Erroneously Awarded
Compensation. (a) In the event of an Accounting Restatement, the Committee shall determine the amount of any
Erroneously Awarded Compensation for each Executive Officer in connection with such Accounting Restatement and
thereafter, provide each Executive Officer with a written notice containing the amount of Erroneously Awarded
Compensation and a demand for repayment or return, as applicable. For Incentive- based Compensation based on (or
derived from) stock price or total shareholder return where the amount of Erroneously Awarded Compensation is not
subject to mathematical recalculation directly from the information in the applicable Accounting Restatement, the
amount shall be determined by the Committee based on a reasonable estimate of the effect of the Accounting
Restatement on the stock price or total shareholder return upon which the Incentive- based Compensation was Received
(in which case, the Company shall maintain documentation of such determination of that reasonable estimate and
provide such documentation to the Exchange). (b) The Committee shall take such action as it deems appropriate to
recover Erroneously Awarded Compensation reasonably promptly after such obligation is incurred and shall have
broad discretion to determine the appropriate means of recovery of such Erroneously Awarded Compensation based on
all applicable facts and circumstances. The Committee may seek recoupment in the manner it chooses, in its sole
discretion, which may include, without limitation, one or a combination of the following: (i) direct reimbursement from
the Executive Officer of Incentive- based Compensation previously paid, (ii) deduction of the recouped amount from
unpaid compensation otherwise owed by the Company to the Executive Officer, (iii) set- off, (iv) rescinding or cancelling
vested or unvested equity or cash based awards, and (v) any other remedial and recovery action permitted by law, as
determined by the Committee. For the avoidance of doubt, except as set forth in Section 4 (d) below, in no event may the
Company Group accept an amount that is less than the amount of Erroneously Awarded Compensation in satisfaction of
an Executive Officer’ s obligations hereunder. (c) To the extent that an Executive Officer fails to repay all Erroneously
Awarded Compensation to the Company Group when due (as determined in accordance with Section 4 (b) above), the
Company shall, or shall cause one or more other members of the Company Group to, take all actions reasonable and
appropriate to recover such Erroneously Awarded Compensation from the applicable Executive Officer. The applicable
Executive Officer shall be required to reimburse the Company Group for any and all expenses reasonably incurred
(including legal fees) by the Company Group in recovering such Erroneously Awarded Compensation in accordance
with the immediately preceding sentence. (d) Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the Company shall not be
required to take the actions contemplated by Section 4 (b) above if the following conditions are met and the Committee
determines that recovery would be impracticable: (i) The direct expenses paid to a third party to assist in enforcing the
Policy against an Executive Officer would exceed the amount to be recovered, after the Company 3 has made a
reasonable attempt to recover the applicable Erroneously Awarded Compensation, documented such attempts and
provided such documentation to the Exchange. (ii) Recovery would violate home country law where that law was
adopted prior to November 28, 2022, provided that, before determining that it would be impracticable to recover any
amount of Erroneously Awarded Compensation based on violation of home country law, the Company has obtained an
opinion of home country counsel, acceptable to the Exchange, that recovery would result in such a violation and a copy
of the opinion is provided to the Exchange; or (iii) Recovery would likely cause an otherwise tax- qualified retirement
plan, under which benefits are broadly available to employees of the Company Group, to fail to meet the requirements of
26 U. S. C. 401 (a) (13) or 26 U. S. C. 411 (a) and regulations thereunder. 5. Reporting and Disclosure. The Company
shall file all disclosures with respect to this Policy in accordance with the requirement of the Federal securities laws,
including the disclosure required by the applicable SEC filings. 6. Indemnification Prohibition. No member of the
Company Group shall be permitted to indemnify any Executive Officer against (i) the loss of any Erroneously Awarded
Compensation that is repaid, returned or recovered pursuant to the terms of this Policy, or (ii) any claims relating to the



Company Group’ s enforcement of its rights under this Policy. Further, no member of the Company Group shall enter
into any agreement that exempts any Incentive- based Compensation from the application of this Policy or that waives
the Company Group’ s right to recovery of any Erroneously Awarded Compensation and this Policy shall supersede any
such agreement (whether entered into before, on or after the Effective Date). 7. Interpretation. The Committee is
authorized to interpret and construe this Policy and to make all determinations necessary, appropriate, or advisable for
the administration of this Policy. This Policy shall be binding and enforceable against all Executive Officers and their
beneficiaries, heirs, executors or other legal representatives. 8. Effective Date. This Policy shall be effective as of the
Effective Date. 9. Amendment; Termination. The Committee may amend this Policy from time to time in its discretion
and shall amend this Policy as it deems necessary, including as and when it determines that it is legally required by any
Federal securities laws, SEC rules or the rules of any national securities exchange or national securities association on
which the Company’ s securities are listed. The Committee may terminate this Policy at any time. Notwithstanding
anything in this Section 9 to the contrary, no amendment or termination of this Policy shall be effective if such
amendment or termination would (after taking into account any actions taken by the Company contemporaneously with
such amendment or termination) cause the Company to violate any Federal securities laws, SEC rules or the rules of any
national securities exchange or national securities association on which the Company’ s securities are listed. 10. Other
Recoupment Rights. The Committee intends that this Policy will be applied to the fullest extent of the law. This Policy
shall be incorporated by reference into and shall apply to all incentive, bonus, equity, equity- based and compensation
plans, agreements, and awards outstanding as of the Effective Date or entered into on or after the Effective Date. The
Committee may also require that any employment agreement, equity award agreement, or any other agreement entered
into on or after the Effective Date shall, as a condition to the grant of any benefit thereunder, require an Executive
Officer to 4 agree to abide by the terms of this Policy. Any right of recoupment under this Policy is in addition to, and
not in lieu of, any other remedies or rights of recoupment that may be available to the Company Group under applicable
law, regulation or rule or pursuant to the terms of any similar policy in any employment agreement, equity award
agreement, or similar agreement and any other legal remedies available to the Company Group. 11. Entire Agreement.
This Policy supersedes, replaces and merges any and all previous agreements and understandings regarding the
Company’ s policy on the recovery of compensation, and this Policy constitutes the entire agreement between the
Company and the Executive Officers with respect to such terms and conditions. 12. Successors. This Policy shall be
binding and enforceable against all Executive Officers and their beneficiaries, heirs, executors, administrators or other
legal representatives. * * * §



